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INFORM. ENTERTAIN. EMPOWER.
News... a phenomenon that is continuous, global and all pervasive. 
What is the latest news one minute is stale the next. What is big 
news for one can be a trivial for the other. Local and global, scientific 
and superstitious, serious and funny, path-breaking and banal... 
news keeps happening all the time. The challenge lies in capturing 
it at the right time, in the right context and with responsibility.
 
In keeping with its mission to conduct a fair and informed discourse 
on the issues affecting regional aspirations, Zee News Limited has 
set up a chain of regional News & Entertainment channels. This 
bouquet offers covers the concerns and issues as well as the rich 
culture, heritage and language of various regions.
 
Zee News Limited is a company that has taken up this mission in 
earnest and has set itself the objective: INFORM. ENTERTAIN. 
EMPOWER. It has channelised rich experience, state-of-the-
art technology and sharp viewer understanding to bring the best 
programming, impressive talent and high quality to millions of 
viewers all over the world.



MISSION
To be India’s pre-eminent provider of news and regional entertainment content to viewers belonging to all regions  

and linguistic denominations.  

And by engaging audiences in their native language through a mix of news and entertainment to truly  

“Inform. Entertain. Empower.” the people of India and in doing so provide value to advertisers. 

As a corporation, we will be profitable, productive, creative, trend setting and financially sound with care  

and concern for all stakeholders.

OUR VALUES
Customer Focus:  

Our company’s strategies are driven by the needs of the customer. Our success can be measured by the satisfaction 

achieved by our customers.  

Excellence:  

We accord a high premium to maintaining superlative standards throughout our company. We encourage  

our employees to come up with smarter ideas within the fastest possible time.  

Creativity:  

The key to our value system is innovation and originality. We recognise and have a high regard for individual  

expression and creative freedom in our quest to provide customer satisfaction.  

Integrity:  

We observe strict ethical standards through editorial independence and creative expression in order to earn  

the trust of our viewers and subscribers.  

Growth Driven:  

We are committed to delivering consistent revenue and cash flow growth in order to provide our shareholders  

a good return. Our objective is to grow our people, markets and businesses around the world.



CHAIRMAN’S 
STATEMENT Dear Shareholders,

It gives me great pleasure to present 

before you the annual results of Zee 

News Limited for 2006-2007. This 

is the first occasion that Zee News 

Limited has reported its annual results 

as an independent, listed entity. Zee 

News Limited, with its unique focus on 

reaching out to audiences across the 

country through a powerful combination 

of news and regional entertainment, 

is uniquely positioned to ride the 

unprecedented economic boom that 

India is experiencing.

Economic Outlook

As one of the early believers in the 

immense potential of India, the recent 

strides made by the Indian economy 

are a source of great delight and pride. 

Double-digit GDP growths now look 

possible for the next few years and a 

one trillion dollar economy is within 

striking distance. Structural changes in 

the economy now seem to have pushed 

our country on an irreversible path to 

progress and prosperity. Proactive and 

bespoke government policies, increasing 

private-public partnerships, a focus 

on infrastructure creation and poverty 

alleviation will carry the benefits of 

economic growth to many more millions 

in the coming years. Global investors have 

now recognised that the giant is moving 

with never-before momentum, and 

are aggressively seeking investment 

opportunities in India, thereby making 

capital available that will take India 

forward. The future is India’s for 

the taking.



Industry Outlook 

The Indian Media and Entertainment 

industry is in the throes of explosive 

growth and a major technological 

revolution. The Rs.450 billion industry 

grew by 20% last year and prospects 

are bright for high growth in the future. 

The Indian television industry with a size 

of Rs.190 billion grew by 19% last year 

and continued to contribute the largest 

share as in the past. Economic growth is 

a major moving force for this growth as 

advertisers rush to engage with a more 

prosperous India. With advertising to GDP 

ratios in India leaving enough headroom 

for growth, clearly the future of the 

broadcast industry shines bright. 

Further, the electronic media industry 

is passing through an exciting phase of 

major technological changes. The move 

to digitalization and addressability has 

spawned new platforms like Direct-to-

Home (DTH), digital cable, mobile and 

IPTV, creating an ever-increasing demand 

for content. These changes are expected 

to significantly add to the revenues of the 

broadcast industry in future years. 

Looking ahead      

Economic growth and prosperity is 

throwing up huge opportunities for strong 

players in the media and entertainment 

industry. News and regional entertainment 

are among the fastest growing segments 

in this industry. Your company is in the 

possession of powerful, genre-leading 

properties and is uniquely poised to make 

the future count. Your company’s unique 

and powerful content also places it in an 

advantageous position as far as garnering 

subscription revenues in a digitalized and 

addressable environment is concerned. 

We have got off to a positive start in 

2007-08 and are confident of sustaining 

the growth momentum.

With Best Wishes,

Subhash Chandra
Chairman

News and regional entertainment are among 
the fastest growing segments. Zee News is 
uniquely poised to make the future count.



Dear Shareholders,

The year 2006-07 has been an outstanding 

and landmark year for your Company as 

during this year, your Company has emerged 

as an independent and listed entity. Zee News 

Limited, with its unique focus on reaching 

out to audiences across the country through 

a powerful combination of news and regional 

entertainment, is uniquely positioned to ride 

the unprecedented economic boom that 

India is experiencing.

Corporate restructuring   

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement 

approved by the Hon’ble Bombay High 

Court vide Order dated 17.11.2006, News 

and Regional news bearing channels of Zee 

Entertainment Enterprises Limited (formerly 

Zee Telefilms Limited) de-merged into Zee 

News Limited. Subsequently, the Company 

got listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange, 

National Stock Exchange & Calcutta Stock 

Exchange where the shares of the company 

are traded. We feel highly encouraged by 

the excellent investor response. Subsequent 

to the corporate restructuring exercise, 

your Company has a powerful portfolio of 

letter from 
managing 
Director properties catering to various genres and 

regional audiences. Zee News Limited now 

comprises Zee News, Zee Business, Zee 24 

Taas, Zee Punjabi, Zee Bangla, Zee Gujarati, 

Zee Marathi, Zee Telugu and Zee Kannada 

channels. Your Company holds a 60% stake 

in Zee Akash News Private Limited, which 

operates 24 Ghanta, a leading Bangla news 

channel. 

Review of performance

During 2006-07, based on a like to like 

comparison post the restructuring, the 

consolidated revenue of the company 

grew by 44% to Rs. 2,405.12 million. The 

advertisement revenue grew by 51% to  

Rs.1,705.84 million while subscription  

revenue grew by 24% to Rs. 584.66 million. 

The Company’s operating profit grew to 

Rs. 76.59 million from Rs. 2.8 million in 

the previous year. Profit after Tax for the 

company stood at Rs. 74.40 million.  The 

highlight of the year was the sterling 

performance of ‘Zee Marathi’ and ‘Zee 

Bangla’, both of which finished the year as 

the leaders in their respective genres. Zee 

News continued to maintain its ratings in the 



face of stiff competition in the Hindi news 

genre. 24 Ghanta, within the first year of 

its launch made a strong bid for leadership 

and has won wide acceptance for its quality 

Bengali news programming. During the last 

quarter of 2006-07 your Company reinforced 

its image as a pioneer in the news business 

by launching the country’s first 24X7  

Marathi news channel ‘24 Taas’. The year 

also saw your Company expand its presence 

in the key South Indian market with the 

launch of Zee Kannada. 

Corporate Governance 

Your Company is in full compliance with 

the Corporate Governance Code laid down 

by SEBI and stock exchanges. In order to 

further strengthen the corporate governance 

measures three independent Directors have 

been inducted in the Board.  The Company 

looks to the Board of Directors for their 

constant guidance & encouragement.

People 

A large part of the success of your Company 

is owed to its employees, many of whom are 

leading lights of the industry. Your Company 

believes in spotting and nurturing talent, 

imparting quality training and supervision 

and above all creating an environment of 

opportunity. During 2006-07 as part of a 

group-wide exercise, the Company engaged 

Hay Group, a reputed HR consulting firm, to 

undertake a Human Resource Transformation 

initiative in the organisation. The objective of 

the exercise was to redesign the organisation 

structure of the business befitting company’s 

vision and growth aspirations and establish 

robust HR processes within the structure in 

order to realise the human capital to the hilt. 

We expect that the company will achieve far 

reaching results from the exercise.

Looking ahead      

With GDP growths in the 9% range, the 

Media and Entertainment industry is poised 

for a very bright future. News and regional 

entertainment are among the fastest growing 

segments in this industry and are among the 

genres that are favourably positioned to ride 

the explosive growth phase. I am certain 

that your Company’s impressive portfolio 

of channels, its “Zee” heritage and its 

pool of talented people will enable it to 

rise to the top. Your Company’s unique 

and powerful content also places it 

in an advantageous position as far 

as garnering subscription revenues 

in a digitalized and addressable 

environment is concerned. The start 

to 2007-08 has been an encouraging 

one, and we hope to continue our  

solid growth momentum in the months 

to come.  

With Best Wishes,

Laxmi N. Goel 
Managing Director

   

Zee News continued to maintain its 
ratings in the face of stiff competition 
in the Hindi news genre. 



Maria Sharapova’s US Open triumph

News that touch your hearts, that make 
you proud and those that set milestones 
in time...Zee News captured the world’s 
special moments for millions of excited 
viewers globally.

Riyo Mori of Japan gets crowned  
Miss Universe 2007

Sachin Tendulkar scores his record-making 
40th ODI Century

CAPTURE
CLASSIC
MOMENTS



Indra  Nooyi becomes global 
CEO of PepsiCo Inc.

Abhishekh Bachchan weds Aishwarya Rai

The 58th Annual Prime-
time Emmy Awards were 
held in Los Angeles

Kiran Desai wins the 
Booker Award

The world’s 
largest airplane 
Airbus 380 lands 
in India

Rafael Nadal wins the French Open



SHARE
THE
PAINS

Two blasts 
shock Jama 
Masjid in Delhi

Glasgow International Airport 
experiences a terror attack 

News arising out of misled beliefs, 
heated tempers and fanatic 
terrorism....Zee News has been there 
on the scenes to bring audiences the 
lowest ebbs of civilization.

Zee News covers the Prince 
Rescue Operation for the world. 
Its team was present at the 
venue throughout the ordeal and 
provided a minute-by-minute 
coverage of the incident



Saddam Hussein is captured 
and fights for his life

Katrina hurricane hits the USA 

India and Pakistan engage in peace talks

Mumbai reels under the impact 
of bomb blasts in local trains

Indian film industry’s 
patriarch Hrishikesh 
Mukherjee passes away



Bon Jovi performs during the  
Live Earth Concert

Mumbai belly-dances to 
the beats of Shakira

News that are made on the sports 
field, on the stage, on celluloid by 
idols and stars....Zee News has 
charmed the world with moments of 
entertainment and fun.

ENTERTAIN
WITH 
ELAN



Hard rock fans in India treated 
to Aerosmith

The Zee Cine Awards night 
showcases the best talent in  

the industry

Michael Schumacher retires from 
Formula 1 racing

The 79th Academy 
Awards winners 
Forest Whitaker, 
Jennifer Hudson, 
Helen Mirren and 

Alan Arkin

Italy wins the FIFA World Cup



INFORM 
WITH 
RESPONSIBILITY
News that are made of defining moments 
in world politics... of toppling governments, 
changing leadership, landslide reforms...
Zee News brings international headlines and 
newsmakers to enhance the views of informed 
audiences all over the world.

India celebrates 59 
years of independence

Ehud Olmert 
wins the general 
elections in Israel



Tony Blair announces 
his resignation as 
the leader of Britain’s 
Labour Party

Medicos go on strike over 
proposed OBC quota in India

George Bush, 
President of the 
USA visits India

Russian President 
Boris Yeltsin and wife 
Naina attend the 
festivities marking 
the Day of Russia



EMPOWER 
GLOBAL 
AUDIENCES
News that highlight new frontiers, emerging 
business benchmarks, path-breaking 
pioneering work... Zee News empowers 
audiences with knowledge, information and 
achievements of the world at large.

Space shuttle Atlantis takes off on its  
28th flight in space

Water rushes out of the 
Three Gorges Dam on the 
Yangtze River, China 

One of the world’s 
largest warships, the 
USS NIMITZ departs for 
its deployment in the 
Arabian Sea



Nasa launches 
GOES-N weather 
satellite

Democracy 
makes the day 
in the general 
elections in 
Nepal

The first train 
takes off from  
the Lhasa 
railway station 
in Tibet 

Space shuttle Discovery and its seven-
member crew returns safely to Earth

Climate change hits Greenland with the ice layer 
shrinking dramatically in recent years. 
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Zee News

Zee News is the oldest channel of the bouquet 

and reaches millions of viewers in five continents. 

It is the first 24-hour Hindi current affairs and 

news channel in the country and broadcasts 

tailored programming for varied viewer tastes. 

It has been consistently winning awards for 

programming and marketing activities.

Zee Business 

India’s first Hindi business channel, Zee Business 

has redefined business news viewership in India 

by its aggressive programming. Its weekend 

programming has been the first ever in any 

business channel. It has emerged as the “Best 

Business Channel” at the Consumer World 

Awards for the past two years.

Zee Marathi 

Zee Marathi is the premium Marathi channel 

in Maharashtra with its different genre of 

programs like daily soaps, game shows, talk 

shows, cookery, travel shows, news, films 

etc. It has many significant initiatives to its 

credit like the Zee Gaurav Awards and the Zee 

Marathi Awards.

Zee Punjabi

Positioned as a Complete Punjabi Family 

Entertainment Channel, it is the only Punjabi 

channel available in the country. It offers 

entertainment across all genres including 

religious programs, astrology shows, soaps, 

songs, comedy, news etc. throughout the day.

Zee Gujarati 

Positioned as a wholesome entertainment 

channel for Gujaratis in 22 nations across 

the globe, Zee Gujarati provides a platform 

for culture preservation & promotion. Its 

contemporary programming includes current 

affairs/news and festival centric programs. It 

provides a forum for local talent in literature, 

art, music, dance, theatre and handicrafts. 

Zee Telugu 

Zee Telugu caters to the discerning Telugu 

viewers and serves a judicious programming 

mix along with innovative, original concepts 

and high quality production. Creative ideas, 

constant innovation and a feel for popular taste 

has helped the channel to usher in a radical 

change in viewership patterns. 

Zee Bangla 

Zee Bangla enjoys maximum recall amongst the 

Bangla community in West Bengal and other 

regions. Positioned as the leading GEC, it aims 

to deliver some of the finest programmes across 

genres: soaps, game shows, reality shows, 

talent hunts, stand-up comedies, musicals et al 

and enjoys an unparalleled market share during 

prime time. Consistent offering laced with 

innovation has been the keynote of Zee Bangla. 

Zee Kannada

Zee Kannada successfully completed its year of 

presenting unique entertaining and innovative 

programs. It has created a record of sorts with 

an overall viewership increase of 103%! The 

channel has captured the moods, sentiments 

and aspirations of Kannadigas with high quality 

programming and production.

24 Taas

Zee 24 Taas is the first 24-hour Marathi news 

channel with a special thrust on local and 

regional news. Its approach is defined as “local 

news, national outlook and international look.” It 

tries to offer news and insight into every aspect 

of  life from police to politics and entertainment 

to economy.

24 Ghanta

A 24-hour Bengali news Channel, 24 Ghanta 

showcases rich content of solid, accurate and 

authentic information on politics, education, 

sports, business and Bengal’s multifaceted 

cultural life. The emphasis is on accuracy, 

authenticity, speed, innovation, bold exposes, 

incisive analysis and above all, the ability to 

react to major issues and events at the right 

moment.

THE ZNL CHANNEL BOUQUET
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BADI KHABAR

Badi Khabar focuses on the 
journalistic approach of the channel 
and showcases what Zee News 
stands for. The hour-long news show 
concentrates on big and serious 
issues that affect the masses. Badi 
Khabar has bagged the Sansui 
TV Awards 2006-07 for the Best 
Current Affairs program.

PRIME TIME

All the important news of the 
day from politics, sports, current 
affairs et al are aired during the 
Prime Time bulletin.  

THE INSIDE STORY

As a pioneer and thought leader in 
investigative journalism, Zee News brings its 
viewers a program that goes deeper and far 
beyond the usual news and current affairs. 
Zee News’s continuous search for truth has 
helped open the lid on many hidden truths 
besides winning acclaims and awards. 

TAX DOCTOR

A first of its kind program that  
dispenses Income Tax tips.  
Viewers send in their tax queries  
on SMS and receive live answers  
from Zee Business’s Tax Doctor,  
Mr. R. N. Lakhotia (India’s leading  
expert on Income Tax). 

PROPERTY PLUS 

This program looks at opportunities 
in real estate. It covers new projects, 
new homes, new malls and tips to 
make low cost houses. It also includes 
Vaastu, lease deeds, property prices 
and tips in interior decoration.

BAZAAR 

First of its kind, this show features a 
CEO or a marketing head. The anchor 
takes him/her though three different 
markets and asks customers about 
a product from the CEO’s company. 
Viewers get to tell him what they 
like or don’t like about the product. 



AWGHACHI SANSAAR

This is the story of Asavari, a young 
middle class girl who gets married 
to a rich man. Despite the gap 
between her expectations & reality, 
she influences her universe with her  
values for the betterment of the 
people around her. 

SA RE GA MA PA

Taking forward this Zee TV concept,   
Sa Re Ga Ma Pa is a musical talent hunt 
show in Marathi. The finale of Season 1 
was telecast live and was received with 
great enthusiasm from the viewers.  
Season 2 which is a celebrity special 
has been launched.

ADHURI –EK KAHANI

A story of Amrutha, a girl with a 
great persona and grit who fights 
betrayal by the people she has 
forgiven time and again. 
It is about her struggle against her 
politician mother-in-law, Kalyanibai.

SANDHYAARADHANE 

Sandhyaaradhane is yet another first 
of its kind in India. People write to the 
channel with details about themselves 
or their near and dear ones and a pooja 
is offered on their behalf to the gods! 
It is LIVE program. Through the day, 
people can register their details and at 
6.00 p.m. the pooja is performed in the 
temple chosen for that day. 

SUBHASHYA SHEEGRAM

This is a unique matrimonial programme 
wherein a platform is provided for eligible 
singles. Details and photographs of prospects 
are presented on the show and interested 
parents come over to the channels’s office 
to take the matter forward. This program has 
been deemed as  a CSR program.

SUDDHI 180

Suddhi 180 brings news and 
events from around the world 
in a short time. The 180 second 
bulletin gives you nine news 
updates. It is a bold new 
experiment that keeps viewers 
informed and updated 4 times a 
day from morning to evening. 



CHASKA MASKA  

This half-hour daily bulletin takes 
viewers on a vivid tour of Bollywood: 
the sets and locations of films and 
serials in the making, the stars 
and their homes, cinema halls and 
booking windows, film premiers 
and parties, et al. It also covers the 
dignified world of Marathi Theatre. 

ADHOREKHIT 

News that need to be highlighted, as the name 
suggests, are featured in “Adhorekhit”. This one-
hour bulletin presented by the seasoned anchor 
Pradeep Bhide gives viewers the latest news 
at 9 p.m. as also the important news of the 
day. The bulletin attempts to explore different 
angles of the Adhorekhit news by indulging in 
discussion with experts.

SANGINI

It’s a live woman based phone in 
program taking up different issues going 
on in daily life of women. Experts are 
called to answers the questions asked 
by the viewers.

TAZZA HASGULLA

The program fulfills the everlasting need 
of fun in the life of a common man. It’s 
a studio based comedy program, which 
invites humorists who entertain viewers 
with jokes and satires.

Famous comedians like Jagdish Pandya, 
Sabudin Rathore, Vasant Paresh, Kirit 
Vyas, Dinkar Mehta and many others 
entertain us by saying different jokes.

SAPTPADI

Sapt‘padi’ - Seven Promises of marriage is a ritual 
which every individual vows for during their marriage 
ceremony. 

Raman Kumar’s Saptpadi stars Sudha Chandran, 
Bhairvi Raichura, Apra Mehta, Anang Desai and Pratap 
Sachdev in a local flavour on Zee Gujarati. For the first 
time these famous artists are seen performing in a 
Gujarati fiction. Saptpadi is a story of a Girl Anu who 
is entangled between her love and her family, a story 
of a girl who has been very close to her father but 
suddenly gets distant due to her choice of life partner, a 
story of a girl who gets married but is forced to choose 
between her two worlds – her family and her love.

ZEE 24 TAAS VISHESH 

There is always at least one 
issue that emerges each day 
which needs a more focused 
attention and about which 
viewers want to know more. 
Zee 24 Taas identifies such 
issues every day and presents 
it on Zee 24 Taas Vishesh, 
exploring its every angle. 



EXCUSE ME PLEASE

The oldest show on Punjabi TV 
anchored by Satinder Satti, Excuse 
Me Please interacts with people 
everywhere... on the road, in parks, 
at the market... for fun. The show 
has crossed 140 episodes & now 
focuses on people clusters like old 
age homes, theatre groups, bike 
riders, fashion institutes, flying 
clubs, etc.

DIAL E PUNJAB 

This is an interactive show where people can 
dedicate songs through telephone and have 
them played. The USP of the program are its 
anchors – Bhagwant Mann of Jugnu Mast 
Mast & Jasmin Bhatti of Sadda Campus, 
Satinder Satti & Bobby Sandhu.

SA RE GA MA PA  

A platform for talented singers, it is Andhra 
Pradesh’s biggest musical talent hunt show. 
Although the program is in the footsteps of  
Zee TV’s Sa Re Ga Ma Pa, some unique 
features have been added to cater the 
Telugu viewers with a local flavour.

JUGNU MAST MAST  

The concept of this show is to bring 
stand-up comedy that caters to the 
tastes of the masses as well as presents 
satire on social evils. The topics range 
from corrupt politicians and the faltering 
system to housewives and squabbling 
couples, TV channels to dhabas, etc. 

KUNIYONU BAARA

A unique dance competition for celebrities 
of the Kannada film industry, this show 
is an attempt to present different forms 
of dancing under one roof. Celebrity stars 
are teamed up with choreographers to 
compete with each other. Every week has 
a different theme and audiences vote for 
their favourite pair through SMS.

GRAMOPHONE

As a part of the Suvarna Karnataka celebration 
“Nimmoornaag Gramophone Hachteevi” is 
a unique concept that pays tribute to and 
salutes the musical stalwarts of the Kannada 
film industry. Each programme is a grand 
musical evening and has a very entertaining 
and educative script. 



MIRAKKEL 

In today’s world, there is no  leisure to 
enjoy the Royal Bengal mood. However, the 
wit and the sense of humor of the Bengalis 
still remain the same. The main idea 
behind Mirakkel (Miracle) is to bring alive 
the hidden moments of absolute fun in a 
Bengali’s life in the typical Bengali style.

KHELA 

This is a story of a young woman‘s 
fights for justice after the death of 
her lover and being found pregnant. 
Her lover’s  dominating father plots 
to kill her and declare her child as his 
heir. The most interesting part is that 
the wife of her lover comes to her aid 
and helps her out.

TAROKAR MUKHOMUKHI

This show, as the name 
suggests, is a face to face chat 
with celebrities. Each episode 
of the show features a celebrity 
and tries to bring out some of 
his or her intimate  and unheard 
of  details.

8TA THEKE 9TA

This is a unique and the most talked 
about SMS & Live Phone-in program. 
It features the most important news 
of the day, debates, analysis and 
panel discussions. 

SA RE GA MA PA 

This program emerged as the most 
wanted musical entertainment brand and 
the biggest platform for talent recognition 
across Bengal. This program is anchored 
by Debojit, the winner of Zee Sa Re Ga 
Ma Challenge 2005.

REPORTER JENNIE

Reporter Jennie is a unique property 
of  24 Ghanta. The child reporter Jennie 
explores every possible domain and 
comes out with  news for children.  
She looks at the world of the grown-ups 
from a child’s point of view
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G R O U PG R O U P

Notice

NOTICE is hereby given that the 8th Annual General Meeting of the members of Zee News Limited will be held on Tuesday, July 
31, 2007 at 11.30 a.m. at Nehru Auditorium, Nehru Centre, Dr.Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400 018, to transact the 
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To consider and adopt the Audited Profit and Loss Account of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2007 and the 

Balance Sheet as at that date together with the report of the Auditors and Directors thereon.

2. To appoint Director in place of Mr. K.U. Rao, who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible offers himself for 
re-appointment.

3. To appoint Director in place of Mr. Vinod Bakshi, who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible offers himself for 
re-appointment.

4. To appoint M/s. MGB & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the 
conclusion of this meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass following resolution, with or without modification(s), as Special Resolution:

 Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 198, 309 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 1956 (‘the Act’) and subject to approvals as may be required, the Non-Executive Directors of the Company be paid 
remuneration by way of Commission not exceeding 1% of net profits of the Company computed in accordance with the 
provisions of Sections 198(1) of the Act for a period of five years commencing from April 1, 2007, in addition to sitting 
fees for attending the meeting/s of Board of Directors or any Committee thereof, to be divided amongst the Non-Executive 
Directors in such manner and subject to such criteria as the Board of Directors of the Company may determine from time 
to time.”

By order of the Board

Place: Noida    Shailesh Dholakia 
Date: June 28, 2007  Company Secretary

Registered Office:
135, Continental Building,
Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai – 400 018
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Notes:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE 
MUST BE DEPOSITED WITH THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING. 

2. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173 of the Companies Act, 1956, is annexed herewith in respect of special business.

3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Monday, July 23, 2007 to 
Tuesday, July 31, 2007 (both days inclusive).

4. Queries on accounts and operations of the Company, if any, may be sent to the Company Secretary seven days in advance 
of the meeting so as to enable the Management to keep the information ready at the meeting.

5. As required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, relevant information in respect of the Directors seeking re-appointment 
at the Annual General Meeting is given in the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms a part of the Annual Report. 

6. Members who are holding Company’s shares in dematerialized mode are requested to bring details of their Depository 
Account Number for identification.

7. Members are requested to notify immediately about any change in their address/ mandate/ bank details to their Depository 
Participant (DP) in respect of their shareholding in Demat mode and in respect of their physical shareholding to the 
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s Sharepro Services (I) Pvt. Ltd. Satam Estate, 3rd Floor, Above Bank of 
Baroda, Cadinal Gracious Road, Chakala, Andheri (E), Mumbai – 400 099.

8. Under Section 109A of the Companies Act, 1956, members are entitled to make nomination in respect of shares held 
by them in physical mode. Members desirous of making nominations are requested to send their request in Form 2B in 
duplicate to the Company’s R & T Agent at above address. 

9. As a measure of economy, Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report to the meeting. Members / Proxies 
should bring the attendance slip duly filled in and signed for attending the meeting.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 173 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956.

In conformity with the provisions of Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956, the following Explanatory Statement sets out 
all material facts relating to the special business mentioned in the accompanying notice and should be taken as forming part of 
the notice.

ITEM NO. 5 

Presently the Non-Executive Directors of your Company are being paid remuneration in the form of sitting fees for attending 
meeting of the Board of Directors and/or Committee thereof. The responsibilities and liabilities of Non-Executive Directors have 
increased manifold. With the increasing awareness of Corporate Governance, the role and scope of Non-Executive Directors 
have undergone significant changes demanding greater involvement in managing the affairs of the Company.

Keeping in mind the increased role and responsibilities of Non-Executive Directors, the time devoted and contribution made 
and as a measure to attract independent professionals to the Board to guide the Company, your Board at its meeting held on 
June 28, 2007 have recommended, subject to Members approval, payment of Commission to Non-Executive Directors out of 
profits of the Company for a period of 5 years commencing from April 1, 2007. 

However, the aggregate amount of commission payable to all such Non-Executive Directors during any financial year shall 
not exceed 1% of the net profits as computed under Sections 198(1) of the Companies Act, 1956. Payment of Commission, 
if approved by the members, shall be in addition to the sitting fees paid/payable to Non-Executive Directors for attending the 
meeting of Board of Directors and/or Committee thereof.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution for your approval under Section 309(4) of the Companies Act, 1956.

All Non-Executive Directors may be deemed to be interested or concerned in passing of the Special Resolution.

By order of the Board

Place: Noida    Shailesh Dholakia 
Date: June 28, 2007  Company Secretary

Registered Office:
135, Continental Building,
Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai – 400 018
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Directors' Report

To,
The Members of 
Zee News Limited

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 8th Annual 
Report of the Company together with Audited Statement of 
Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2007.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

 (Rs. in ‘000)

 Particulars Year ended Year ended
    31.03.2007 31.03.2006

Gross Income  2,487,875 362,267

Total Expenses 2,323,361 338,327

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 164,514 23,940

Provision For Taxation 65,092 5,777

Profit/(Loss) After Tax,
Before Exceptional Item 99,422 18,163

Exceptional Item 179,167 (32,391)

Profit After Tax &
Exceptional Item 278,589 (14,229)

Balance Brought Forward (97,058) (82,829)

Amount available for
Appropriation  181,531  (97,058)

Appropriations:    

Dividend   – –

General Reserve – –

Balance Carried Forward 181,531   (97,058)

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Zee News Limited, in its first year of operations as an 
independent listed entity has performed creditably. Zee 
Marathi and Zee Bangla have become the leading channels 
in their respective genres while Zee News continues to enjoy 
stable viewership. Zee Telugu is making its mark in Andhra 
Pradesh while Zee Kannada, launched in 2006-07, is steadily 
establishing itself in Karnataka. The year 2006-07 has also 
seen the launch of India’s first 24-hour Marathi News channel 
named “Zee 24 Taas”. “24 Ghanta”, a 24-hour Bengali news 
channel was also launched during the year by your Company’s 
subsidiary and has recorded remarkable share gains. 

With strong content-creation strategies, a sharp focus on 
advertising and subscription growth and a continuous effort to 
optimize costs, we will continue to reinforce our competitive 
edge.

Your Directors are confident of sustaining growth in the future.

DIVIDEND

With a view to conserve resources for future growth, your 
Directors are of the view that the current years profit should 
be ploughed back into the operations and hence no dividend is 
recommended for the year under review. 

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Company has, pursuant 
to the Scheme of Arrangement under Section 391 to 394 
read with 78, 100 to 103 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 1956, and with the approval of Hon’ble 
Bombay High Court, has acquired the News Business from 
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited. 

In consideration of such acquisition and in accordance with the 
provisions of the said Scheme of Arrangement, the Company 
had issued and allotted 195,956,192 equity shares of Re.1 
each fully paid to the shareholders of Zee Entertainment 
Enterprises Limited. The total issued, subscribed and paid 
up capital of the Company, after giving effect of allotment of 
shares as aforesaid and reduction of capital as envisaged in 
the Scheme and approved by the members on July 25, 2006, 
is Rs. 239,763,956 comprising of 239,763,956 equity shares 
of Re.1 each fully paid.

LISTING OF SHARES

Equity Shares issued by the Company in accordance with the 
Scheme of Arrangement alogwith reorganized pre-demerger 
share capital of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock 
Exchange Limited, National Stock Exchange of India Limited with 
effect from January 10, 2007 and on the Calcutta Stock Exchange 
Association Limited with effect from January 12, 2007. 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted 
any deposits within the meaning of Section 58A of the 
Companies Act, 1956 and rules made thereunder.

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of Articles of Association 
of the Company and that of Companies Act, 1956, 
Mr. K. U. Rao and Mr. Vinod Bakshi, Directors of the 
Company, are liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for 
re-appointment. 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards 
of Corporate Governance as prescribed by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India from time to time. Report on 
Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges forms a part of 
the Annual Report.

Certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company, 
M/s. MGB & Co., confirming compliances with the provisions 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 is annexed 
to the Corporate Governance Report.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

During the year under review, your Company has, in accordance 
with the provisions of the joint venture agreement, made 
further equity investment in Zee Akaash News Private Limited, 
the Subsidiary of the Company, by subscribing 570,000 equity 
shares of Rs.10 each at a premium of Rs.104 per share. 

Statement pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act, 
1956 together with audited financial statement, and the 
reports of Directors and Auditors of Company’s subsidiary viz. 
Zee Akaash News Pvt. Ltd. is attached herewith and forms a 
part of this report.

AUDITORS

M/s. MGB & Co., the Statutory Auditors of the Company, 
retire at the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting 
and being eligible, offers themselves for re-appointment as 
Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2007-08.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

I. Energy Conservation and Technology Absorption:

 During the year under review, the Company has not 
carried out any activities involving conservation of energy 
and technology absorption. 

II. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:

 Details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo during 
the year under review is given in Note No. 17 (8.5) of the 
Notes to Accounts. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information required to be furnished under Section 217(2A) of 
the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars 
of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended is annexed to this 
report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT U/S 217 (2AA) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

The Board of Directors hereby confirms and declares:

(i) That the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on 
a going concern basis;

(ii) That in the preparation of the annual accounts the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed along 
with proper explanation relation to material departures, if 
any;

(iii) That the Directors had selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the State of affairs of the Company 
at the end of the financial year; and 

(iv) That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care 
of the maintenance of the adequate accounting records 
in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 
1956 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board take this opportunity to place on record their 
appreciation for the dedication and commitment of employees 
shown at all levels which have contributed to the success 
of your Company. Your Directors also express their gratitude 
for the valuable support and co-operation extended during 
the year by various Governmental Authorities, Stakeholders, 
including Bankers, Financial Institutions, Viewers, Vendors 
and Service Providers. 

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Noida  Laxmi N. Goel Naresh Bajaj 
Date: June 28, 2007 Managing Director Director
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Information as per Section 217 (2A) read with Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 and forming part of the 
Directors Report for the year ended March 31, 2007.

 Name Age Designation Remuneration Qualification Experience Date of Last
    (Rs.)  (Years) Commencement Employment 
       of Employment

*Shri Laxmi  54 Managing 24,83,871 Graduate 29 15/12/2006 Zee Entertain-
N. Goel  Director     ment Enterprises 
        Limited

*Shri Harish 41 CEO 26,45,436 B.Tech (Chem. 17 29/11/2006 East India
Doraiswamy    Engg.); PGDM -    Hotels Limited
     IIM Kolkata 

* Employed for part of the year

Notes:

a) Appointment is contractual and terminable by notice on either side.

b) Remuneration includes Salary, Allowances, Company’s Contribution to Provident Fund, Medical Benefits, Leave Travel 
Allowance, Accommodation and other Perquisites and benefits valued on the basis of Income Tax Act, 1961. 

c) None of the employees, except Mr. Laxmi N. Goel, Managing Director, is related to any Director of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Noida  Laxmi N. Goel Naresh Bajaj
Date: June 28, 2007 Managing Director Director

Annexture to the Directors' Report
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Statement relating to Subsidiary Company pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies 
Act, 1956

1. Name of the Subsidiary Zee Akaash News Pvt. Ltd.

2. The financial year of the subsidiary company ended on March 31, 2007

3. Holding Company Zee News Limited

4. Extent of holding Company’s interest 60%

5. Face value per equity shares Rs.10/-

6. No. of equity shares held by the holding company and/or its subsidiaries 2,399,982

7. Net aggregate amount of profit/(loss) of the subsidiary so far as it concerns
 the members of the holding company and is dealt with in account of holding
 company:
 i) For the financial year ended on March 31, 2007 (Amount in lacs) NIL
 ii) For the previous financial year of the subsidiary since it became a NIL
  subsidiary (Amount in lacs) 

8. Net aggregate amount of profit/(loss) of the subsidiary so far as it concerns
 the members of the holding company and is not dealt with in account of
 holding company:
 i) For the financial year ended on March 31, 2007 (Amount in lacs) (250.19)

 ii) For the previous financial year of the subsidiary since it became a
  subsidiary (Amount in lacs) (0.71)

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Noida  Laxmi N. Goel Naresh Bajaj
Date: June 28, 2007 Managing Director Director
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Corporate Governance Report
The Company believes in adopting the best practices in the areas of Corporate Governance. Even in a fiercely competitive 
business environment, the Management and Employees at all levels of the Company are committed to uphold the core values 
of transparency, integrity, honesty and accountability which are fundamental for any organization. Corporate Governance at Zee 
News Limited cares for the overall well-being and welfare of all constituents of the system and takes into account the stakeholders 
interest in every business decision. The Company has laid strong foundation for making corporate governance a way of life by 
constituting a Board with a balanced mix of experts of eminence and integrity, forming a core group of top executives, inducting 
competent professionals across the organization and putting in place system, process and technology.

This is the first year of listing of Company’s shares on Indian bourses and the Company has set its practices so as to bring them 
in line with the relevant Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The primary role of the Board of Directors is that of trusteeship to protect and enhance stakeholders value through strategic 
supervision at all levels. As trustee, the Board ensures that the Company has clear goal relating to stakeholders value and its 
growth. The Board sets strategic goals and seeks accountability for their fulfillment. The Board also provides direction and 
exercise appropriate control to ensure that the Company is managed in a manner that fulfils stakeholders aspiration and societal 
expectations.

The Board at Zee News is a balanced one, comprising Executive and Non-Executive, Independent Directors. The following is the 
composition of the Board as on March 31, 2007:

Name of the Director Designation Category No. of Board No. of  No. of Committee
   Meetings  Directorship in  positions held   
   attended   other Public in public companies
   during 2006-07 Companies 

    Chairman Member Chairman Member

* Shri Subhash Chandra  Chairman Promoter
  Non-Independent 
  Non-Executive 03 04 03 Nil Nil

* Shri Laxmi N. Goel Managing  Promoter
 Director Executive 06 Nil 07 Nil Nil

* Shri K. U. Rao Director Non-Executive, 
  Independent 01 Nil Nil Nil Nil

* Shri Vinod Bakshi Director Non-Executive, 
  Independent 06 Nil 01 Nil Nil

* Shri Naresh Bajaj Director Non-Executive, 
  Independent 06 04 01 Nil 01

$ Shri Gaurav Goel Director Executive 08 Nil 01 Nil Nil

# Shri Gagan Goel Director Executive  08 Nil Nil Nil Nil

# Shri V. K. Gupta Director Executive  08 Nil 01 Nil Nil

* Appointed w.e.f. 23/11/06,    # Resigned w.e.f. 23/11/06,     $ Resigned w.e.f. 01/12/06

Board Meetings and Procedure:

During the year under review, 13 Board Meetings were held and the gap between two meetings did not exceed four months. The 
dates on which the Board Meetings were held were April 20, 2006, June 8, 2006, June 29, 2006, August 18, 2006, September 4, 
2006, November 10, 2006, November 22, 2006, November 23, 2006, November 28, 2006, December 1, 2006, December 29, 2006, 
January 5, 2007, January 29, 2007. 
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Dates for the Board meetings are decided well in advance and communicated to the Directors. Board meetings are generally 
held at the Corporate Office of the Company. The agenda along with the explanatory notes are sent in advance to the Directors 
to enable them to take informed decisions. Chief Executive Officer and Heads of Departments of Finance and Strategic Planning 
are normally invited to the Board meetings to provide necessary insights into the working of the Company and for discussing 
corporate strategies. The information as required under Annexure IA to Clause 49 is being made available to the Board. Additional 
meetings of the Board are held when deemed necessary by the Board.   

The Board periodically reviews compliance report of all laws applicable to the Company. Steps are taken by the Company to 
rectify instances of non-compliance, if any.

During the year under review, the Company did not have any material pecuniary relationship or transaction with Non-Executive 
Directors.

The Company has adopted Zee’s Code of Conduct for Executive and Non-Executive Directors and Senior Management Personnel 
of the Company. The Company has received confirmation from the Directors as well as senior Management Personnel regarding 
compliance of Code of Conduct during the year under review. The Code of Conduct is also available on Company’s website www.
zeenews.com. 

The Company has also taken Director’s and Officer’s (D&O) liability insurance to protect its Directors and other officers from 
personal liability for financial losses that may arise out of their unintentional wrongful acts or omissions.

Brief profile of the Directors:

The year under review is the first year of interaction with shareholders after listing of Company’s shares on Stock Exchanges 
and as a measure of introduction of Company’s Board of Directors to shareholders, brief profile of all Directors of the Company 
are given.

Subhash Chandra, 57, is the Chairman of the Company and promoter of Essel Group of Companies. His industry leading 
businesses includes television network and film entertainment, cable systems, satellite communications, theme parks, flexible 
packaging, family entertainment centers and online gaming. Mr. Chandra leads the Board of Directors and provides necessary 
guidance to the heads of various businesses and the corporate team to help in setting Company’s strategies.

Mr. Chandra has been the recipient of numerous honorary degrees, industry awards and civic honours, including being named 
‘Global Indian Entertainment Personality of the Year’ by FICCI for 2004, ‘Business Standard’s Businessman of the Year’ in 
1999, ‘Entrepreneur of the Year’ by Ernst & Young in 1999 and ‘Enterprise CEO of the Year’ by International Brand Summit. The 
Confederation of Indian Industry (CII) chose Mr. Chandra as the Chairman of the CII Media Committee for two successive years.

Mr. Chandra has made his mark as an influential philanthropist in India. He set up TALEEM (Transnational Alternate Learning for 
Emancipation and Empowerment through Multimedia), an organization which seeks to provide access to quality education and to 
promote research in various disciplines relating to health & family life, social & cultural anthropology, communication and media. 
He is also the trustee for the Global Vippassana Foundation, a trust set up for helping people in spiritual upliftment.

Apart from the Company, Mr. Chandra holds directorship in Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited, Wire and Wireless (India) 
Limited, Dish TV India Limited, Essel Infraprojects Limited, Essel Propack Limited, Agrani Satellite Services Limited and United 
News of India. Mr. Chandra does not hold any shares in the Company.

Laxmi Narain Goel, 54, is the Managing Director of the Company and one of its promoters. He is one of the key architects 
of the Essel Group of Companies. He started his career in 1969 trading agro commodities and established “Rama Associates 
Limited” along with his brothers. In 1980, he diversified the Group’s activities into handicraft exports and real estate development 
business. He has contributed enormously in the establishment and progress of Essel Propack Ltd. 

At present Mr. Goel holds the position of Vice Chairman of the Essel Group of Companies and is actively involved in the day-to-
day developmental activities of the Group. In the short span of time since he took over as Director - News Group, in June 2002, 
Mr.Goel has successfully positioned Zee News into its market leading position. With human-interest stories as the focus of his 
editorial policy, he has touched the hearts and lives of the common citizens of India.
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Besides business, he is actively involved in social philanthropic work. He has been the trustee of the Agroha Vikas Trust for more 
than decade. He is also the trustee of the Delhi chapter of the Trust, which undertakes a number of noble social causes including 
the building and running of colleges, schools and temples. Mr. Goel was head of affairs of the Sewak Sabha Hospital, Hissar, 
Haryana, for two years. 

Apart from the Company, Mr. Goel holds directorship in Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited, Rama Associates Limited, Essel 
International Limited, Rankey Investments & Trading Co. Limited, ASC Telecommunication Limited, East India Company (Trading) 
Limited, Siti Energy Limited. Mr. Goel holds 791,175 (0.33%) equity shares of Re.1 each fully paid up of the Company in his 
personal capacity and 46,599 (0.02%) equity shares of Re.1 each fully paid up as a Trustee of Shareholders who were entitled to 
receive fraction shares pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement. 

K. U. Rao, 46, is a Non-Executive Independent Board member of the Company. He carries with himself rich and global experience 
of more than 23 years in the fields of Sales and Marketing and has held various senior positions in internationally reputed 
companies like Shell Car Care, Shell Lubricants, ONIDA, Phillips India etc. Presently Mr. Rao is associated with Diligent Media 
Corporation Limited (DNA) as Chief Executive Officer.

Apart from the Company, Mr. Rao does not hold any directorship in any other public Company and also does not hold any share 
in the Company.

Vinod Bakshi, 67, is a Non-Executive Independent Board member of the Company. Mr. Bakshi has a professional career spanning 
over 30 years in domestic and overseas marketing, Liaison & Administration and held various senior positions across the globe 
like Care India, Gabriel India Ltd., Escorts Ltd., Williamson & Magor Group, Exide Industries Ltd., British Broadcasting Corporation 
etc. His experience includes sales consolidation, establishment of effective distribution network in India and abroad, image 
building, advertising, public relations etc. Mr. Bakshi was awarded for his performance in dramatics and singing. He is also a 
member of Lalita Kala Academy and Central Film Censor Board.

Apart from the Company, Mr. Bakshi holds directorship in Essel Shyam Communication Limited. Mr. Bakshi does not hold any 
share in the Company.

Naresh Bajaj, 69, is a Non-Executive Independent Board member of the Company Mr. Bajaj is a well known industrialist 
having nearly 45 years of experience in running and management of industrial enterprises. Mr. Bajaj has diversified business 
interests like manufacturing of edible oil products and other FMCG commodities viz. vanaspati oils, refined oils, table margarine, 
dairy products, paper products etc. since 1961. Mr. Bajaj is also associated with various Trade Associations and Chambers of 
Commerce & Industry and held various senior positions. Amongst others, Mr. Bajaj was President of Indian Vansapati Producers’ 
Association, Chairman of IVPA Research Trust, Vice President of Central Organization for Oil Industry & Trade, President of AIMO, 
Chairman of Delhi Public School, Executive Member, PHD Chamber of Commerce & Industry etc.

Apart from the Company, Mr. Bajaj holds directorship in Amrit Banaspati Company Limited, Amrit Enterprises Limited, Amrit Agro 
Industries Limited, Amrit Learnings Limited and SRGP Industries Limited. Mr. Bajaj does not hold any share in the Company.

BOARD LEVEL COMMITTEES

The Board has constituted various committees for smooth and efficient operation of the activities and is responsible for constituting, 
assigning, co-opting and fixing the terms of reference in line with the law of land. The draft minutes of the proceedings of each 
committee meeting are circulated to the members of that Committee for their comments and thereafter, confirmed in its next 
meeting. The Board also takes note of the minutes of the meetings of the committees duly approved by their respective Chairman 
and the material recommendations/decisions of the Committees are placed before the Board for approval/information. The 
quorum and the terms of reference of each committee has been approved by the Board.   

Audit Committee:

The Company has constituted an Audit Committee on November 23, 2006. The scope of the activities of the Audit Committee 
is as set out in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges read with Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956. 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are broadly as follows:

1. Oversight of Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial information.

2. Review with the management, quarterly and annual financial statements and related party transactions.
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3. Review the Company’s financial and risk management policies.

4. Review with the management, external and internal auditors, the adequacy of internal control systems.

5. Review the financial statements of subsidiary companies. 

6. Recommend to the Board the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the statutory auditor, fixation of their 
remuneration.

7. Discussion with external auditors about nature and scope of audit as well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of 
concern and internal control weaknesses observed by the Statutory Auditors. 

8. Discussion of Internal Audit Reports with internal auditors and significant findings and follow up there on and in particular 
Internal Control weaknesses.

The composition of the Audit Committee is in line with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and the details of meetings attended 
by the Directors are given below:

Name of the Director Designation       Category No. of meetings attended during 
the year under review

Shri Naresh Bajaj Chairman Non-Executive, Independent 03

Shri Vinod Bakshi Member Non-Executive, Independent 03

Shri K. U. Rao Member Non-Executive, Independent NIL

Shri Laxmi N. Goel Member Promoter, Executive 03

Shri Naresh Bajaj, Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the 7th Annual General Meeting held on December 28, 
2006.

Audit Committee meetings are generally attended by Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and representatives of 
Statutory Auditors. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

During the year under review, Audit Committee meetings were held on November 28, 2006, January 5, 2007 and January 29, 
2007 at which necessary quorum was present.

Remuneration Committee:

The Remuneration Committee was constituted on November 23, 2006 and comprises of Shri Vinod Bakshi, Non-
Executive Independent Director, Shri K. U. Rao, Non-Executive Independent Director and Shri Subhash Chandra, 
Non-Executive Director. The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. The broad terms of reference of the 
Remuneration Committee are as follows:

q To decide all the elements of remuneration package of all the executive directors and senior managerial executives. 

q To decide on details of fixed component and performance linked incentives along with the performance criteria.

q To decide on the terms and conditions of the service contracts, notice period and severance fees.

q To decide the eligibility criteria, stock option details, price of issue and term over which exercisable.  

Since the remuneration of Shri Laxmi N. Goel as Managing Director was approved by the Board at its meeting held on November 
23, 2006 at which the Remuneration Committee was constituted, no meeting of Remuneration Committee was held during the 
year under review. 

Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees @ Rs. 10,000 for attending meetings of the Board of 
Directors, Audit Committee and Share Transfer & Investor Grievance Committee.

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and allowances to the Managing Director within the range 
approved by the shareholders of the Company.
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Details of remuneration paid to Directors of the Company during the year under review is as under:

Name of the Director Category Salary, Allowances and 
Perquisites

Sitting Fees

Shri Subhash Chandra Chairman - Non-Executive Director Nil 10,000

Shri Laxmi N. Goel Managing Director – Executive Director 24,83,871 Nil

Shri K. U. Rao Non-Executive Independent Director Nil Nil

Shri Vinod Bakshi Non-Executive Independent Director Nil 20,000

Shri Naresh Bajaj Non-Executive Independent Director Nil 20,000

Share Transfer & Investor Grievance Committee:

Share Transfer & Investor Grievance Committee was constituted on November 23, 2006, consist of Shri K. U. Rao, Non-Executive 
Independent Director as Chairman, Shri Naresh Bajaj, Non-Executive Independent Director and Shri Subhash Chandra, Non-
Executive Director.  The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. 

Main function of this committee is to strengthen investor relations. The Company Secretary, being the Compliance Officer, is 
entrusted with the responsibility, to specifically look into the redressal of the shareholders and investors complaints and report 
the same to Share Transfer & Investor Grievance Committee. 

During the year under review the Committee met on January 5, 2007. The Company had received 6 complaints during the year 
under review, relating to non-receipt of share certificates and all of them were redressed.

In addition to the above Committees, the Board has constituted 2 more Committees viz. Finance Sub-Committee and Corporate 
Management Committee mainly to look after the day-to-day finance function of the Company and other routine administrative 
matters. These Committees consist of Directors and other senior managerial personnels.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS   

The 8th Annual General Meeting of the Company for the year 2006-07 will be held on Tuesday, July 31, 2007 at 11.30 a.m. at 
Nehru Auditorium, Nehru Centre, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400 018.

Details of Annual General Meetings held during last 3 years are as follows:

Financial Year Day, Date and time of the meeting Venue

2005-06 Thursday, December 28, 2006 at 11.00 a.m.
135, Continental Building, Dr. A.B. Road, Worli, 
Mumbai - 400 018

2004-05 Friday, September 30, 2005 at 11.00 a.m.

2003-04 Thursday, September 30, 2004 at 11.00 a.m.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Scheme of Arrangement and to give effect to those provisions, an Extra Ordinary General Meeting 
was held on July 25, 2006 for sub-division of equity shares from the face value Rs.10 per share to Re.1 per share, increase in 
authorized share capital, reduction of capital and consequential amendments in Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company. 

At the last Annual General Meeting held on December 28, 2006, the Company passed Special Resolution for amendment in 
Articles of Association of the Company and the same was passed unanimously. 

Other than the above, there were no special resolutions passed during last three years. Since shares of the Company were 
admitted for listing and trading w.e.f. January 10, 2007, the provisions relating to postal ballot were not applicable to the 
Company. None of the resolutions proposed for the ensuing Annual General Meeting need to be passed by Postal Ballot.

DISCLOSURES

There are no materially significant related party transactions, which have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at 
large. Transactions with related parties are disclosed in Notes to Accounts in the Annual Report.
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The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities on all matters 
relating to capital markets during the year under review and no penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by 
any Stock Exchange, SEBI or other statutory authorities relating to above matters.

The Company has complied with the following non-mandatory requirement as prescribed in Annexure ID to Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges.

• The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee comprising of three Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman being 
an Independent Director. Details of the Committee are given in this report under the head Board Level Committees.

A qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out a secretarial audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed 
capital. The Audit confirms that the total issued/ paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical and 
the total number of dematerialised shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

Means of Communication:

The Company has promptly reported all material information including declaration of quarterly financial results, press releases 
etc. to all Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed. Such information is also simultaneously displayed on 
the Company’s website www.zeenews.com. The financial results, quarterly, half yearly and annual results and other statutory 
information were communicated to the shareholders by way of advertisement in a English daily “Daily News & Analysis” (DNA) 
and “Business Standard” and in a vernacular language newspapers “Punya Nagri” and “Navshakti” as per the requirements of 
the Stock Exchanges.

Official news releases and presentation made to institutional investors or to the analysts are displayed on Company’s website 
www.zeenews.com.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of this Annual Report is annexed separately. All matters pertaining to 
industry structure and developments, opportunities and threats, segment wise performance, outlook, risk and concern, internal 
control and systems etc. are discussed in the said report.

Auditors’ Certificate
To,
The Members, 
Zee News Limited
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Zee News Limited (‘the Company’), for the year 
ended March 31, 2007 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the Company with the Stock Exchanges.
The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited 
to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the 
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion of the financial statements of the Company.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has 
compiled with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. 
We state that no investor grievances is pending for a period exceeding thirty days against the Company as per the records 
maintained by the Company.
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

L. K. Shrishrimal
Partner
M. No. 72664
For and on behalf of
MGB & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Noida, June 28, 2007
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General Shareholder Information: 

1. AGM Date, Time and Venue Tuesday, July 31, 2007 at 11.30 a.m. at Nehru Auditorium, Nehru Centre, 
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400 018 

2. Financial Calendar April 1, 2006 to March 31, 2007

3. Date of Book closure Monday, July 23, 2007 to Tuesday, July 31, 2007 (both days inclusive)

4. Dividend Payment Date The Board of Directors has not recommended payment of dividend to the 
shareholders of the Company for the year under review.

5. Listing on Stock Exchanges The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on:

•  Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)

•  National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

•  Calcutta Stock Exchange Association Limited (CSE)

Listing fees for the year 2007-08 has been paid to above Stock Exchanges.

6. Stock Code BSE : 532794

NSE : ZEENEWS EQ

BSE NSE

Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Volume of Share 
Traded

High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Volume of Shares 
Traded

January 2007 58.85 29.80 48,111,148 89.00 29.60 60,308,311

February 2007 45.90 31.00 81,266,893 45.90 30.05 106,610,462

March 2007 42.25 33.65 20,574,209 42.40 33.60 30,121,739

7. Market Price Data

 The shares of the Company have been admitted for listing and trading on Stock Exchanges w.e.f. January 10, 2007, monthly 
high and low quotations and volume of shares traded on BSE & NSE from that date till March 31, 2007 are given as under.

8. Performance of Share Price of the Company in comparision to the BSE Sensex
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9. Registrar and Transfer Agents Sharepro Services (I) Pvt. Ltd
Satam Estate, 3rd Floor, Above Bank of Baroda, 
Cadinal Gracious Road, Chakala, Andheri (E), Mumbai – 400 099. 
Tel: +91-22-2821 5168 / 2821 5991 
Fax: +91-22-2837 5646 
E-mail: sharepro@vsnl.com

10. Share Transfer System Share transfers in physical form can be lodged with Company’s Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent M/s. Sharepro Services (I) Pvt. Ltd. at above mentioned 
address.

    The transfers are normally processed within 15 days from the date of receipt of 
complete documents. The Share Transfer and Investors Grievance Committee 
have authorised the Company Secretary and representative of R&T Agent 
jointly to approve  share transfers.

No. of Equity Share Share Holders No. of Shares

Number % of Holders Number % of  Shares

Upto 5000 125,645 99.54% 17,266,031 7.20%

5001-10000 249 0.20% 1,843,248 0.77%

10001-20000 118 0.09% 1,701,880 0.71%

20001-30000 48 0.03% 1,195,088 0.50%

30001-40000 24 0.01% 850,664 0.36%

40001-50000 16 0.03% 759,490 0.32%

50001-100000 41 0.03% 2,819,656 1.17%

100001 and Above 94 0.07% 213,327,899 88.97%

Total 126,235 100.00% 239,763,956 100.00%

11b. Categories of Shareholders as on March 31, 2007

11a. Distribution of shareholding  of the Company as on March 31, 2007

Promoters
54.16%

Individuals
8.81%

FIS/MF/Bank
10.54%

FIIS/NRIS/OCBS
22.60%

Indian Companies
3.89%
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12. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form and are 
available for trading on both the Depositories in India i.e. NSDL & CDSL. 

As on March 31, 2007, 194,205,705 equity shares representing 81% of the 
Company’s total paid up capital have been dematerialized.

Under the Depository system, the International Securities Identification 
Number (ISIN) allotted to the Company’s shares is INE966H01019

13. Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or 
any Convertible instruments, conversion 
date and likely impact on equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or convertible 
instruments during the year 2006-07. 

14. Compliance Officer/Investor Relation 
Officer and address for correspondence 

Mr. Shailesh Dholakia 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
135, Continental Building, 
Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai – 400 018 
Tel:  +91-22-6697 1234 
Fax: +91-22-2495 5974 
E-mail : irznl@zeenetwork.com 
Website: www.zeenews.com

15. Plant Locations Essel Studio, FC-19, Sector 16A,
Noida – 201 301, (U.P.), India 
Tel: +91-0120-2511 064 
Fax: +91-0120-2511 186
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Management Discussion and Analysis 
The figures have been stated in Rs. Million in the MD&A for 
better readability. 

Investors are cautioned that this discussion contains forward 
looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties 
including, but not limited to, risks inherent in the Company’s 
growth strategy, acquisition plans, dependence on certain 
businesses, and dependence on availability of qualified and 
trained manpower and other factors. The following discussion 
and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Company’s 
financial statements included herein and the notes thereto. 

OVERVIEW

Zee News Limited is one of India’s foremost media and 
entertainment companies with strong presence in the news 
and regional entertainment genres. 

The Company was incorporated as Zee Sports Limited on 
August 27, 1999. The name of the Company was changed to 
Zee News Limited on May 27, 2004 after obtaining a fresh 
Certificate of Incorporation from the Registrar of Companies, 
Mumbai.

Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited (ZEEL), the erstwhile 
Zee Telefilms Limited, transferred news-gathering activities 
to Zee News Limited in compliance with the News Up-
linking Guidelines of Government of India, w.e.f. October 
2005. Moving forward, News and regional entertainment 
related business (Zee News, Zee Business, Zee Bangla, Zee 
Punjabi, Zee Marathi, Zee Telugu and Zee Kannada) of ZEEL got 
de-merged into Zee News Limited as per Scheme of 
Arrangement approved by the Hon’ble High Court of Bombay 
vide its Order dated 17.11.2006. This was done to not only 
make the Company compliant with all regulatory requirements, 
but also to enable clear management focus and direction to 
be imparted to the various properties of the Company. Value-
creation for the shareholders was kept uppermost in mind. 

The Company got listed at Bombay Stock Exchange, National 
Stock Exchange on 10.01.2007 & Calcutta Stock Exchange 
on 12.01.2007. The response from investors has been 
encouraging.

The Company has many firsts to its credit 

• First 24 x 7 Hindi News Channel 
• First Hindi Business News Channel
• First 24 x 7 Marathi News Channel

BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Broadcasting

The channels operated by Zee News Limited are Zee News, 
Zee Business, Zee 24 Taas, Zee Punjabi, Zee Marathi, Zee 

Bangla, Zee Gujarati, Zee Telugu and Zee Kannada. In addition, 
Zee Akaash News Private Limited, a company in which your 
Company has a 60% stake, operates 24 Ghanta, a 24 x 7 
Bengali news channel.

In terms of news-gathering, the Company has the largest 
network of news bureaus & correspondents with a pan-India 
presence. The Company’s news-gathering capabilities are 
significantly enhanced by its KU Band network and strong 
relationships with international news agencies. The Company 
is equipped with state-of-art technology in content creation, 
packaging and broadcasting. Zee News is one of India’s 
leading Hindi news channels, with a rich legacy of incisive 
news reporting and presentation. Zee Business is India’s 
first Hindi business channel and has a long-term mission of 
making business news relevant and accessible to a mass 
Hindi audience. To further its vision of bringing 24 x 7 news 
to the homes of all Indian homes in their native language, your 
Company launched India’s first Marathi news channel, Zee 
24 Taas, in February 2007. 24 Ghanta is a successful Bengali 
news channel, chalking up impressive gains in a short period. 

The regional entertainment portfolio of your Company is 
unmatched in terms of reach and performance. Zee Bangla and 
Zee Marathi are the leading channels in their respective genres, 
while Zee Gujarati and Zee Punjabi have a loyal following in 
their respective markets. Zee Telugu and Zee Kannada, the 
relatively recent launches in the South India market, have 
made their presence felt in highly competitive but potentially 
lucrative markets. Most of the regional channels under your 
Company include news as an important part of their content.

With most of the channels under its portfolio already operating 
in pay mode, your Company derives substantial subscription 
revenues and is therefore ideally positioned to monetise its 
properties for the benefit of its shareholders. 

Distribution

The Company has an arrangement with Zee Turner Ltd. to 
distribute its pay channels bouquet in India and neighbouring 
countries. Zee Turner has also been assigned to distribute the 
Company’s bouquet of pay channels on DTH platforms as 
well.

Up-linking of Channels

The Company has an arrangement with Dish TV India Limited 
(formerly known as ASC Enterprises Limited – ‘Dish TV’) for 
up-linking of its channels through their teleport. Dish TV has 
a license for up-linking of TV channels from the competent 
Government Authority. 
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BUSINESS STRATEGY

Background 

As per the latest FICCI-Price Waterhouse Coopers report on the 
India Media and Entertainment Industry, the Indian Television 
Industry is projected to grow at a compounded annual growth 
rate (CAGR) of 24% to reach Rs. 4,27,000 million by 2010. 
Subscription revenues are expected to contribute a lion’s share 
this accounting for Rs. 306,000 million by 2010, growing at a 
CAGR of 29%. Digitalization and addressability will ensure that 
the broadcasters’ share of subscription revenues grow even 
faster. As per the report, advertising revenues garnered by the 
Indian Television are expected to grow at a CAGR of 14% to 
touch Rs. 1,05,000 million by 2010. 

Future strategy

1. Consolidate current offerings:

 Zee News Limited will focus on strengthening its position 
in each of the segments/genres that it presently operates 
in. Continuous efforts to improve content enhance viewer 
experience and drive 360-degree monetisation across 
platforms and markets will hold the key. The explosive 
viewer ship gains of channels like Zee Bangla and Zee 
Marathi are testimony to these efforts. In the long-term, 
digitization will provide a fillip to your Company’s efforts 
to grow the subscription revenues generated by its 
portfolio of viewer-preferred channels. 

2. Expand channel bouquet:

 Your Company, as in the past, will continue to search 
for viable opportunities to reach out to regional and 
linguistic audiences through a judicious blend of news, 
entertainment and ‘infotainment’.

3. Focus on building shareholder value:

 One of the important reasons for the creation of Zee News 
Limited has been to provide high-level management 
attention and focus each of the channels. This is starting 
to yield results. Our endeavour will be re double our efforts 
in this direction to create enhanced shareholder value.

4. Corporate Governance:

 The Company firmly believes that good governance is 
critical to sustaining corporate development, increasing 
productivity and competitiveness and creating 
shareholder wealth. The governance process should 
ensure that the available resources are utilized in a manner 
that meets the aspirations of all its stakeholders. Your 
Company’s essential charter is shaped by the objectives 
of transparency, professionalism and accountability. The 
Company continuously endeavours to improve on these 
aspects on an ongoing basis.

FINANCIALS AND FINANCIAL POSITION 

Standalone and Consolidated Financials as on March 31, 
2007:

Table below presents Company’s Financials Standalone & 
Consolidated both for the Current and previous Financial Year. 

Financials of the current year are not comparable with the 
previous year as revenue & expenses of the channels that de 
merged from Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited (ZEEL) 
into the Company were included in the financials of ZEEL. 
However, pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement the assets 
& liabilities of the said channels were transferred to Zee News 
Limited and incorporated in its financials for the year ended 
31.03.2006. 

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended
Rs. Million

Standalone Consolidated

31-Mar-07 31-Mar-06 31-Mar-07 31-Mar-06
INCOME

Sales and Services 2,357.30 358.65 2,405.12 358.67
Other Income 130.57 3.61 130.59 3.62
 2,487.87 362.27 2,535.71 362.29
EXPENDITURE    
Operational Cost 1,145.81 112.39 1,187.86 115.18
Personnel Cost 343.66 95.49 367.71 96.23
Administrative and Other Expenses 263.63 71.25 282.45 75.79
Selling and Distribution Expenses 471.27 31.60 490.01 31.61
 2,224.37 310.73 2,328.03 318.81
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Profit and Loss Account for the year ended Rs. Million

Standalone Consolidated

31-Mar-07 31-Mar-06 31-Mar-07 31-Mar-06

OPERATING PROFIT 263.51 51.54 207.68 43.49

Financial Expenses 51.14 12.65 51.14 12.65

Depreciation / Amortisation 47.85 14.94 52.10 14.94

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 164.51 23.94 104.45 15.88

Less: Provision for Taxation 65.09 5.78 46.22 5.83

PROFIT AFTER TAX AND BEFORE MINORTY INTEREST — — 58.23 10.05

Minority Interest — — 16.48 3.24

PROFIT AFTER TAX 99.42 18.16 74.71 13.29

Balance Sheet as at Rs. Million

Standalone Consolidated

31-Mar-07 31-Mar-06 31-Mar-07 31-Mar-06

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS    

Share Capital 239.76 418.00 239.76 418.00

Reserve and Surplus 1,602.66 1,421.12 1,573.07 1,421.12

 1,842.42 1,839.12 1,812.88 1,839.12

DEFFERED TAX BALANCES (Net) 20.19 7.27 0.63 7.27

LOAN FUNDS 13.01 551.10 13.01 551.10

MINORITY INTEREST — — 35.80 8.96

 1,875.61 2,397.50 1,862.27 2,406.46

FIXED ASSETS

Gross Block (at cost ) 747.11 513.69 863.64 548.13

Less: Depreciation Up-to-date 75.37 28.30 79.62 28.30

Net Block 671.74 485.39 784.02 519.83

Capital Work-in-progress 23.97 48.60 23.97 48.60

 695.71 534.00 808.00 568.44

INVESTMENTS 83.28 18.30 — —

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

Program and Film Rights 484.29 191.37 484.29 191.37

Inventories 1.43 2.55 1.93 4.49

Sundry Debtors 977.58 748.92 1,018.69 748.94

Cash and Bank Balances 39.08 10.26 40.96 11.54

Loans and Advances 527.58 1,380.04 480.74 1,383.50

 2,029.96 2,333.15 2,026.60 2,339.85
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Balance Sheet as at Rs. Million

Standalone Consolidated

31-Mar-07 31-Mar-06 31-Mar-07 31-Mar-06

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Current Liabilities 849.49 558.07 886.94 577.08

Provisions 83.85 26.94 85.63 26.99

 933.34 585.01 972.56 604.07

NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,096.62 1,748.14 1,054.04 1735.78

MISCLLENOUS EXPENSES TO THE EXTENT NOT 
WRITTEN OFF

— — 0.24 0.32

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT — 97.06 — 101.92

 1,875.61 2,397.50 1,862.27 2,406.46

Standalone:
Sources of Funds 

Share Capital, Reserves & Surplus 

Share Capital stood at Rs. 239.76 million (Rs. 418.00 million as 
on 31.03.2006) due to the reason that on the record date, the 
holding of FIIs being not exceeding 32% of paid up equity share 
capital of ZEEL hence no preference shares were required to 
be issued to the FIIs. Therefore, difference between provision 
of Rs. 183.06 million in this respect in the Share Capital 
Suspense and face value of equity shares of Rs. 48.24 million 
to be issued to FIIs amounting to Rs.178.24 is written back to 
the current year’s profit and loss account.

Reserve and Surplus

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement approved by Hon’ble 
Bombay High Court vide its Order dated 17.11.2006 the news 
business of ZEEL was transferred to the Company w.e.f. 
31.03.2006 on a going concern basis. The Scheme has been 
given effect to in the financial statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2006 except reorganization and allotment of the 
share capital, which has been given effect in these financial 
statements. Accordingly, the surplus on account of transfer, 
cancellation of inter company loans and advances, cancellation 
of Investment of ZEEL in ZNL and other assets aggregating 
Rs. 1,344.62 million is adjusted against Capital Reserve Account.

Reserve and Surplus amounted to Rs. 1,602.66 million 
(Rs. 1,421.12 million as on 31.03.2006) an increase of 
Rs. 181.54 million, out of which Rs. 178.24 million relates to 
write back of Share Capital Suspense account as explained 
above and balance Rs. 3.30 million is net of accumulated Profit 
& Loss account balance till 31.03.2007. 

Loan Funds 

Total loan funds as on March 31, 2007 stood at Rs. 13.01 
million as against Rs. 551.10 million on March 31, 2006 which 
included transfer of specific and general purpose borrowings 
of Rs. 529.82 million pursuant to the scheme of arrangement. 

Application of Funds 

Fixed Assets 

Net additions to Gross Block in fiscal 2007 amounted to 
Rs. 233.42 million. The significant additions in fiscal 2007 
were:

a) Plant & Machinery Rs. 180.57 million – out of which 
Plant & Machinery worth Rs. 100.47 million was meant 
for launch of new 24 x 7 Marathi News channel named 
as 24 Taas & the rest Rs. 80.10 million was to meet the 
requirements of other channels.

b) Equipments Rs. 26.90 million mainly consisting of 
electrical equipments Rs. 10.83 received as part of 
Scheme of Arrangement & balance Rs. 16.07 million 
relates to additions of computers, electrical equipments, 
office equipments etc.

c) Vehicles Rs. 6.49 million relates mainly to acquisition 
of vehicles for OB Vans and other vehicles for various 
channels including the new channel.

d) Leasehold Improvements Rs. 3.73 million represents 
expenses of enduring nature incurred on new leasehold 
office premises at Mumbai. 

e) Software Rs. 15.79 million mainly consisted of Rs. 13.50 
million software for graphics function & the balance 
Rs. 2.29 million for various other functions.
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Investments 

During the year the Company has acquired 5,70,000 equity 
shares of Rs. 10/- each of in its subsidiary Company Zee 
Akaash News Pvt. Ltd. at a price of Rs. 114/- per share. 

Current Assets 

Program/Film Rights 

Program/Film rights held by the Company increased from 
Rs. 191.37 million on March 31, 2006 to Rs. 484.29 million 
on March 31, 2007. This is mainly due to the acquisition of 
programs for its channels in south namely Zee Telugu & Zee 
Kannada.

Sundry Debtors 

Sundry Debtors as on March 31, 2007 aggregated to Rs. 977.58 
million (Rs. 748.91 million as on March 31, 2006) representing 
an increase of 30.53% over the previous fiscal year’s debtors. 
This is in line with the increase in Sales & Services volume 
during 2007 fiscal. However the Company has increased its 
focus on collection of aging outstanding amounts during the 
year. 

Cash and Bank Balances 

The cash and bank balances lying with the Company, as on 
March 31, 2007 was Rs. 39.08 million as against Rs. 10.26 
million on March 31, 2006.

Loans and Advances 

The Loans and Advances have reduced from Rs. 1,380.04 
million on March 31, 2006 to Rs. 527.58 million on March 31, 
2007.

Current Liabilities and Provisions 

Current Liabilities and Provisions have increased by Rs. 348.33 
million during the year. 

Current Liabilities 

Current liabilities were reduced from Rs. 558.07 on March 31, 
2006 to Rs. 291.42 million on March 31, 2007. 

Provisions 

Provisions made increased from Rs. 26.94 million as on March 
31, 2006 to Rs. 83.85 million as on March 31, 2007. 

Net Current Assets

The Net current assets have decreased from Rs. 1,748.14 
million to Rs. 1,096.62 million representing a decrease of  
Rs. 651.52 million which is resultant of Inter Corporate deposit 
of Rs. 125.23 received back and increase in other current 
assets. 

Consolidated

Consolidated Financials of the current year are also not 
comparable as the Company’s only subsidiary M/s. Zee 
Akaash News Pvt. Ltd. (ZANPL – 60% holding) became 
subsidiary in the previous financial year and its only channel 
came in operation during April 07.

Reserves & Surplus

Reserve and Surplus stood at to Rs. 1,573.07 million 
(Rs. 1,421.12 million as on 31.03.2006) an increase of 
Rs. 151.95 million, out of which Rs. 178.24 million relates 
to write back of Share Capital Suspense account, balance 
Rs. 3.30 million net of accumulated Profit & Loss account 
balance till 31.03.2007 and Rs. 29.59 million accumulated loss 
(net of minority interest) of subsidiary company.

Loan Funds 

Total loan funds as on March 31, 2007 stood at Rs. 13.01 
million as against Rs. 551.10 million on March 31, 2006 which 
included transfer of specific and general purpose borrowings 
of Rs. 529.82 million pursuant to the scheme of arrangement. 

Minority Interest

Minority Interest increased to Rs. 35.80 million from Rs. 8.96 
million as on 31.03.2006. This is due to the fresh allotment of 
3,80,000 equity shares to Sky B (Bangla) Pvt. Ltd. at a price of 
Rs. 114/- per share during the current fiscal and adjustment of 
minority share of Rs. 16.48 million in the current year’s loss of 
subsidiary company.

Fixed Assets

There is an increase of Rs. 315.51 million in Gross Block of fixed 
assets, out of which Rs. 233.42 million is the net additions 
in Zee News Limited, the additions in subsidiary company is 
on account of mainly plant & machinery amounting Rs. 82.09 
million during the current fiscal.

Sundry Debtors 

Sundry Debtors as on March 31, 2007 stood at Rs. 1,018.69 
million (Rs. 748.94 million as on March 31, 2006) representing 
an increase of Rs. 269.75 over the previous fiscal year’s debtors. 
The increase includes debtors amounting to Rs. 41.08 million 
relating to the subsidiary company’s current year’s operations.

RISK FACTORS 

The Company operates in a highly competitive industry 
that is attracting a raft of new players and is subject to 
technological and regulatory changes.

With increasing number of players entering the Broadcasting 
Industry, more specifically News Broadcasting, competition 



Zee News Limited

47

is ever increasing. Technological and regulatory changes 
have spawned new distribution platforms. To maintain its 
competitive edge in such a scenario, the Company will need to 
anticipate viewer preferences to create, acquire, commission 
and produce compelling content and maintain viewer-pull. It 
will also need to reinforce its ability to do so at favourable 
commercial terms. While the Company proposes to make 
investments in content and technology to stay ahead of the 
game, it is impossible to predict how future changes could 
affect the Company’s competitiveness. 

Despite the best efforts of the Company, acceptance of the 
Company’s programming by viewers is difficult to predict. 
This could result in unpredictable ratings and revenues.

While the Company uses a combination of research and 
experience gathered over several years to create, acquire or 
commission content, it is impossible to predict with certainty 
its appeal to audiences and therefore its commercial success. 
Programming initiatives of competing channels and genres, 
availability of alternate forms of entertainment and a variety 
of other tangible and intangible factors have a bearing on 
the final outcome, none of which lend themselves to certain 
predictions. Lack of viewer acceptance for content could also 
result in slippage in subscription and syndication revenues. 
Such unpredictability could adversely affect the Company’s 
performance. 

New channel launches might not be successful in the 
marketplace. 

Recent launches as well as future launches may not be 
accepted by the audiences. This could be due to a variety of 
reasons including quality of programming, price, marketing 
support, competition, etc. There can be no assurance that all 
new launches will be successful. 

A decline in advertising revenues overall could adversely 
affect the Company in a given period.

Advertising revenues make up 71% of the Company’s revenues 
and the trend of high levels of contribution of advertising 
revenues to aggregate revenues is likely to continue for 
the foreseeable future. In this scenario, if our Company’s 
programming is unable to sustain high levels of viewer ship 
rating, the consequent decline in advertising revenues will 
manifest itself as a significant dip in aggregate revenues. 
If future trends favour other forms of advertising media like 
radio, outdoor, print, etc., our Company could be adversely 
affected. Business and economic cycles also have a cascading 
effect on advertising budgets of companies. A downturn could 
cause a decline in our revenues and profits. Further, loss of 
advertising business from any one of its principal advertisers, 
could adversely affect the business results of the Company. 

Advertisers’ businesses are seasonal and so are their 
advertising spends. Typically, owing to festival season, the 
third quarter of the financial year is the most buoyant in terms 
of advertising revenues. If, for some reason, there is low level 
of advertising activity in the third quarter, the impact on the 
Company’s results could be negative.

Lack of cooperation from local cable operators and multi-
system operators could harm us. 

The Company’s penetration among cable and satellite homes 
is primarily as a result of its distribution system and the 
cooperation its has enjoyed over the years from MSO’s and 
local cable operators, who control signal access to the homes. 
If such support is not forthcoming for any reason, including the 
lack viewer appeal of our channels or failure to strike mutually 
acceptable commercial terms with such operators, viewers’ 
access to our channels could be impaired, resulting in a decline 
of both advertising and subscription revenues.

Continued underreporting of subscribers by local cable 
operators may adversely affect growth prospects. 

While advertising accounts for a lion’s share of our revenues, 
subscription revenues are already significant. They could be 
even more so, if it were not for rampant under-declaration of 
subscribers by cable operators. This affects our revenues and 
therefore our ability to invest for the future. If this does not 
trend down in future, our results could be further adversely 
affected. 

Poor implementation of measures like Conditional Access 
System (CAS) could affect revenues.

The Company welcomes recent moves by the Government 
to implement Conditional Access System and allow other 
platforms like Direct-to-Home. We believe, however, that 
poor and tardy implementation and expansion of Conditional 
Access by the Government and cable operators could result in 
a loss of viewer ship and hence of advertising and subscription 
revenues.

The Company depends significantly on its senior 
management and other skilled personnel and may be 
adversely affected if it loses their services and fails to find 
equally skilled replacements.

The Company’s success to a large part depends on the abilities 
and continued services of its senior management, as well as 
other skilled personnel, including creative and programming 
personnel. The Company’s senior management is particularly 
important to its business because of their experience and 
knowledge of the media industry. The loss or non-availability 
to the Company of any of its senior management could have 
significant adverse affect. The Company may also not be able to 
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either retain its present personnel or attract additional qualified 
personnel as and when needed. To the extent the Company 
will be required to replace any of its senior management or 
other skilled personnel, there can be no assurance that the 
Company will be able to locate or employ similarly qualified 
persons on acceptable terms or at all.

The Company relies on intellectual property and proprietary 
rights which may not be adequately protected under 
current laws.

The Company’s services are largely comprised of content 
which it owns, or has licensed the intellectual property rights, 
delivered through a variety of media, including broadcast 
programming. The Company relies on trademark, copyright 
and other intellectual property laws to establish and protect 
its rights in these products. There can be no assurance that 
the Company’s rights will not be challenged, invalidated or 
circumvented or that the Company will successfully renew its 
rights or licenses. Third parties may be able to copy, infringe 
or otherwise profit from the Company’s rights without its 
authorisation. Further, the weak enforcement regime in India 
coupled with the high levels of cable, satellite and video 
piracy could impose an increased burden on the Company to 
protect the intellectual property rights in its television and film 
programming.

The Company’s licensed rights to its film library may not be 
renewed upon expiry on terms acceptable to the Company 
or at all.

A substantial part of the Company’s feature film library is 
licensed from third parties for fixed periods of time. Such third 
parties have no obligation to renew the Company’s rights to 
the film upon expiry of the current rights. In the event that 
these third parties decline to renew such rights on terms 
acceptable to the Company or at all, the Company’s film 

library will be reduced in size, which may adversely affect the 
quality of the Company’s programming, its channels’ ratings, 
and consequently its advertising revenues.

The Company’s business is heavily regulated and changes 
in regulations or failure to obtain required regulatory 
approvals could adversely affect its ability to operate.

Media, specifically news media, is a strongly regulated 
industry in India. The regimes that affect your Company’s 
business include broadcasting, cable, advertisement, 
telecommunications, intellectual property, consumer and 
competition (anti-trust) laws and regulations. Relevant 
authorities may introduce additional or new regulations 
applicable to its business. Changes in regulations relating to 
one or more of licensing requirements, access requirements, 
programming transmission, uplinking requirements, spectrum 
specifications, consumer protection, or other aspects of the 
Company’s or any competitor’s business, could have an 
adverse effect on the Company’s business and results of 
operation. There can be no assurance that the Company will 
succeed in obtaining all requisite approvals in the future for its 
operations with or without the imposition of restrictions which 
may have an adverse consequence to the Company nor that 
compliance issues will not be raised.

The Company may be subject to claims based on the content 
it provides over its network and third party networks.

As a broadcaster and distributor of content, the Company 
faces potential liability relating to content that it broadcasts 
and distributes, including defamation, negligence, copyright, 
patent or trademark infringement and other claims based on 
the nature and content of the programmes that it broadcasts 
or distributes. The Company does not carry general liability 
insurance that will cover these types of liabilities.
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Auditors’ Report

To,
The Members
Zee News Limited

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Zee News 
Limited (the Company) as at March 31, 2007 and also the 
Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement of 
the Company for the year ended on that date, annexed 
thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility 
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to 
express our opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing 
standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 
2003 (‘the Order') issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub section (4A) of Section 227 of the 
Companies Act, 1956, (“the Act”) and on the basis of 
such checks as we considered appropriate and according 
to the information and explanations given to us during 
the course of audit, we annex hereto a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said 
Order.

4. Reference is drawn to Note 1 of Schedule 17 regarding 
the Scheme of Arrangement sanctioned by the High Court 
of Judicature at Bombay on November 17, 2006 effect 
of which already given in the financial statement for the 
year ended March 31, 2006, except re-organization and 
allotment of the Share Capital which has been given 
effect to these financial statements.

5. Further to our comments in the annexure referred to in 
paragraph (3) above, we report that:

 a) We have obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our 
audit;

 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company, so far as 
appears from our examination of those books;

 c) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are 
in agreement with the books of account;

 d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss 
Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this report complies with the accounting standards 
referred to in Section 211(3C) of the Act;

 e) On the basis of written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2007 and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, we report that 
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 
2007 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Clause (g) of sub section (1) of the Section 274 of 
the Act, and

 f) In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the said 
accounts read together with significant accounting 
policies and other notes to accounts as per Schedule 
17, give the information required by the Act, in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India:

  i) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2007;

  ii) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of 
the Profit for the year ended on that date; and

  iii) in the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

L. K. Shrishrimal
Membership No. 72664
Partner

For MGB & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Noida, June 28, 2007
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Annexure referred to in Paragraph 3 of Auditors’ Report to the members of Zee News Limited on the accounts for the 
year ended March 31, 2007.

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of its fixed assets. 

 (b) The Company has formulated a phased 
program of physical verification which in our 
opinion is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the Company and nature of its fixed assets. 
Accordingly physical verification of fixed assets 
has been carried out by the management at 
the end of the year and no discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification. 

 (c) The Company has not disposed off substantial 
part of the fixed assets during the year.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified 
by the management during the year. In our 
opinion, the frequency of such verification is 
reasonable. 

 (b) In our opinion, the procedures of physical 
verification of inventories followed by the 
management are reasonable and adequate in 
relation to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its business.

 (c) On the basis of our examination of records, in 
our opinion, the Company is maintaining proper 
records of inventory. No discrepancy has been 
noticed on physical verification between the 
physical stocks as compared to the book 
records.

(iii) (a) The Company has not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or 
other parties covered in the register maintained 
under Section 301 of the Act. Consequently, the 
requirements of Clause (iii.b), (iii.c) and (iii.d) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 (b) The Company has not taken during the year any 
loan, secured or unsecured, from companies, 
firms or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under Section 301 of the Act. The 
interest free loan taken in earlier year from one 
party amounting to Rs. 180 lacs (maximum 
balance outstanding during the year Rs. 180 
lacs) has been repaid during the year. The other 
terms and conditions were, prima facie, not pre 
judicial to the interest of the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, and having regard to the 
explanation that certain items are of special nature 
for which comparables are not available, there are 
adequate internal control systems commensurate with 
the size of the Company and the nature of its business 
for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for 
sales of goods and services. During the course of our 
audit, we have not observed any continuing failure to 
correct major weakness in internal control system. 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to 
us, there were no contracts or arrangements that need 
to be entered into register in pursuance of Section 301 
of the Act. 

(vi) The Company has not accepted deposits from the 
public within the meaning of Section 58A and 58AA or 
any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules 
framed thereunder. We are informed that no order has 
been passed by the Company Law Board or National 
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any 
Court or any other Tribunal.

(vii) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit 
system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 

(viii) We are informed that the Central Government has 
not prescribed the maintenance of cost records 
under Section 209 (1) (d) of the Act in respect of the 
Company’s products. 

(ix) (a) According to the records of the Company, the 
Company is regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues including  provident  fund, investor 
education and protection fund, employees state 
insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, 
wealth tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess 
and other statutory dues, wherever applicable, 
with appropriate authorities except delay in 
few cases. According to the information and 
explanation given to us there is no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Income Tax, 
Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs 
Duty, Excise Duty and Cess outstanding as at 
March 31, 2007 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.

 (b) According to the records of the Company there 
is no dues in respect of Income Tax, Wealth 
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Tax, Sales Tax, Customs Duty, Service Tax, 
Excise Duty and Cess which have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute.

(x) The Company does not have accumulated losses 
exceeding fifty percent of its net worth as at March 
31, 2007 and it has not incurred cash losses during the 
current year as well as in the immediately preceding 
financial year.

(xi) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in 
payment of dues to Banks.

(xii) The Company has not granted any loans or advances 
on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, 
debentures and other securities.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Chit Fund, Nidhi 
or Mutual Benefit Fund/Societies. Therefore, the 
provisions of the Clause 4(xiii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

(xiv) In our opinion, the Company is not dealing or trading in 
shares, securities, debentures and other investments. 
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 4(xiv) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not 
provided any guarantees for loans taken by others from 
banks and financial institutions.

(xvi) In our opinion, the term loan raised during the year has 
been applied for the purpose for which it is raised. 

(xvii) On the basis of review of utilization of fund which is 
based on an overall examination of the Balance Sheet 
of the Company and related information as made 
available to us, we report that no funds raised on short 
term basis have been used for long-term investments. 

(xviii) The Company has not made any preferential allotment 
of shares to parties and companies covered in the 
register maintained under Section 301 of the Act 
during the year.

(xix) The Company has not issued any debentures during 
the year.

(xx) The Company has not raised money by way of public 
issue during the year. 

(xxi) On the basis of our examination and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, no fraud on 
or by the Company has been noticed or reported during 
the year.

L. K. Shrishrimal
Membership No. 72664
Partner

For MGB & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Noida, June 28, 2007
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Balance sheet as at March 31,
	 	 	 	 	 	 Amount	(Rs.)
	 	 	 	 Schedule	 2007	 2006
sources oF FuNDs
shareholders’ Funds
Share	Capital	 	 1	 239,763,956	 418,000,092	
Reserve	and	Surplus	 2	 1,602,655,749	 1,421,124,446	
	 	 	 	 	 1,842,419,705	 1,839,124,538	
Loan Funds
Secured	Loans	 	 3	 12,936,408	 533,034,108	
Unsecured	Loans	 4	 69,096	 18,069,096	
	 	 	 	 	 13,005,504	 551,103,204
Deferred Tax Balances (Net) (refer Note 4)	 	 20,186,811	 7,272,475	
	 ToTAL   1,875,612,020	 2,397,500,217	

APPLIcATIoN oF FuNDs
Fixed Assets 	 5
Gross	Block	(at	cost)	 	 747,110,917	 513,689,348	
Less:	Depreciation	Up-to-date	 	 75,374,888	 28,295,009	
Net	Block		 	 	 671,736,029	 485,394,339												
Capital	Work-in-progress	 	 23,974,122	 48,604,678	
	 	 	 	 	 695,710,151	 533,999,017	
Investments	 	 6	 83,279,820	 18,299,820	
current Assets, Loans And Advances	 7
Program	and	Film	Rights	 	 484,286,388	 191,374,164	
Inventories	 	 	 1,426,565	 2,553,676	
Sundry	Debtors		 	 977,584,553	 748,916,153	
Cash	and	Bank	Balances	 	 39,079,138	 10,264,695	
Loans	and	Advances	 	 527,583,623	 1,380,042,446	
	 	 	 	 	 2,029,960,267	 2,333,151,134	
current Liabilities and Provisions	 8
Current	Liabilities	 	 849,487,926	 558,071,075	
Provisions		 	 	 83,850,292	 26,936,686	
	 	 	 	 	 933,338,218	 585,007,761	
Net current Assets	 	 1,096,622,049	 1,748,143,373	
Profit and Loss Account	 9	 —	 97,058,007	

 ToTAL   1,875,612,020	 2,397,500,217	

Significant	Accounting	Policies	and	Notes	to	Accounts	 17

As	per	our	attached	report	of	even	date
L. K. shrishrimal 
Membership	No.	72664
Partner
For	and	on	behalf		of	MGB & co.
Chartered	Accountants
Place	 :	Noida
Date	 :	June	28,	2007

For	and	on	behalf	of	the	Board

L. N. Goel Naresh Bajaj
Managing	Director	 Director

r. K. Agarwal shailesh Dholakia
Chief	Financial	Officer	 Company	Secretary
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PrOFIt anD lOss accOUnt FOr the Year enDeD March 31,
	 	 	 	 	 	 Amount	(Rs.)
	 	 	 	 Schedule	 2007	 2006
INcoMe
Sales	and	Services	 10	 2,357,303,613	 358,651,574	
Other	Income	 	 11	 130,571,032	 3,614,943	

	 ToTAL   2,487,874,645	 362,266,517	

eXPeNDITure
Operational	Cost	 12	 1,145,810,280	 112,388,615	
Personnel	Cost	 	 13	 343,655,183	 95,493,441	
Administrative	and	Other	Expenses	 14	 263,633,975	 71,246,898	
Selling	and	Distribution	Expenses	 15	 471,270,184 31,600,084	

	 ToTAL   2,224,369,622	 310,729,038	

oPerATING ProFIT  263,505,023	 51,537,479	
Financial	Expenses	 16	 51,137,478	 12,653,872	
Depreciation/Amortisation	 	 47,853,741 14,943,978	

ProFIT BeFore TAX  164,513,804	 23,939,629	
Less	:	Provision	for	Taxation
	 	-	Current	Tax	(Including	Wealth	Tax)	 	 44,601,000	 1,888,981	
	 	-	Deferred	Tax	(Refer	Note	4)	 	 12,441,977	 1,279,286	
	 	-	Fringe	Benefit	Tax	 	 8,048,620 2,608,733	

ProFIT AFTer TAX cArrIeD To BALANce sHeeT  99,422,207	 18,162,629	
Basic	Earning	per	Share	(Refer	Note	11)
	 Calculated	on	face	value	of	Re.	1/-	each	 	 0.41	 0.18	
	 Calculated	on	face	value	of	Rs.	10/-	each	 	 4.15	 1.77	

Significant	Accounting	Policies	and	Notes	to	Accounts	 17

As	per	our	attached	report	of	even	date
L. K. shrishrimal 
Membership	No.	72664
Partner
For	and	on	behalf		of	MGB & co.
Chartered	Accountants
Place	 :	Noida
Date	 :	June	28,	2007

For	and	on	behalf	of	the	Board

L. N. Goel Naresh Bajaj
Managing	Director	 Director

r. K. Agarwal shailesh Dholakia
Chief	Financial	Officer	 Company	Secretary
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scheDUles tO the Balance sheet as at March 31,
	 	 	 	 	 	 Amount	(Rs.)
	 	 	 	 	 2007	 2006
scHeDuLe 1 : sHAre cAPITAL

Authorised

290,000,000	Equity	Shares	of	Re.1/-	each	 	 290,000,000	 200,000,000	
(Previous	year:	20,000,000	Equity	Shares	of	Rs.	10/-	each)

10,000,000	Preference	Shares	of	Re.	1/-	each	 	 10,000,000	 —	
(Previous	year	-	Nil)
	 	 	 	 	 300,000,000	 200,000,000	

Issued, subscribed and Paid up (refer Note 1)
239,763,956	Equity	Shares	of	Re.	1/-	each	fully	paid	up	 	 239,763,956	 198,500,000	
(Previous	year:	19,850,000	Equity	Shares	of	Rs.	10/-	each	fully	paid	up)

Less:	Cancellation	of	Equity	Shares	
(Previous	year	6,574,920	Equity	Share	of	Rs.10/-	each	fully	paid	up)	 	 —	 65,749,200	
	 	 	 	 	 239,763,956	 132,750,800	
Share	Capital	Suspense	 	 —	 285,249,292	

	 ToTAL   239,763,956	 418,000,092	

scHeDuLe 2 : reserVe AND surPLus

capital reserve
As	per	last	Balance	Sheet	 	 1,344,624,446	 —
Add:	Adjustment		Pursuant	to	the	Scheme	(Refer	Note	1)	 	 —	 1,344,624,446	

	 	 	 	 	 1,344,624,446	 1,344,624,446
securities Premium Account
As	per	last	Balance	Sheet	 	 76,500,000	 —
Add:	Received	during	the	year	 	 —	 76,500,000	
	 	 	 	 	 76,500,000	 76,500,000	
Profit and Loss Account
Balance	as	per	last	Balance	Sheet	 	 (97,058,007)	 —	

Add:	Adjustment	pursuant	to	the	Scheme	(Refer	Note	1.1)	 	 178,236,136	 —	

Add:	Adjustment	pursuant	to	transitional	provisions	as	per	"AS	15"	
								(Retirement	Benefit)	(Refer	Note	7.11)	 	 930,967	 —	

Add:	Current	year	profit	as	per	Profit	and	Loss	Account	 	 99,422,207	 —	

	 	 	 	 	 181,531,303	 —	

	 ToTAL 	 	 1,602,655,749	 1,421,124,446
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scheDUles tO the Balance sheet as at March 31,
	 	 	 	 	 	 Amount	(Rs.)
	 	 	 	 	 2007	 2006
scHeDuLe 3 : secureD LoANs

Vehicle	Loan:	 	 	 8,750,675	 3,215,509	

(Secured	against	hypothecation	of	vehicles.	Payable	with	in	a	year	Rs.	3,702,653)

All	the	below	mentioned	loans	are	transferred	under	the	Scheme	of	Arrangement	
(Refer	Note	1).	The	security	details	mentioned	are	provided	by	Zee	Entertainment	
Enterprises	Ltd.	(ZEEL)	and	continued	to	be	secured	by	assets	of	ZEEL	in	addition	
to	 the	assets	 transferred.	The	 loans	are	yet	 to	be	 re-organised	by	 the	banks	 in	
favour	of	the	Company.

(i)	Working	Capital	Finance	from	Banks:	 —	 87,713,917	
[Secured	by	hypothecation	of	stocks	(other	than	Program	and	Film	Rights),	Book	
debts	 (other	 than	advertisement	commission	and	subscription	 receivables)	 and	
other	current	assets,	all	ranking	pari passu	with	other	financing	banks.]

(ii)	Term	Loan	from	Bank:	 	 —	 433,337,255	
(Secured	by	hypothecation	by	way	of	first	charge	of	all	subscription	receivables,
present	and	future)

(iii)	Vehicle	Loan:	 	 4,185,733	 7,889,612	
(Secured	against	hypothecation	of	vehicles.	Payable	with	in	a	year	Rs.	2,221,610)

(iv)	Hire	purchase/Lease	finance	secured	against	hypothecation	of	vehicles	 —	 877,815	

 ToTAL   12,936,408	 533,034,108	

scHeDuLe 4 : uNsecureD LoANs

	-	From	Corporates	 	 69,096	 18,069,096	

 ToTAL   69,096	 18,069,096
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scheDUles tO the Balance sheet as at March 31,
scHeDuLe 5: FIXeD AsseTs

	 Amount	(Rs.)

 Gross BLocK DePrecIATIoN NeT BLocK

	 	 As	at	 Additions	 Acquired	 Deductions	 As at	 As	at	 For	the	 Acquired	 Deductions	 As at	 As at	 As	at
	 Description	 01.04.06	 	 As	per	 	 31.03.07	 01.04.06	 year	 As	per	  31.03.07	 31.03.07	 31.03.06
	 	 	 	 Scheme*	 	 	 	 	 Scheme*	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
Tangible Assets

Plant	and	Machinery	 432,045,013	 185,802,136	 –	 5,230,477	 612,616,672	 18,674,468	 33,238,209	 –	 293,810	 51,618,867 560,997,805	 413,370,545	

Equipments	 38,618,679	 27,253,530	 –	 350,243	 65,521,966	 5,738,354	 6,264,132	 –	 58,220	 11,944,266	 53,577,700	 32,880,325	

Furniture	and	Fixture	 12,572,770	 39,103	 –	 114,977	 12,496,896	 1,352,494	 1,383,256	 –	 105,977	 2,629,773 9,867,123	 11,220,276	

Vehicles	 23,637,587	 9,423,717	 –	 2,930,279 30,131,025	 1,402,160	 2,656,802	 –	 315,855	 3,743,107 26,387,918	 22,235,427	

Leasehold
Improvements	 4,035,187	 3,737,095	 –	 –	 7,772,282	 241,397	 1,629,859	 –	 –	 1,871,256 5,901,026	 3,793,790	

ToTAL 510,909,236	 226,255,581	 –	 8,625,976 728,538,841 27,408,873	 45,172,258	 –	 773,862 71,807,269 656,731,572	 483,500,363	

Inangible Assets
Softwares	 2,780,112	 15,791,964	 –	 –	 18,572,076	 886,136	 2,681,483	 –	 –	 3,567,619 15,004,457	 1,893,976	

ToTAL	 2,780,112	 15,791,964	 –	 – 18,572,076 886,136	 2,681,483	 –	 – 3,567,619 15,004,457 1,893,976	

current Year Total 513,689,348 242,047,545 – 8,625,976 747,110,917 28,295,009 47,853,741 – 773,862 75,374,888 671,736,029 485,394,339 

Previous	Year	Total	 24,245	 407,956,543	 107,798,296	 2,089,736 513,689,348	 3,453	 14,943,978	 13,372,810	 25,232	 28,295,009	 485,394,339

Notes:

	1.				Vehicle	includes	taken	on	finance	lease	Rs.	NIL	(Rs.	4,853,026	)	and	accumulated	depreciation	Rs.	NIL	(Rs.217,946).

	2.			*Represents	assets	received	as	per	the	Scheme	of	Arrangement	(Refer	Note	No.	1).

	 	 	 	 	 	 Amount	(Rs.)
	 	 	 	 	 2007	 2006
scHeDuLe 6 : INVesTMeNTs

Authorised
(Long Term - At cost)
unquoted - Trade

In subsidiary
2,399,982	(1,829,982)	Equity	shares	of	Rs.10/-	each	fully	paid	up	of
Zee	Akaash	News	Pvt.	Ltd.	(extent	of	holding	60%)	 	 83,279,820	 18,299,820	

 ToTAL   83,279,820	 18,299,820	

scHeDuLe 7 : curreNT AsseTs, LoANs AND ADVANces

A. current Assets
	 Program/Film rights	(Refer	Note	2)	 	 484,286,388	 191,374,164	
 Inventories (as	taken,	valued	and	certified	by	the	Management)
	 Tapes	 	 	 1,426,565	 2,553,676	
	 sundry Debtors
	 (Unsecured,	Considered	Good)
	 Outstanding	for	more	than	six	months	(includes	doubtful	Rs.	14,598,001)	 269,927,216	 188,429,889	
	 Other	Debts	 	 722,255,338	 560,486,264	
	 	 	 	 	 992,182,554	 748,916,153	
	 Less:	Provision	for	Doubtful	Debts	 	 14,598,001	 —
	 	 	 	 	 977,584,553	 748,916,153	
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	 	 	 	 	 	 Amount	(Rs.)
	 	 	 	 	 2007	 2006
scHeDuLe 7 : curreNT AsseTs, LoANs AND ADVANces (contd.)

	 cash and Bank Balances
	 Cash	in	hand	 	 871,931	 819,485	
	 Balances	with	Banks	in	Current	Accounts	 	 38,152,207	 9,106,322	
	 Balances	with	Banks	in	Fixed	Deposit/Margin
	 (Pledged	with	Sales	Tax	Department)	 	 55,000	 55,000	
	 Cheque	in	hand/transit	 	 —	 283,888	
	 	 	 	 	 39,079,138	 10,264,695	
B. Loans and Advances
	 (Unsecured,	Considered	Good)
	 Loans	 	 	 —	 1,252,390,548	
	 Advances	[Recoverable	in	cash	or	in	kind	or	for	value	to	be	received	
	 (Refer	Note	7.4)]	 	 477,382,425	 92,834,036	
	 Deposits	 	 	 50,201,198	 34,817,862	
	 	 	 	 	 527,583,623	 1,380,042,446	

	 ToTAL   2,029,960,267	 2,333,151,134	

scHeDuLe 8 : curreNT LIABILITIes AND ProVIsIoNs
A. current Liabilities (refer Note 7.5)
	 Sundry	Creditors:
	 For	Goods/Programs	 	 336,397,282 167,034,163	
	 For	Expense	and	Other	Liabilities	(Refer	Note	7.2)	 	 494,956,624	 377,567,623	
	 Interest	Accrued	but	not	due	 	 363,672	 104,430	
	 Trade	Advances/Deposits	Received	 	 17,770,348	 13,364,859	

	 	 	 	 	 849,487,926	 558,071,075	
B. Provisions
	 Current	Tax	 	 46,489,981	 1,888,981	
	 Fringe	Benefit	Tax	 	 10,657,353	 2,608,733	
	 Retirement	Benefits	 	 26,702,958	 22,438,972	
	 	 	 	 	 83,850,292	 26,936,686	

	 ToTAL   933,338,218	 585,007,761	

scHeDuLe 9 : ProFIT AND Loss AccouNT (refer Note 1)
Balance	as	per	last	Balance	sheet	 	 —	 82,829,235	
Less:	Profit	for	the	year	 	 —	 18,162,629	
Add:	Adjustment	pursuant	to	the	Scheme	 	 —	 32,391,401	

	 ToTAL   —	 97,058,007	

scheDUles tO the Balance sheet as at March 31,
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	 	 	 	 	 	 Amount	(Rs.)
	 	 	 	 	 2007	 2006
scHeDuLe 10 : sALes AND serVIces

Revenue	from	Channel	Operations	 	 2,243,241,846	 346,884,179	

Sales	–	Program	and	Film	Rights	 	 114,061,767 11,767,395	

ToTAL    2,357,303,613	 358,651,574	

scHeDuLe 11 : oTHer INcoMe

Interest	(Gross)	[TDS	Rs.	26,771,608	(Rs.	691,644)]	 	 119,304,504	 3,082,967	

Miscellaneous	Income	 	 7,273,791	 426,891	

Balances	Written	Back	 	 3,992,737	 105,085	

ToTAL	 	 	 	 130,571,032	 3,614,943	

scHeDuLe 12 : oPerATIoNAL cosT

Programs and Film rights
Opening	Balance	 	 191,374,164	 —
(Includes	Rs.	187,792,847	received	persuant	to	the	
Scheme	of	Arrangement	and	Rs.	3,581,317	under	production).

Add: Production/Acquisition/Transmission cost

Purchase/Acquisition	-	Program	and	Film	Rights	 	 847,845,936	 12,301,310	
Tapes	Consumed	 	 16,541,899	 4,547,217	
Subscription	and	News	Services	 	 12,882,837	 6,973,518	
Other	Production	Expenses	 	 247,612,368 20,790,528	
Consultancy	and	Professional	Fee	 	 127,596,468	 21,386,061	
Hire	Charges	 	 	 68,894,008	 9,818,211	
Vehicle	Hire	Charges	 	 15,948,209	 4,943,244	
Travelling	Expenses	 	 11,053,560	 4,378,074	
Up-linking	and	V-sat	 	 51,680,090	 15,573,644	
Transponder	Cost	 	 38,667,129	 15,258,125	

	 	 	 	 	 1,438,722,504	 115,969,932	

Closing	Balance	 	 484,286,388	 3,581,317	

(Previous	year	includes	under	production	Rs.	3,581,317)

ToTAL 	 	 	 1,145,810,280	 112,388,615	

scHeDuLe 13 : PersoNNeL cosT

Salaries,	Allowances	and	Bonus	 	 302,825,646	 83,029,782	

Contribution	to	Provident	Fund	and	Other	Funds	  14,479,415	 5,106,613	

Staff	Welfare	Expenses	 	 26,350,122	 7,357,046	

ToTAL 	 	 	 343,655,183	 95,493,441	

scheDUles tO the PrOFIt anD lOss accOUnt FOr the Year enDeD March 31,
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Amount	(Rs.)
	 	 	 	 	 2007	 2006
scHeDuLe 14 : ADMINIsTrATIVe AND oTHer eXPeNses

Rent		 	 	 	 23,883,233	 8,401,464	

Rates	and	Taxes	 	 11,336,000	 314,664	

Repairs	and	Maintenance	 -	Building	 728,383	 508,378	

	 	 	 	 -	Plant	&	Machinery	 6,502,853	 2,207,647	

	 	 	 	 -	Others	 10,015,327	 1,260,210	

Insurance		 	 	 4,288,444	 459,956	

Electricity	Expenses	 	 20,688,251	 6,497,584	

Communication	Expenses	 	 29,813,808	 8,912,360	

Printing	and	Stationary	 	 6,287,368	 1,297,682	

Miscellaneous	Expenses	 	 7,705,167	 23,858,080	

Hire	and	Service	Charges	 	 33,916,351	 6,277,008	

Conveyance	and	Travelling	Expenses	[Includes	directors	travelling	Rs.	157,810	(Nil)]	 34,701,007	 2,159,933	

Vehicle	Expenses	 	 19,648,235	 6,998,912	

Legal,	Professional	and	Consultancy	Charges	 	 23,123,165	 490,751	

Bad	Debts		 	 	 12,338,636	 —	

Provision	for	Doubtful	Debts	 	 14,598,001	 —	

Loss	on	sale	of	Fixed	Assets	 	 3,957,463	 1,245,504	

Balances	Written	Off	 	 102,283	 356,765	

ToTAL 	 	 	 263,633,975	 71,246,898	

scHeDuLe 15 : seLLING AND DIsTrIBuTIoN eXPeNses

Advertisement	and	Publicity	 	 144,984,320 20,530,508	

Business	Promotion	Expenses	 	 270,229,890	 11,069,576	

Commission	 	 	 56,055,974	 —

ToTAL    471,270,184	 31,600,084	

scHeDuLe 16 : FINANcIAL eXPeNses

Interest

	 Fixed	Loans	 	 17,432,306	 9,829,423	

	 Others	 	 	 28,920,806	 2,773,973	

Discounting	and	Financing	Expenses	 	 4,784,366	 50,476	

ToTAL    51,137,478	 12,653,872

scheDUles tO the PrOFIt anD lOss accOUnt FOr the Year enDeD March 31,



60

G R O U PG R O U P

scHeDuLe 17 : sIGNIFIcANT AccouNTING PoLIcIes AND NoTes To AccouNTs

A. significant Accounting Policies
1. Accounting convention:
	 a)	 The	financial	statements	are	prepared	on	historical	cost	convention	and	in	accordance	with	the	Accounting	Standards	

referred	to	in	Section	211	(3C)	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956.
	 b)	 The	 Company	 generally	 follows	 the	 mercantile	 system	 of	 accounting	 and	 recognizes	 income	 and	 expenditure	 on	

accrual	basis	except	those	with	significant	uncertainties.	
2. Fixed Assets:
	 a)	 Fixed	Assets	are	stated	at	cost	 less	depreciation.	Cost	 includes	capital	 cost,	 freight,	 installation	cost,	duties	and	

taxes,	finance	charges	and	other	incidental	expenses	incurred	during	the	construction/installation	stage	attributable	
to	bringing	the	asset	to	working	condition	for	its	intended	use.

	 b)	 All	capital	costs	and	incidental	expenditure	during	the	pre	operational	period	are	shown	as	capital	work	in	progress.
	 c)	 Software	is	capitalized	as	an	intangible	asset	on	meeting	recognition	criteria.
3. Borrowing costs:
	 Borrowing	Costs	attributable	to	the	acquisition	or	construction	of	qualifying	assets	are	capitalized	as	a	part	of	the	cost	of	

such	assets.	All	other	borrowing	costs	are	charged	to	revenue.
4. Depreciation/Amortization:
	 a)	 Depreciation	on	fixed	assets	is	provided	on	Straight-Line	Method	at	the	rate	specified	in	Schedule	XIV	of	the	Companies	

Act,	1956.
	 b)	 Leasehold	Improvements	are	amortized	over	the	period	of	Lease.
	 c)	 Software	is	amortized	over	a	period	of	36	months	from	the	date	put	to	use.
5. Investments:
	 Long-term	investments	are	stated	at	cost.	Provision	for	diminution	in	value	of	long-term	investment	is	made,	if	the	diminution	

is	other	than	temporary.
6. Programs/Film rights and Inventories:
	 a)	 Program/Film	Rights.
	 	 Program/Film	rights	are	stated	at	the	 lower	of	cost	 less	accumulated	amortization/	 impairment	or	realizable	value.	

Where	the	realizable	value	on	the	basis	of	its	useful	economic	life	is	less	than	its	carrying	amount,	the	difference	is	
written	off	and	impairment	loss	is	expensed.

	 	 i.	 Cost	of	news/current	affairs/	chat	shows/	events	etc.	are	fully	expensed.
	 	 ii.	 Programs	[other	than	(i)	above]	are	amortized	over	three	years	from	the	year	the	related	program	is	telecast.
	 	 iii.	 Film	rights	are	amortized	on	a	straight-line	basis	over	the	license	period	or	60	months	from	the	date	of	purchase	

whichever	is	shorter.
	 b)	 Inventories	of	Tapes	are	valued	at	lower	of	cost	or	estimated	net	realizable	value.	Cost	is	taken	on	First-In-First-Out	

(FIFO)	basis.
7. retirement Benefits:
	 a)	 Contributions	to	Provident	Fund	and	other	recognized	funds	are	charged	to	the	Profit	and	Loss	Account.
	 b)	 The	Company	provides	gratuity	and	leave	encashment	(the	plans)	covering	the	eligible	employees	in	accordance	with	

the	payment	of	 the	Gratuity	Act,1972	and	the	policy	of	 the	Company	respectively.	The	plans	provides	a	 lumpsum	
payment	to	vested	employees	at	retirement,	death,	incapacitation	or	termination	of	employment	of	an	amount	based	
on	the	respective	employee’s	salary,	the	tenure	of	employment	and	unavailed	leave	lying	credit	to	the	account	of	the	
employee	as	the	case	may	be.	The	liablity	with	regard	to	plan	are	determined	by	actuarial	valuation	as	of	the	balance	
sheet	date	and	provided	in	the	books	of	account.

8. Transactions in Foreign currencies:
	 a)	 Transactions	in	foreign	currency	are	accounted	at	the	equivalent	rupee	value	on	the	date	of	transaction.
	 b)	 Monetary	assets	and	liabilities	are	translated	at	the	rates	of	exchange	prevailing	on	the	date	of	Balance	Sheet.	Gains	

and	losses	arising	on	account	of	settlement/translation	of	monetary	assets	and	liabilities	are	recognized	in	the	Profit	
and	Loss	Account
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9. revenue recognition:
	 a)	 Revenue	from	Channel	Operation	(advertisement	and	subscription)	is	recognized	when	the	related	activity	is	completed.	

Advertisement	revenue	is	net	of	agency	commission.
	 b)	 Sale	of	Program	and	film	rights	are	recognized	when	the	risk	and	rewards	is	transferred	to	the	customers.
10. Taxes on Income:
	 a)	 Current	tax	is	determined	as	the	amount	of	tax	payable	in	respect	of	taxable	income	for	the	year	under	the	Income	Tax	

Act,	1961.
	 b)	 Deferred	tax	is	recognized,	subject	to	consideration	of	prudence,	on	timing	difference,	being	the	difference	between	

taxable	 income	 and	 accounting	 income	 that	 originate	 in	 one	 period	 and	 are	 capable	 of	 reversal	 in	 one	 or	 more	
subsequent	periods	and	measured	using	relevant	enacted	tax	rates.

11. Leases:
	 a) operating Lease
	 	 Lease	of	assets	under	which	all	the	risks	and	rewards	of	ownership	are	effectively	retained	by	the	lessor	are	classified	

as	 operating	 leases.	 Lease	 payments	 under	 operating	 leases	 are	 recognized	 as	 an	 expense	 on	 accrual	 basis	 in	
accordance	with	the	respective	lease	agreements.

 b) Finance Lease
	 	 Assets	acquired	under	Finance	Lease	are	capitalized	and	the	corresponding	lease	liability	is	recorded	at	an	amount	

equal	to	the	fair	value	of	the	leased	asset	at	the	inception	of	the	lease.	Initial	costs	incurred	in	connection	with	the	
specific	 leasing	activities	directly	attributable	 to	activities	performed	by	 the	Company	are	 included	as	part	of	 the	
amount	recognized	as	an	asset	under	the	lease.

12. Impairment of assets:
	 If	 the	 carrying	 amount	 of	 fixed	 assets	 exceeds	 the	 recoverable	 amount	 on	 the	 reporting	 date,	 the	 carrying	 amount	 is	

reduced	to	the	recoverable	amount.	The	recoverable	amount	is	measured	at	the	higher	of	the	net	selling	price	and	value	in	
use	determined	by	the	present	value	of	estimated	cash	flows.

13. earnings Per share:
	 Basic	earnings	per	share	is	computed	and	disclosed	using	the	weighted	average	number	of	common	shares	outstanding	

during	the	year.	Diluted	earnings	per	share	is	computed	and	disclosed	using	the	weighted	average	number	of	common	and	
dilutive	common	equivalent	shares	outstanding	during	the	year,	except	when	the	results	would	be	anti-dilutive.

B. Notes to Accounts
1. The scheme of Arrangement :
	 The	Scheme	of	Arrangement	(the	Scheme)	under	Section	391	to	394	read	with	Section	78,	100	to	103	of	the	Companies	

Act,	1956	between	Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	(ZEEL)	and	Zee	News	Limited	(the	Company	or	ZNL)	and	Siti	
Cable	Network	Limited	(SCNL)	and	Wire	&	Wireless	(India)	Limited	(WWIL)	and	their	respective	shareholders	is	sanctioned	
by	the	Honourable	High	Court	of	Judicature	at	Bombay	vide	Order	dated	November	17,	2006	and	copy	of	the	Order	has	been	
filed	with	the	Registrar	of	Companies,	Mumbai,	Maharashtra	on	November	22,	2006.	Pursuant	to	the	Scheme,	the	News	
and	Regional	Channel	business	(referred	to	as	the	News	Business	Undertaking)	of	ZEEL	is	transferred	to	and	vested	with	
the	Company	on	appointed	date	i.e.	March	31,	2006	on	a	going	concern	basis.	This	Scheme	has	been	given	effect	to	in	the	
financial	statements	for	the	year	ended	March	31,	2006	except	re-organisation	and	allotment	of	the	share	capital	which	has	
been	given	effect	in	these	financial	statements.	

	 1.1	 As	on	the	record	date,	the	holding	of	FIIs	was	less	than	32%	of	paid	up	equity	share	capital	of	ZEEL	hence	preference	
shares	were	not	required	to	be	 issued	to	the	FIIs.	Accordingly	Rs.	178,236,136	(being	difference	between	related	
Share	Capital	Suspense	of	Rs.	183,060,068	and	issuance	of	face	value	of	Equity	Shares	of	Rs.	4,823,932	to	FII's)	is	
written	back	to	the	Profit	and	Loss	Account	pursuant	to	the	scheme.	

	 1.2	 The	transaction	of	News	business	undertaking	between	the	appointed	date	and	the	effective	date,	carried	out	by	ZEEL	
are	deemed	to	be	made	on	behalf	of	ZNL.	Accordingly	all	assets,	liabilities,	income	and	expenditure	of	the	de-merged	
undertaking	for	the	said	period	accounted	in	the	books	of	ZEEL	are	taken	over	by	ZNL	and	given	effect	in	these	financial	
statements.	

2.	 Program/film	rights	etc.	for	broadcasting	are	considered	as	intangibles	assets	as	per	Accounting	Standard	(AS-26)“Intangible	
Assets”	but	shown	under	Current	Assets	as	are	realizable	in	the	ordinary	course	of	business.
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3. Leases:
	 3.1	 In	respect	of	assets	taken	on	finance	lease:
	 	 Minimum Lease payment as at:

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.07
Amount (rs.)

Year	ended
31.03.06

Amount	(Rs.)

Not	later	than	one	year — 906,024
Later	than	one	year	and	not	later	than	five	years — —	
Total — 906,024
Less:	Amount	representing	Interest — 28,209
Present	Value	of	Minimum	Lease	Payments — 877,815
Less:	Amount	due	not	later	than	one	year — 877,815
Amount	due	later	than	one	year	and	not	later	than	five	years — —	

	 3.2	 In	respect	of	assets	taken	on	operating	lease	:

	 	 The	Company’s	 significant	 leasing	arrangements	 are	 in	 respect	 of	 operating	 leases	 taken	 for	 offices	premises	and	
equipments.	These	leases	are	cancellable/non-cancellable	operating	lease	agreements	that	are	renewable	on	a	periodic	
basis	at	the	option	of	both	the	lessor	and	the	lessee.	The	initial	tenure	of	the	lease	generally	is	for	1	to	108	months.	

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.07
Amount (rs.)

Year	ended
31.03.06

Amount	(Rs.)

Lease	Rental	charges	for	the	year 188,807,559 32,823,498	
Future Lease rental obligation payable (under non-cancellable leases)
Not	later	than	one	year 33,246,750 46,017,399	
Later	than	one	year	but	not	later	than	five	years 86,188,878 131,221,351	
Later	than	five	years 6,604,000 —

4. Deferred Tax:

	 The	components	of	deferred	tax	balances	as	at:

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.07
Amount (rs.)

Year	ended
31.03.06

Amount	(Rs.)

Deferred Tax Assets

Disallowance	under	the	Income	Tax	Act,1961 18,312,251 13,983,439	

Minimum	Alternative	Tax — 1,788,981	

Unabsorbed	Depreciation	&	Business	Losses — 1,769,402	

Total 18,312,251 17,541,822	

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Depreciation 38,499,062 24,814,297	

Total 38,499,062 24,814,297	

Deferred Tax Balances (Net) 20,186,811 7,272,475	
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5. Auditors remuneration (included in Miscellaneous expenses):

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.07
Amount (rs.)

Year	ended
31.03.06

Amount	(Rs.)
Audit	Fees 700,000 200,000	

Tax	Audit	Fees 150,000 25,000	

Certification	Work 643,112 16,725	

Taxation	Matters 12,500 —

Total 1,505,612 241,725	

6. Managerial remuneration

	 6.1	 No	commission	is	paid/payable	to	any	Director/Managing	Director	and	hence	the	computation	of	profits	under	Section	
198/349	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956	is	not	required.

	 6.2	 Remuneration	paid	or	provided	in	accordance	with	Section	198	read	with	Schedule	XIII	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956	to	
the	Managing	Director	is	included	in	Personnal	Cost	and	relevant	expense	head.	The	detail	is	as	under:

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.07
Amount (rs.)

Year	ended
31.03.06

Amount	(Rs.)

Salary	and	Allowances 2,483,871 —

	 	 Note:	Salary	and	allowances	includes	Basic	Salary,	House	Rent	Allowance,	but	excluding	Leave	Encashments	and	
Gratuity.

7. other Disclosures & Information:

	 7.1	 Previous	years	figures	are	regrouped,	rearranged	or	recast	wherever	considered	necessary.	Figures	in	brackets	pertain	
to	previous	year.	The	current	period	figures	are	not	comparable	with	previous	year’s	figures	due	to	change	in	business	
arrangement	and	transfer	of	business	as	per	the	Scheme	of	Arrangement	(Refer	Note	No.1).

	 7.2	 Sundry	Creditors	for	Expenses	and	other	Liabilities	include	-

	 	 -		Cheques	overdrawn	of	Rs.	8,552,691	(Rs.18,292,488)

	 	 -		Rs.	Nil	(Rs.	8,392,756)	due	to	the	subsidiary.

	 7.3	 Capital	work	in	progress	includes	Capital	advance	of	Rs.19,758,909	(Rs.	3,818,436)

	 7.4	 Advances	given	includes	Share	Application	Money	Rs.	48,782,334	(Rs.Nil)	given	to	the	subsidiary.

 7.5 Small	Scale	Industry	Undertakings:

	 	 The	total	amount	due	to	Small	Scale	Industrial	Undertakings	as	at	March	31,	2007	is	Rs.	Nil	(Rs.	393,128).	The	above	
information	regarding	small	scale	industrial	undertakings	have	been	determined	to	the	extent	such	parties	have	been	
identified	on	the	basis	of	information	available	with	the	Company.

	 7.6	 Foreign	Exchange	Difference	:

	 	 a)	 The	foreign	exchange	loss	(net)	of	Rs.	25,41,586	(Rs.	97,813)	on	settlement	or	realignment	of	foreign	exchange	
transactions	has	been	adjusted	in	respective	heads	of	the	Profit	and	Loss	Account.

	 	 b)	 As	 at	 Balance	 Sheet	 date,	 the	 Company	 has	 foreign	 currency	 payables	 and	 receivables	 amounting	 to		
Rs.	93,776,504	which	are	not	hedged	by	a	derivative	instrument	or	otherwise.
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	 7.7 Contigent	Liabilities	not	provided	for:

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.07
Amount (rs.)

Year	ended
31.03.06

Amount	(Rs.)

Claims	against	the	Company	not	acknowledged	as	debts 2,130,006 —	

Letter	of	Credit	(Net	of	Liability	provided) 8,331,500 —	

Legal	cases	against	the	Company unascertained Unascertained	

	 	 The	Company	has	received	legal	notices	of	claims/law	suits	filed	against	it	relating	to	alleged	infingement	of	copy	
rights	and	defamation	in	relation	to	programs	telecasted	by	it.	In	the	opinion	of	the	Management	no	material	liability	
is	likely	to	arise	on	account	of	such	claims/law	suits.

	 7.8	 The	assets,	film	rights	etc.transferred	pursuant	to	the	Scheme	of	Arrangement	and	transfer	of	news	business	are	in	
the	process	of	registration/transfer	in	the	name	of	the	Company.

	 7.9	 The	Company	for	its	business	has	shared	expenses	of	Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	as	under:

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.07
Amount (rs.)

Year	ended
31.03.06

Amount	(Rs.)
Personnel	Cost 69,627,490 —
Administrative	and	Other	Expenses 26,298,340 —
Selling	and	Distribution	Expenses 59,929,061 —
Total 155,854,891 —

	 7.10	Debit	and	Credit	Balances	are	subject	to	confirmation	and	reconciliation	(if	any).
7.11	Retirement	Benefits:

	 	 Effective	April	1,	2006,	 the	Company	adopted	 the	 revised	accounting	standard	on	employees	benefit.	Pursuant	 to	 the	
adoption,	the	transitional	obligations	of	the	Company	amounting	to	Rs.	930,967	(net	of	deferred	tax)	has	been	adjusted	
against	the	balance	in	Profit	and	Loss	Account.	The	present	value	of	the	defined	benefit	obligation	and	the	related	current	
service	cost	were	measured	using	 the	projected	unit	credit	method	with	actuarial	valuation	being	carried	out	at	each	
balance	sheet	date.	The	defined	benefit	obligations	are	not	funded.	

	 	 i)	 The	reconciliation	of	opening	and	closing	balances	of	the	present	value	of	the	defined	benefit	obligation	as	at	
March	31,	2007

Particulars
Gratuity Benefits Leave encashment 

Benefits
Obligation	at	the	year	beginning 12,675,775 8,359,871	
Service	cost 3,545,502 3,237,850	
Interest	cost 950,683 626,990	
Actuarial	(gain)/loss 283,589 1,173,190	
Benefit	paid (1,609,945) (2,540,547)
obligation at year end 15,845,604 10,857,354

	 	 ii)	 Cost	for	the	year:

Particulars
Gratuity Benefits Leave encashment 

Benefits
Service	cost 3,545,502 3,237,850
Interest	cost 950,683 626,990
Net	actuarial	(gain)/loss 283,589 1,173,190
Net cost 4,779,774 5,038,030
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	 	 (iii)	 Assumption	used:

Particulars
Gratuity Benefits Leave encashment 

Benefits
Discount	Rate 7.50% 7.50%
Salary	Escalation	Rate 6.00% 6.00%

8. capital commitments:

	 Estimated	 amount	 of	 contracts	 remaining	 to	 be	 executed	 on	 capital	 account,	 not	 provided	 for	 (net	 of	 advances)	 is	
Rs.	37,085,699	(Rs.	69,652,996)

9. related Party Transactions:

	 (i) List of Parties where control exists:

	 	 subsidiary company:

	 	 Zee	Akaash	News	Pvt.	Ltd.	(extent	of	holding	60%)

	 (ii) other related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year and balance outstanding as on 
the last day of the year:

	 	 Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited,	Jayneer	Capital	Pvt.	Ltd.,	New	Era	Entertainment	Network	Ltd.	(Now	merged	
with	Dish	TV	India	Ltd.),	Churu	Trading	Co.	(P)	Ltd.,	Dish	TV	India	Ltd.	(Formerly	ASC	Enterprises	Ltd.),	Asia	TV	Ltd.,	
Asia	Today	Limited,	Zee	Turner	Limited,	Essel	Shyam	Communication	Ltd.,	Cornershop	Entertainment	Co.	Pvt.	Ltd.,	
Veena	Investment	Pvt.	Ltd.,	E	City	Entertainment	India	Ltd.,	Pan	India	Network	Infravest	Pvt.	Ltd.,	Wire	&	Wireless	
(India)	Ltd.,	United	News	of	India,	Cyquator	Technologies	Ltd.,	Ganjam	Traning	Co.	P.	Ltd.,	Diligent	Media	Corporation	
Ltd.,	Intrex	Trade	Exchange	Ltd.,	Interactive	Tradex	India	Limited,	RKJ	Wood	&	Plantations	Pvt.	Ltd.,	Zee	Interactive	
Learning	System	Ltd.,	Asian	Sky	Shop	Ltd.,	E	City	Films	India	Pvt.	Ltd.,	ETC	Networks	Ltd.,	Intrex	Intertrade	Advertisers	
Pvt.	Ltd.,	Prime	Publishing	Ltd.,	Essel	 International	Ltd.,	Zee	Sports	Limited,	Agrani	Convergence	Limited,	Dakshin	
Communication	Pvt.	Ltd.

	 	 Directors/Key Management Personnel

	 	 Sh.	 Subhash	 Chandra,	 Sh.	 L.	 N.	 Goel,	 Sh.	 K.	 U.	 Rao,	 Sh.	 Vinod	 Bakshi,	 Sh.	 Naresh	 Bajaj	 (All	 appointed	 w.e.f.	
23.11.2006)

	 	 Sh.	Gaurav	Goel	(upto	01.12.2006)
	 	 Sh.	Gagan	Goel	&	Sh.	V.	K.	Gupta	(upto	23.11.2006)

	 (iii) Transactions with related Parties:

	 	 	 	 	  Year ended	 Year	ended
	 	 	 	 	 Particulars	 31.03.07	 31.03.06
	 	 	 	 	 	 Amount (rs.)	 Amount	(Rs.)

	 	 (A) Transactions :
	 	  (i) With Holding company:
	 	 	 	 •		 Value	of	Equity	Shares	allotted	-	Jayneer	Capital	Pvt.	Ltd.	 —	 60,000,000	
	 	 (ii) With subsidiary company - Zee Akaash News Pvt. Ltd.:
	 	 	 	 •	 Investments	made	in	equity	share	capital	 64,980,000	 18,299,820	
	 	 	 	 •	 Share	application	money	paid	 48,782,334	 —
		 	 	 	 •		 Loans	and	Advances	Received	 —	 17,000,000	
	 	 	 	 •	 Loans	and	Advances	Repaid	 8,392,756	 8,607,244	
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	 	 (iii) With other related Parties:	 	

	 	 	 •	 Sales,	Services	&	Recoveries	 	

	 	 	 	 	 Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	 42,119,770	 346,884,179	

	 	 	 	 	 Asia	Today	Limited	 37,662,382	 —	

	 	 	 	 	 Asia	TV	Limited	 34,285,658	 —	

	 	 	 •	 Subscription	Income	 	

	 	 	 	 	 Dish	TV	India	Ltd.	 102,555,318	 —	

	 	 	 •	 Advertisement	Income	 	

	 	 	 	 	 Dish	TV	India	Ltd.	 14,268,737	 —	

	 	 	 	 	 ETC	Networks	Ltd.	 9,042,525	 —	

	 	 	 	 	 Cornershop	Entertainment	Co.	Pvt.	Ltd.	 3,290,125	 —	

	 	 	 	 	 Others	 5,193,981	 —	

	 	 	 •	 Interest	Income	 	

	 	 	 	 	 Ganjam	Trading	Company	Pvt.	Ltd.	 119,303,067	 —	

	 	 	 •		 Purchase	of	Fixed	Assets/Capital	Work	in	Progress	 	

	 	 	 	 	 Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	 82,909,683	 —	

	 	 	 	 	 Others	 376,875	 —	

	 	 	 •	 Purchase	of	Programs,	Goods	&	Services	 	

	 	 	 	 	 Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	 204,154,274	 5,649,000	

	 	 	 	 	 Wire	and	Wireless	India	Limited	 143,411,429	 —	

	 	 	 	 	 Dish	TV	India	Ltd.	 69,769,003	 —	

	 	 	 	 	 Others	 47,250,105	 —	

	 	 	 •	 Interest	Paid	 	

	 	 	 	 	 Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	 28,071,121	 12,603,396	

	 	 	 •	 Commission	Paid	 	

	 	 	 	 	 Zee	Turner	Limited	 41,431,909	 —	

	 	 	 •	 Rent	Paid	 	

	 	 	 	 	 Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	 2,603,520	 840,000	

	 	 	 	 	 Veena	Investments	P.	Ltd.	 4,200,000	 —	

	 	 	 	 	 E	City	Entertainment	(I)	Ltd.	 2,664,468	 —	

	 	 	 •	 Loans,	Advances	&	Deposits	Given	 	

	 	 	 	 	 New	Era	Entertainment	Network	Pvt.	Ltd.	 —	 389,821	

	 	 	 	 	 Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	 177,233,935	 —	

	 	 	 •	 Loans	and	Advances	Received	 	

	 	 	 	 	 Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	 —	 1,250,000,000	

	 	 	 	 	 Churu	Trading	Co.	Pvt.	Ltd.	 —	 18,000,000	

	 	 	 	 	  Year ended	 Year	ended
	 	 	 	 	 Particulars	 31.03.07	 31.03.06
	 	 	 	 	 	 Amount (rs.)	 Amount	(Rs.)
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	 	 	 •	 Loans	and	Advances	Repaid	 	
	 	 	 	 	 Churu	Trading	Co.	Pvt.	Ltd.	 18,000,000	 —	
	 	 	 •	 Loans	and	Advances	Repayment	Received	 	
	 	 	 	 	 Ganjam	Trading	Company	Pvt.	Ltd.	 1,250,000,000	 —	
	 	 	 •	 Value	of	Equity	Shares	Allotted	 	
	 	 	 	 	 Churu	Trading	Co.	Pvt.	Ltd.	 —	 47,608,100	
	 	 	 	 	 Jayneer	Capital	Pvt.	Ltd.	 —	 15,142,000	
	 	 	 	 	 Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	 —	 65,749,200	
	 	 	 •	 Corporate	Guarantee	Given	by	 	
	 	 	 	 	 Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	 100,000,000	 —	
	 	 	 •	 Net	Assets	transferred	to	the	Company	pursuant	to	Agreement	to	 	
		 	 	 	 Transfer	with	Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	(Refer	Note	1)	 —	 392,281,704	
	 	 	 •	 Adjustment	pursuant	to	the	Scheme	of	Arrangement
	 	 	 	 (Refer	Note	1):	 	
	 	 	 	 	 Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	(ZEEL):	 	
	 	 	 	 	 							Net	Assets	transferred	to	the	Company	 —	 187,108,691	
	 	 	 	 	 							Cancellation	of	equity	share	capital	held	by	ZEEL	 —	 65,749,200	
	 	 	 	 	 							Cancellation	of	inter	corporate	loan/	creditors	due	to	ZEEL	 —	 1,344,624,446	
	 	 	 	 	 Churu	Trading	Co	Pvt.	Ltd.	(Churu):	 	
	 	 	 	 	 							Cancellation	of	equity	share	capital	held	by	Churu	 —	 38,597,896	
	 	 	 	 	 Jayneer	Capital	Pvt.	Ltd.	(Jayneer)	:	 	
	 	 	 	 	 							Cancellation	of	equity	share	capital	held	by	Jayneer		 —	 50,345,140	
 (B) Balances as at :  
  (i) subsidiary company - Zee Akaash News Pvt. Ltd.  
	 	 	 •	 Advance	against	share	application	money	 48,782,334	 —	
	 	 	 •	 Investment	made	in	equity	share	capital	 83,279,820	 18,299,820	
	 	 	 •	 Loans/	Advances/	Deposits	Received	 —	 8,392,756	
  (ii) other related Parties  
   •	 Debtors  
	 	 	 	 Dish	TV	India	Ltd.	 43,450,560	 11,310,714	
	 	 	 	 Asia	TV	Ltd.	 32,872,525	 —	
	 	 	 	 Asia	Today	Limited	 17,950,618	 —	
	 	 	 	 Intrex	Trade	Exchange	Ltd.	 23,259,192	 —	
	 	 	 	 Interactive	Tradex	India	Limited	 27,751,418	 —	
	 	 	 	 Others	 19,068,214	 —	
	 	 	 • Loans/ Advances/ Deposits Given	 	
	 	 	 	 Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	 177,233,935	 —	
	 	 	 	 Zee	Turner	Limited	 106,804,682	 —	
	 	 	 	 New	Era	Entertainment	Network	Pvt.	Ltd.	 —	 389,821	
	 	 	 	 Others	 30,243,057	 —	

	 	 	 	 	  Year ended	 Year	ended
	 	 	 	 	 Particulars	 31.03.07	 31.03.06
	 	 	 	 	 	 Amount (rs.)	 Amount	(Rs.)
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	 	 	 •	 creditors 	
	 	 	 	 New	Era	Entertainment	Network	Pvt.	Ltd.	 —	 389,821	
	 	 	 	 Dish	TV	India	Ltd.	 66,897,004	 —	
	 	 	 	 Wire	&	Wireless	India	Ltd.	 36,666,161	 —	
	 	 	 	 Asia	Today	Limited	 30,234,928	 —	
	 	 	 	 Zee	Turner	Limited	 25,604,712	 —	
	 	 	 	 Others	 18,319,932 —	
	 	 	 •	 Loans/ Advances/ Deposits received	 	
	 	 	 	 	 Churu	Trading	Co.	Pvt.	Ltd.	 —	 18,000,000	
	 	 	 • corporate Guarantee Given by	 	

	 	 	 	 Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	 100,000,000	 —	

	 	 Notes:
	 	 1.	 Transactions	carried	out	between	appointed	date	and	effective	date	i.e.	March	31,	2006	and	November	22,	2006	

respectively	by	Zee	Entertainment	Enterprises	Limited	as	per	the	Scheme	of	Arrangement	(Refer	Note	1)	are	not	
considered	in	the	above	disclosure	requirements.

	 	 2.	 Detail	of	Remuneration	to	Directors	is	disclosed	in	Note	No.	6.2.
	 	 3.	 Parties	with	transaction	less	than	10%	of	the	group	total	are	regropued	under	the	head	"Others".

10.	 Disclosure as required by the clause 32 of the Listing Agreement.
 Loans	and	Advances	to	subsidiary:

Name of the company Balance as on Maximum	amount	outstanding	
during	the	year

31.03.07 31.03.06 31.03.07 31.03.06
Zee	Akaash	News	Pvt.	Ltd. Nil Nil Nil Nil	

	 Investment	by	the	Loanee	in	the	shares	of	the	Company

Loanee
No. of fully paid 
up equity shares 
as at 31.03.07

No.	 of	 fully	 paid	
up	equity	shares	
as	at	31.03.06

Ganjam	Trading	Co.	Pvt.	Ltd. 2,968,715 NIL	

11.	 earnings per share (ePs):

sr.
No Particulars

Year ended
31.03.07

Amount (rs.)

Year	ended
31.03.06

Amount	(Rs.)

a. Profit	after	Tax 99,422,207 18,162,629	

b. Weighted	Average	number	of	equity	shares	of	Rs.	10/-	each	(Nos.) 23,976,396 10,245,583	

c. Basic	EPS	for	equity	shares	of	Rs.	10/-	each 4.15 1.77	

d. Weighted	number	of	equity	shares	of	Re.	1/-	each	(Nos.) 239,763,956 102,455,834	

e. Basic	EPS	for	equity	shares	of	Re.	1/-	each 0.41 0.18	

	 	 	 	 	  Year ended	 Year	ended
	 	 	 	 	 Particulars	 31.03.07	 31.03.06
	 	 	 	 	 	 Amount (rs.)	 Amount	(Rs.)
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12. segment reporting:

	 The	Company	is	engaged	in	the	business	of	production	&	broadcasting	of	television	software,	which	in	the	context	of	AS	
17	(Segment	Reporting)	is	considered	as	the	only	reportable	business	segment.	The	geographical	segment	is	not	relevant	
as	exports	are	insiginificant.

13. Additional Information:

	 Other	Additional	Information	required	to	be	given	pursuant	to	Part	II	of	Schedule	VI	to	the	Companies	Act,	1956,	are	as	
under:

	 13.1	The	Company	is	in	the	business	of	producing	television	programs	and	is	not	subject	to	any	license	hence	licensed	
capacity	 is	 not	 given.	 Further	 the	 nature	 of	 business	 of	 the	 Company	 is	 such	 that	 the	 installed	 capacity	 is	 not	
quantifiable.

 13.2	Quantitative	Information:

	 	 The	details	of	opening	stock,	acquisitions/productions,	sales	and	closing	stock	are	as	under:

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.07
Amount (rs.)

Year	ended
31.03.06

Amount	(Rs.)

opening stock

Programs/	Film	Rights 187,792,847 —

Acquisitions/ Productions

Programs/	Film	Rights 1,442,303,821 112,388,615	

sales & services

Revenue	from	Channel	Operations 2,243,241,846 346,884,179

Sale	-	Programme	and	Film	Rights 114,061,767 11,767,395

closing stock

Programs/	Film	Rights 484,286,388 187,792,847	

Previous	year	-	programs/films	rights	valuing	to	Rs.	187,792,847	transferred	
as	per	the	Scheme	of	Arrangement	(Refer	Note	1)

 13.3	Consumption	of	Tapes

Particulars Year ended
31.03.07

Year	ended
31.03.06

(No.’s) Amount (rs.) (No.’s) Amount	(Rs.)

Tapes 46,044 16,541,899 18,916 4,547,217	

Total 46,044 16,541,899 18,916 4,547,217	
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	 13.4	Value	of	Imported	and	Indigenous	Tapes	Consumed

Particulars Year ended
31.03.07

Year	ended
31.03.06

Percentage Amount (rs.) Percentage Amount	(Rs.)

Imported 37.60% 6,219,628 — —

Indigenous 62.40% 10,322,271 100.00% 4,547,217	

Total 100.00% 16,541,899 100.00% 4,547,217

	 13.5	Other	Information:

Particulars
Year ended

31.03.07
Amount (rs.)

Year	ended
31.03.06

Amount	(Rs.)
earning in Foreign exchange

FOB	Value	of	Exports 71,948,040 11,767,395	

Broadcasting	Revenue 78,438,993 —

Others 26,490 —

expenditure in Foreign currency (on accrual basis)

Transponder	Rent 30,375,000 15,170,625	

Programming	Expenses	(includes	travelling	Rs.	2,408,299) 10,630,673 4,008,483	

Travelling	Expenses 697,157 1,086,139	

Repairs	&	Maintenance 144,063 —	

Others 118,646 —	

cIF Value of Imports

Tapes 4,819,934 246,836	

Capital	Equipment 125,372,963 —	

As	per	our	attached	report	of	even	date
L. K. shrishrimal 
Membership	No.	72664
Partner
For	and	on	behalf		of	MGB & co.
Chartered	Accountants
Place	 :	Noida
Date	 :	June	28,	2007

For	and	on	behalf	of	the	Board

L. N. Goel Naresh Bajaj
Managing	Director	 Director

r. K. Agarwal shailesh Dholakia
Chief	Financial	Officer	 Company	Secretary
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    Amount (rs.)
    2007 2006
A. cAsH FLoW FroM oPerATING AcTIVITIes:
	 Net	Profit	before	taxation	and	exceptional	items	 164,513,804	 23,939,629	
	 Adjustments	for:
	 Depreciation	and	Amortisation	 47,853,741	 14,943,978	
	 Loss	on	the	sale	of	fixed	Assets	 3,957,463	 1,245,504	
	 Interest	Expenses	 46,353,112	 12,603,396	
	 Interest	Income	 (119,304,504) (3,082,967)
	 Provision	for	doubtful	debts	 14,598,001	 —
	 Unrealised	Foreign	Exchange	Difference	 601,545	 102,566	
	 operating profit before working capital changes 158,573,162	 49,752,106	
	 Adjustments	for:
	 (Increase)	in	Programs,	Film	Rights	and	Inventories	 (291,785,113)	 (5,573,555)
	 (Increase)	in	Trade	and	other	Receivables	 (550,874,812)	 (158,592,478)
	 Increase	in	Trade	and	other	Payables	 305,749,432	 349,317,265	
 cash generated from operations (378,337,331)	 234,903,338	
	 Direct	Taxes	paid	 (44,420,104) (9,879,361)
	 Net cash Flow From operating Activities	 (422,757,435)	 225,023,977	
B. cAsH FLoW FroM INVesTMeNT AcTIVITIes:
	 Purchase	of	Fixed	Assets/CWIP	 (217,416,989)	 (411,775,229)
	 Sale	of	Fixed	Assets	 3,894,651	 819,000	
	 Investments	in	Subsidiary	 (64,980,000)	 (18,299,820)
	 Advance	against	Share	Application	Money	to	subsidiary	 (48,782,334)	 —	

Advance	from	Subsidiary	 —	 17,000,000	
	 Repayment	of	Advance	to	Subsidiary	 (8,646,932)	 (8,607,244)
	 Loans	to	Others	 —	 (1,250,000,000)
	 Repayment	of	Loans	Given	 1,250,000,000	 -	
	 Interest	received	 121,695,052	 692,419	
	 Net cash Flow From Investing Activities 1,035,763,448 (1,670,170,874)
c. cAsH FLoW FroM FINANcING AcTIVITIes:
	 Interest	Paid	 (46,093,870)	 (10,442,099)
	 Increase	in	Share	Capital	including	Securities	Premium	 —	 256,499,300	
	 Loan	Received	 7,274,000	 1,271,215,510	
	 Repayment	of	Loans	 (545,371,700)	 (70,000,000)
	 Net cash Flow From Financing Activities (584,191,570)	 1,447,272,711	
 Net cash Flow during the year (A+B+c) 28,814,443	 2,125,814	
	 opening cash and cash equivalents 10,264,695	 874,662	
	 Add: cash and cash equivalents received as per the scheme of Arrangement —	 7,264,219	
	 closing cash and cash equivalents 39,079,138	 10,264,695	
	 cash and cash equivalents comprise:
	 Cash	in	Hand	 871,931	 819,485	
	 Balance	with	Scheduled	Banks	in	Current	Accounts	 38,152,207	 9,106,322	
	 Balance	with	Scheduled	Banks	in	Deposit	Accounts
	 (Pledged	with	Sales	Tax	Department)	 55,000	 55,000	
	 Cheques	in	Hand/	Transit	 —	 283,888	
	 Total   39,079,138	 10,264,695
	 Notes:
	 1.	 Previous	year	figures	are	regrouped,	recasted	and	reconsidered	wherever	necessary.
	 2.	 The	Scheme	of	Arrangement	(Refer	Note	1)	have	not	been	considered	in	above	cash	flow	statement	being	non	cash	transactions.

cash FlOW stateMent FOr the Year enDeD March 31,

As	per	our	attached	report	of	even	date
L. K. shrishrimal 
Membership	No.	72664
Partner
For	and	on	behalf		of	MGB & co.
Chartered	Accountants
Place	 :	Noida
Date	 :	June	28,	2007

For	and	on	behalf	of	the	Board

L. N. Goel Naresh Bajaj
Managing	Director	 Director

r. K. Agarwal shailesh Dholakia
Chief	Financial	Officer	 Company	Secretary
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Balance sheet aBstract anD cOMPanY’s general BUsIness PrOFIle
I.  reGIsTrATIoN DeTAILs
		 Registration	No.	 State	Code
	 	 Date	 Month	 Year
	 Balance	Sheet	date

II.  cAPITAL rAIseD DurING THe YeAr (AMouNT rs. IN THousAND)
	 Public	Issue	 Rights	Issue
	
	 Bonus	Issue	 Allotment	pursuant	to	the	Scheme	of	Arrangement

III.  PosITIoN oF MoBILIsATIoN AND DePLoYMeNT oF FuNDs (AMouNT rs. IN THousAND)
	 Total	Liabilities	 Total	Assets
	
	 sources oF FuNDs
	 Paid-up	Capital	 Reserves	and	Surplus

	 Secured	Loans	 Unsecured	Loans

	 Other	Liabilities

	 APPLIcATIoN oF FuNDs
	 Net	Fixed	Assets	 Investments

	 Net	Current	Assets	 Miscellaneous	Expenditure

 Accmulated	Losses	 Other	Assets

IV.  PerForMANce oF coMPANY (AMouNT rs. IN THousAND)
	 Turnover*	 Total	Expenditure	*

	 (*includes	other	income)	 (*Includes	prior	period	adjustments)
	 	+					-							Profit/(Loss)	Before	Tax	 		+					-	 			Profit/(Loss)	After	Tax
	 		+	
	 Earnings	Per	Share		of	Rs.10/-	 Dividend	Rate	(%)

V.  GeNerIc NAMes oF PrINcIPAL ProDucTs oF THe coMPANY (As Per MoNeTArY TerMs)
	 Item	Code	No.	(ITC	Code)

	 Product	Description
	

1	 11	 2	 1	 5						0					6

3	 1 0	 3 	 2	 0	 0	 7

	 	 	 	 	 	 N	 I	 L

	 	 	 	 	 	 N	 I	 L

	 	 	 	 	 	 N	 I	 L

	 	 	 1	 9	 5	 9	 5	 6

	 	 1	 8	 7	 5	 6	 1	 2 	 	 1	 8	 7	 5	 6	 1	 2

	 	 	 2	 3	 9	 7	 6	 4 	 	 1	 6	 0	 2	 6	 5	 6

	 	 	 	 1	 2	 9	 3	 6 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 6	 9

	 	 	 	 2	 0	 1	 8	 7

	 	 	 6	 9	 5	 7	 1	 0 	 	 	 	 8	 3	 2	 8	 0
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Place	 :	Noida
Date	 :	June	28,	2007

For	and	on	behalf	of	the	Board
L. N. Goel Naresh Bajaj
Managing	Director	 Director
r. K. Agarwal shailesh Dholakia
Chief	Financial	Officer	 Company	Secretary
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Auditors’ Report

To,

The Board of Directors of Zee News Limited

1. We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet 
of Zee News Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary 
(“the Group”) as at March 31, 2007, the Consolidated 
Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended on that date, annexed 
thereto. These financials statements are the responsibility 
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing 
standards generally accepted in India. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatements. An audit 
includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by the 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. The financial statements of the subsidiary with total 
assets (net) of Rs. 177,499,622 (Rs. 57,959,786) 
as at March 31, 2007 and total revenues (net) of 
Rs. 47,835,437 (Rs. 27,650) for the year ended on 
that date have not been audited by us. The financial 
statements of the subsidiary has been audited by other 
auditor whose report has been furnished to us and our 
opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts included in 
respect of the subsidiary, is based solely on the report of 
the other auditor.

4. Reference is drawn to Note 1 of Schedule 17 regarding 
the Scheme of Arrangement sanctioned by the High 
Court of Judicature at Bombay on November 17, 2006 
effect of which already given in the financial statement 

for the year ended March 31, 2006, except reorganization 
and allotment of the Share Capital which has been given 
effect to these financial statements. 

5. We report that the Consolidated Financial Statements 
have been prepared by the Company in accordance 
with the requirements of the Accounting Standard 
(AS–21 “Consolidated Financial Statements” issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and on the 
basis of the separate audited financial statements of the 
Company and its subsidiary.

6. Based on our audit and on consideration of the reports 
of other auditors on separate financial statements 
of subsidiary, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the attached Consolidated Financial Statements, give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India:

 (a) In the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of 
the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 
March 31, 2007;

 (b) In the case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss 
Account, of the consolidated results of operations 
of the Group for the year ended on that date; and

 (c) In the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, 
of the consolidated cash flows of the Group for the 
year ended on that date.

L. K. Shrishrimal
Membership No. 72664
Partner

For MGB & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Noida, June 28, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE ShEET AS AT MArCh 31,
      Amount (Rs.)
    Schedule 2007 2006
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital  1 239,763,956 418,000,092 
Reserve and Surplus 2 1,573,072,768 1,421,124,446 
     1,812,836,724 1,839,124,538 
Minority Interest  35,797,803 8,955,842 
Loan Funds
Secured Loans  3 12,936,408 533,034,108 
Unsecured Loans  4 69,096 18,069,096 
     13,005,504 551,103,204 
Deferred Tax Balances (Net) (Refer Note 4)  634,532 7,272,475 

 TOTAL   1,862,274,563 2,406,456,059 

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets  5 
Gross Block (at cost)  863,642,856 548,129,230 
Less: Depreciation Up-to-date  79,617,926 28,295,009 
Net Block    784,024,930 519,834,221 
Capital Work-in-progress  23,974,122 48,604,678 
     807,999,052 568,438,899 
Current Assets, Loans and Advances 6 
Program and Film Rights  484,286,388 191,374,164 
Inventories   1,925,221 4,488,686 
Sundry Debtors   1,018,689,362 748,944,583 
Cash and Bank Balances  40,960,299 11,538,296 
Loans and Advances  480,736,906 1,383,504,229 
     2,026,598,176 2,339,849,958 
Current Liabilities and Provisions 7 
Current Liabilities  886,935,608 577,083,110 
Provisions    85,625,257 26,991,681 
     972,560,865 604,074,791 
Net Current Assets  1,054,037,311 1,735,775,167 
Miscllenous Expenses  8 238,200 317,600
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)  
Profit and Loss Account 9 — 101,924,393 

 TOTAL   1,862,274,563 2,406,456,059 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 17 — —

As per our attached report of even date
L. K. Shrishrimal 
Membership No. 72664
Partner
For and on behalf  of MGB & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Place : Noida
Date : June 28, 2007

For and on behalf of the Board

L. N. Goel Naresh Bajaj
Managing Director Director

R. K. Agarwal Shailesh Dholakia
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED PrOFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOr ThE YEAr ENDED MArCh 31,
      Amount (Rs.)
    Schedule 2007 2006
INCOME

Sales and Services 10 2,405,124,438 358,671,574 

Other Income  11 130,585,644 3,622,593 

 TOTAL   2,535,710,082 362,294,167 

EXPENDITURE

Operational Cost 12 1,187,855,364 115,182,308 

Personnel Cost  13 367,705,572 96,231,797 

Administrative and Other Expenses 14 282,451,115 75,785,874 

Selling and Distribution Expenses 15 490,014,735 31,607,711 

 TOTAL   2,328,026,786 318,807,687 

OPERATING PROFIT  207,683,296 43,486,480 

Financial Expenses 16 51,139,091 12,658,602 

Depreciation/Amortisation  52,096,779 14,943,978 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX  104,447,426 15,883,900

Less: Provision for Taxation 

  - Current Tax (Including Wealth Tax)  44,601,000 1,888,981 

  - Deferred Tax (Refer Note 4)  (7,110,302) 1,279,286 

  - Fringe Benefit Tax  8,729,155 2,663,728 

PROFIT AFTER TAX BEFORE MINORITy INTEREST  58,227,573 10,051,905 

MINORITy INTREST  16,478,039 3,244,338 

PROFIT AFTER TAX CARRIED TO BALANCE ShEET  74,705,612 13,296,243 

Basic Earning per Share (Refer Note 8)

  Calculated on face value of Re. 1/- each  0.31 0.13 

  Calculated on face value of Rs. 10/- each       3.12 1.30 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 17

As per our attached report of even date
L. K. Shrishrimal 
Membership No. 72664
Partner
For and on behalf  of MGB & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Place : Noida
Date : June 28, 2007

For and on behalf of the Board

L. N. Goel Naresh Bajaj
Managing Director Director

R. K. Agarwal Shailesh Dholakia
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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SChEDULES TO ThE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE ShEET AS AT MArCh 31,
      Amount (Rs.)
     2007 2006
SChEDULE 1 : ShARE CAPITAL

Authorised

290,000,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each  290,000,000 200,000,000 
(Previous year: 20,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

10,000,000 Preference Shares of Re. 1/- each  10,000,000 — 
(Previous year - Nil)
     300,000,000 200,000,000 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up (Refer Note 1)
239,763,956 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each fully paid up  239,763,956 198,500,000 
(Previous year: 19,850,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)

Less: Cancellation of Equity Shares 
(Previous year: 6,574,920 Equity Share of Rs.10/- each fully paid up)  — 65,749,200 
     239,763,956 132,750,800 
Share Capital Suspense  — 285,249,292 

TOTAL    239,763,956 418,000,092 

SChEDULE 2 : RESERVE AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet  1,344,624,446 —
Add: Adjustment  Pursuant to the Scheme (Refer Note 1)  — 1,344,624,446 

     1,344,624,446 1,344,624,446
Securities Premium Account
As per last Balance Sheet  76,500,000 —
Add: Received during the year  — 76,500,000 
     76,500,000 76,500,000 
Profit and Loss Account
Balance as per last Balance Sheet  (101,924,393) — 

Add: Adjustment pursuant to the Scheme (Refer Note 1.1)  178,236,136 — 

Add: Adjustment pursuant to transitional provisions as per "AS 15" (Retirment benefit) 930,967 — 

Add: Current year profit as per Profit and Loss Account  74,705,612 — 

     151,948,322 — 

TOTAL    1,573,072,768 1,421,124,446
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SChEDULES TO ThE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE ShEET AS AT MArCh 31,
      Amount (Rs.)
     2007 2006
SChEDULE 3 : SECURED LOANS

Vehicle Loan:   8,750,675 3,215,509 

(Secured against hypothecation of vehicles. Payable with in a year Rs. 3,702,653)

All the below mentioned loans are transferred under the Scheme of Arrangement 
(Refer Note 1). The security details mentioned are provided by Zee Entertainment 
Enterprises Ltd. (ZEEL) and continued to be secured by assets of ZEEL in addition 
to the assets transferred. The loans are yet to be re-organised by the banks in 
favour of the Company.

(i) Working Capital Finance from Banks: — 87,713,917 
[Secured by hypothecation of stocks (other than Program & Film Rights), Book 
debts (other than advertisement commission and subscription receivables) and 
other current assets, all ranking pari passu with other financing banks.]

(ii) Term Loan from Bank:  — 433,337,255 
(Secured by hypothecation by way of first charge of all subscription receivables,
present and future)

(iii) Vehicle Loan:  4,185,733 7,889,612 
(Secured against hypothecation of vehicles. Payable with in a year Rs. 2,221,610)

(iv) Hire purchase/Lease finance secured against hypothecation of vehicles — 877,815 

TOTAL    12,936,408 533,034,108 

SChEDULE 4 : UNSECURED LOANS

 - From Corporates  69,096 18,069,096 

TOTAL    69,096 18,069,096
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SChEDULES TO ThE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE ShEET AS AT MArCh 31,
SChEDULE 5: FIXED ASSETS

 Amount (Rs.)

 GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

  As at Additions Acquired Deductions As at As at For the Acquired Deductions As at As at As at
 Description 01.04.06  As per  31.03.07 01.04.06 year As per  31.03.07 31.03.07 31.03.06
    Scheme*     Scheme*      
     
Tangible Assets

Plant and Machinery 447,132,802 261,041,035 — 5,230,477 702,943,360 18,674,468 35,070,232 — 293,810 53,450,890 649,492,470 428,458,334 

Equipments 44,079,842 30,572,613 — 350,243 74,302,212 5,738,354 7,610,293 — 58,220 13,290,427 61,011,785 38,341,488 

Furniture and Fixture 26,463,700 3,573,177 — 114,977 29,921,900 1,352,494 2,448,110 — 105,977 3,694,627 26,227,273 25,111,206 

Vehicles 23,637,587 9,423,717 — 2,930,279 30,131,025 1,402,160 2,656,802 — 315,855 3,743,107 26,387,918 22,235,427 

Leasehold
Improvements 4,035,187 3,737,095 — — 7,772,282 241,397 1,629,859 — — 1,871,256 5,901,026 3,793,790 

TOTAL 545,349,118 308,347,637 — 8,625,976 845,070,779 27,408,873 49,415,296 — 773,862 76,050,307 769,020,472 517,940,245 

Inangible Assets

Softwares 2,780,112 15,791,964 — — 18,572,076 886,136 2,681,483 — — 3,567,619 15,004,457 1,893,976 

TOTAL 2,780,112 15,791,964 — — 18,572,076 886,136 2,681,483 — — 3,567,619 15,004,457 1,893,976 

Current year Total 548,129,230 324,139,601 — 8,625,976 863,642,855 28,295,009 52,096,779 — 773,862 79,617,926 784,024,929 519,834,221 

Previous Year Total 24,245 442,396,425 107,798,296 2,089,736 548,129,230 3,453 14,943,978 13,372,810 25,232 28,295,009 519,834,221  

Notes:

1. Vehicle includes taken on finance lease Rs. NIL (Rs. 4,853,026) and accumulated depreciation Rs. NIL (Rs. 217,946).

2. *Represents assets received as per the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note No. 1).

      Amount (Rs.)
     2007 2006
SChEDULE 6 : CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

A. Current Assets
 Program/Film Rights (Refer Note 2)  484,286,388 191,374,164 
 Inventories
 (as taken, valued and certified by the Management)
  Tapes  1,925,221 4,488,686 

 Sundry Debtors
 (Unsecured, Considered Good)
 Outstanding for more than six months (includes doubtful Rs. 14,598,001) 272,785,644 188,429,889 
 Other Debts  760,501,719 560,514,694 
     1,033,287,363 748,944,583
 Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts  14,598,001 —
     1,018,689,362 748,944,583 
 Cash and Bank Balances
 Cash in hand  935,443 964,265 
 Balances with Banks in Current Accounts  39,969,856 10,235,143 
 Balances with Banks in Fixed Deposit/Margin
 (Pledged with Sales Tax Department)  55,000 55,000 
 Cheque in hand/transit  — 283,888 
     40,960,299 11,538,296
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Amount (Rs.)
     2007 2006
SChEDULE 6 : CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES (Contd.)

B. Loans and Advances

 (Unsecured, Considered Good)

 Loans   — 1,252,390,548 

 Advances (Recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received) 430,535,708 96,295,819 
 Deposits   50,201,198 34,817,862 

     480,736,906 1,383,504,229

 TOTAL   2,026,598,176 2,339,849,958 

SChEDULE 7 : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

A. Current Liabilities

 Sundry Creditors:

 For Goods/Programs  368,176,843 182,435,024 

 For Expense and Other Liabilities (Refer Note 5.2)  500,589,309 381,176,797 

 Interest Accrued but not due  363,672 104,430 

 Trade Advances/Deposits Received  17,805,784 13,366,859 

     886,935,608 577,083,110 
B. Provisions

 Current Tax  46,489,981 1,888,981 

 Fringe Benefit Tax  11,337,888 2,663,728 

 Retirement Benefits  27,797,388 22,438,972 

     85,625,257 26,991,681 

 TOTAL   972,560,865 604,074,791 

SChEDULE 8: MISCLLENOUS EXPENDITURE 
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

Preliminery Expenses  238,200 317,600 

TOTAL    238,200 317,600

SChEDULE 9 : PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT (Refer Note 1)

Balance as per last Balance sheet  — 82,829,235 

Less: Profit for the year  — 13,296,243 

Add: Adjustment pursuant to the Scheme  — 32,391,401 

TOTAL    — 101,924,393 

SChEDULES TO ThE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE ShEET AS AT MArCh 31,
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      Amount (Rs.)
     2007 2006
SChEDULE 10 : SALES AND SERVICES

Revenue from Channel Operations  2,291,062,671 346,884,179 

Sales – Program and Film Rights  114,061,767 11,787,395 

TOTAL    2,405,124,438 358,671,574 

SChEDULE 11 : OThER INCOME

Interest (Gross) [TDS Rs. 26,771,608 (Rs. 691,644)]  119,304,504 3,082,967 

Miscellaneous Income  7,288,403 434,541 

Balances Written Back  3,992,737 105,085 

TOTAL    130,585,644 3,622,593 

SChEDULE 12 : OPERATIONAL COST

Programs and Film Rights
Opening Balance  191,374,164 —

(Includes Rs. 187,792,847 transferred pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement and
Rs. 3,581,317 under production.)

Add: Production/Acquisition/Transmission cost

Purchase/Acquisition - Program and Film Rights  847,845,936 12,301,310 

Tapes Consumed  19,444,753 4,548,257 

Subscription and News Services  13,307,121 6,973,518 

Other Production Expenses  260,090,935 20,971,176 

Consultancy and Professional Fee  128,847,252 23,477,910 

Hire Charges   70,671,938 9,938,211 

Vehicle Hire Charges  21,536,192 4,982,617 

Travelling Expenses  12,953,626 4,396,374 

Up-linking and V-sat  58,159,525 15,916,127 

Transponder Cost  47,910,310 15,258,125 

     1,480,767,588 118,763,625 

Closing Balance  484,286,388 3,581,317 
(Previous year includes under production Rs. 3,581,317)

TOTAL    1,187,855,364 115,182,308 

SChEDULE 13 : PERSONNEL COST

Salaries, Allowances and Bonus  325,584,736 83,669,544 

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds  15,341,946 5,131,831

Staff Welfare Expenses  26,778,890 7,430,422

TOTAL    367,705,572 96,231,797 

SChEDULES TO ThE CONSOLIDATED PrOFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOr ThE YEAr ENDED MArCh 31,
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Amount (Rs.)
     2007 2006
SChEDULE 14 : ADMINISTRATIVE AND OThER EXPENSES

Rent     31,479,078 9,859,985 

Rates and Taxes  11,972,600 1,376,214 

Repairs and Maintenance - Building 728,383 508,378 

    - Plant & Machinery 6,872,845 2,207,647 

    - Others 10,496,155 1,297,216 

Insurance    4,549,316 482,916 

Electricity Expenses  26,552,723 6,666,342 

Communication Expenses  31,931,171 9,305,618 

Printing and Stationary  6,607,487 1,382,474 

Miscellaneous Expenses  7,953,735 24,334,960 

Hire and Service Charges  34,037,599 6,313,021 

Conveyance and Travelling Expenses   35,304,940 2,879,568 

Vehicle Expenses  19,648,235 6,998,912 

Legal, Professional and Consultancy Charges  23,241,065 490,951 

Bad Debts    12,338,636 — 

Provision for Doubtful Debts  14,598,001 — 

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets  3,957,463 1,245,504 

Preliminary Expenses Written Off  79,400 79,400

Balances Written Off  102,283 356,765 

TOTAL    282,451,115 75,785,871 

SChEDULE 15 : SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Advertisement and Publicity  145,838,334 20,538,135 

Business Promotion Expenses  287,754,277 11,069,576 

Commission   56,422,124 —

TOTAL    490,014,735 31,607,711 

SChEDULE 16 : FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interest

 – Fixed Loans  17,432,306 9,829,423 

 – Others   28,920,806 2,773,973 

Discounting and Financing Expenses  4,785,979 55,206

TOTAL    51,139,091 12,658,602

SChEDULES TO ThE CONSOLIDATED PrOFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOr ThE YEAr ENDED MArCh 31,
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SChEDULE 17 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

A. Background

 Zee News Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the parent company’, ‘the Company’ or ‘ZNL’) along with its subsidiary 
(collectively known as “the Group”) is in the business of content aggregation and distribution through satellite and cable.

 The Group’s revenue streams mainly include advertisements and subscription revenue. The Group also generates revenue 
through sale of television softwares and films right.

B. Basis of Consolidation

 a) The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) of the Group are prepared under Historical Cost Convention in accordance 
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India and the Accounting Standard (AS–21) on “Consolidated 
Financial Statements” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), to the extent possible in the 
same format as that adopted by the parent company for its separate financial statements by regrouping, recasting 
or rearranging figures wherever considered necessary. The significant inconsistencies in accounting policies are 
disclosed wherever applicable and no adjustments are made in the CFS for such inconsistencies.

  The consolidation of the financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiary is done to the extent possible on 
a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. All significant inter-group 
transactions, balances and unrealized inter-company profits have been eliminated in the process of consolidation.

 b) The parent company and its subsidiary prepare its financial statements under the historical cost convention, in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

 c) The CFS includes the Financial Statements of the parent company and the Indian subsidiary namely Zee Akaash News 
Private Limited. Subsidiary is consolidated from the date on which effective control is acquired, (extent of holding 
60%). 

 d) Minority Interest in the subsidiary represents the minority shareholders proportionate share of the net assets and net 
income/(Loss).

C. Significant Accounting Policies

 1. Accounting Convention:

  a) The financial statements are prepared on historical cost convention and in accordance with the Accounting 
Standards referred to in Section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act, 1956 except otherwise stated.

  b) The Company generally follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognizes income and expenditure on 
accrual basis except those with significant uncertainties. 

 2. Fixed Assets:

  a) Fixed Assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Cost includes capital cost, freight, installation cost, duties 
and taxes, finance charges and other incidental expenses incurred during the construction/installation stage 
attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

  b) All capital costs and incidental expenditure during the pre-operational period are shown as capital work in 
progress.

  c) Software is capitalized as an intangible asset on meeting recognition criteria.

 3. Borrowing Costs:

  Borrowing Costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of the cost 
of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

 4. Depreciation/Amortization:

  a) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on Straight Line Method at the rate specified in Schedule XIV of the 
Companies Act, 1956.
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  b) Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the period of Lease.

  c) Software is amortized over a period of 36 months from the date put to use.

 5. Investments:

  Long-term investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in value of long-term investment is made, if the 
diminution is other than temporary.

 6. Programs/Film Rights and Inventories:

  a) Program/Film Rights.

   Program/Film rights are stated at the lower of cost less accumulated amortization/impairment or realizable value. 
Where the realizable value on the basis of its useful economic life is less than its carrying amount, the difference 
is written off and impairment loss is expensed.

   i. Cost of news/ current affairs/ chat shows/ events etc. are fully expensed.

   ii.  Programs [other than (i) above] are amortized over three years from the year the related program is 
telecast.

   iii. Film rights are amortized on a straight-line basis over the license period or 60 months from the date of 
purchase whichever is shorter.

  b) Inventories of Tapes are valued at lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. Cost is taken on 
First-In-First-Out (FIFO) basis.

 7. Retirement Benefits:

  a) Contributions to Provident Fund and other recognized funds are charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

  b) The Company provides gratuity and leave encashment (the plans) covering the eligible employees in accordance 
with the payment of the Gratuity Act,1972 and the policy of the Company respectively. The plans provides a 
lumpsum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment of an 
amount based on the respective employee’s salary, the tenure of employment and unavailed leave lying credit 
to the account of the employee as the case may be. The liablity with regard to plan are determined by actuarial 
valuation as of the balance sheet date and provided in the books of accounts.

  c) In case of subsidiary the provision for retirement benefits are made on estimated basis.

 8. Transactions in Foreign Currencies:

  a) Transactions in foreign currency are accounted at the equivalent rupee value on the date of transaction.

  b) Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of Balance Sheet. 
Gains and losses arising on account of settlement/translation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognized in 
the Profit and Loss Account.

 9. Revenue Recognition:

  a) Revenue from Channel Operation (advertisement and subscription) is recognized when the related activity is 
completed. Advertisement revenue is net of agency commission.

  b) Sale of Program and film rights are recognized when the risk and rewards is transferred to the customers.

 10. Taxes on Income:

  a) Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961.

  b) Deferred tax is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing difference, being the difference 
between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one 
or more subsequent periods and measured using relevant enacted tax rates.
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 11. Leases:

  a) Operating Lease

   Lease of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are 
classified as operating leases. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense on accrual 
basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements.

  b) Finance Lease

   Assets acquired under Finance Lease are capitalized and the corresponding lease liability is recorded at an 
amount equal to the fair value of the leased asset at the inception of the lease. Initial costs incurred in connection 
with the specific leasing activities directly attributable to activities performed by the Company are included as 
part of the amount recognized as an asset under the lease.

 12. Impairment of assets:

  If the carrying amount of fixed assets exceeds the recoverable amount on the reporting date, the carrying amount is 
reduced to the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is measured at the higher of the net selling price and 
value in use determined by the present value of estimated cash flows.

 13. Earnings Per Share:

  Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average 
number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year, except when the results 
would be anti-dilutive.

 14. Miscellaneous Expenditure:

  Preliminary expenses are amortized over a period of five years.

D. Notes to Accounts

 1. The Scheme of Arrangement :

  The Scheme of Arrangement (the Scheme) under Section 391 to 394 read with Section 78, 100 to 103 of the Companies 
Act, 1956 between Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited (ZEEL) and Zee News Limited (the Company or ZNL) and 
Siti Cable Network Limited (SCNL) and Wire & Wireless (India) Limited (WWIL) and their respective shareholders is 
sanctioned by the Honorable High Court of Judicature at Bombay vide Order dated November 17, 2006 and copy of 
the Order has been filed with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra on November 22, 2006. Pursuant 
to the Scheme, the News and Regional Channel business (referred to as the News Business Undertaking) of ZEEL is 
transferred to and vested with the Company on appointed date i.e. March 31, 2006 on a going concern basis. This 
Scheme has been given effect to in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2006 except re-organisation 
and allotment of the share capital which has been given effect in these financial statements. 

  1.1 As on the record date, the holding of FIIs being not exceeding 32% of paid up equity share capital of ZEEL hence 
no preference shares were required to be issued to the FIIs. Therefore, Rs. 178,236,136/- ( being the difference 
between related Share Capital Suspense of Rs. 183,060,068/- and issuance of face value of Equity shares of 
Rs. 4,823,932/- to FII’s) is written back to the Profit & Loss Account persuant to the Scheme. 

  1.2 The transaction of News business undertaking between the appointed date and the effective date, carried out by 
ZEEL are deemed to be made on behalf of ZNL. Accordingly all assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of the 
de-merged undertaking for the said period accounted in the books of ZEEL are taken over by ZNL and given effect 
in these financial statements. 

 2. Program / film rights etc. for broadcasting are considered as intangibles assets as per Accounting Standard (AS–26) 
“Intangible Assets” but shown under Current Assets as are realizable in the ordinary course of business.
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3. Leases:
 3.1 In respect of assets taken on finance lease:
  Minimum Lease payment as at:

Particulars
year ended

31.03.07
Amount (Rs.)

Year ended
31.03.06

Amount (Rs.)

Not later than one year — 906,024
Later than one year and not later than five years — — 
Total — 906,024
Less: Amount representing Interest — 28,209
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments — 877,815
Less: Amount due not later than one year — 877,815
Amount due later than one year and not later than five years — — 

 3.2 In respect of assets taken on operating lease:

  The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases taken for offices premises and 
equipments. These leases are cancellable/non-cancellable operating lease agreements that are renewable on a periodic 
basis at the option of both the lessor and the lessee. The initial tenure of the lease generally is for 1 to 108 months. 

Particulars
year ended

31.03.07
Amount (Rs.)

Year ended
31.03.06

Amount (Rs.)

Lease Rental charges for the year 196,007,559 34,323,498
Future Lease Rental obligation payable (under non-cancellable leases)
Not later than one year 40,446,750 53,217,399
Later than one year but not later than five years 118,712,628 162,406,351
Later than five years 33,186,250 35,121,000

4. Deferred Tax:

 The components of deferred tax balances as at:

Particulars
year ended

31.03.07
Amount (Rs.)

Year ended
31.03.06

Amount (Rs.)

Deferred Tax Assets

Disallowance under the Income Tax Act,1961 18,312,251 13,983,439 

Minimum Alternative Tax — 1,788,981 

Unabsorbed Depreciation & Business Losses 23,305,485 1,769,402 

Total 41,617,736 17,541,822 

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Depreciation 42,252,268 24,814,297 

Total 42,252,268 24,814,297 

Deferred Tax Balances (Net) 634,532 7,272,475 
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5. Other Disclosures & Information:

 5.1 Previous years figures are regrouped, rearranged or recast wherever considered necessary. Figures in brackets pertain 
to previous year. The current year figures are not comparable with previous year’s figures due to change in business 
arrangement and transfer of business as per the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note No.1).

 5.2 Sundry Creditors for Expenses and other Liabilities include -

  -  Cheques overdrawn of Rs. 8,552,691 (Rs.18,292,488)

 5.3 Capital work in progress includes Capital advance of Rs.19,758,909 (Rs. 3,818,436)

 5.4 Contigent Liabilities not provided for:

Particulars
year ended

31.03.07
Amount (Rs.)

Year ended
31.03.06

Amount (Rs.)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 2,130,006 — 

Letter of Credit (Net of Liability provided) 8,331,500 — 

Legal cases against the Company Unascertained Unascertained 

  The Company has received legal notices of claims/law suits filed against it relating to alleged infingement of copy 
rights and defamation in relation to programs telecasted by it. In the opinion of the Management no material liability 
is likely to arise on account of such claims/law suits.

 5.5 The assets, film rights etc. transferred pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement and transfer of news business are in 
the process of registration/transfer in the name of the Company.

 5.6 The Company for its business has shared expenses of Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited as under:

Particulars
year ended

31.03.07
Amount (Rs.)

Year ended
31.03.06

Amount (Rs.)

Personnel Cost 69,627,490 —

Administrative and Other Expenses 26,298,340 —

Selling and Distribution Expenses 59,929,061 —

Total 155,854,891 —

 5.7 Debit and Credit Balances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation (if any).

6. Capital Commitments:

 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, not provided for (net of advances) is 
Rs. 37,085,699 (Rs. 69,652,996).

7. Related Party Transactions:
 (i) List of Parties where control exists:
  Subsidiary Company:
  Zee Akaash News Pvt. Ltd. (extent of holding 60%)
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 (ii) Other Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year and balance outstanding as on 
the last day of the year:

  Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited, Jayneer Capital Pvt. Ltd., New Era Entertainment Network Ltd. (Now merged 
with Dish TV India Ltd.), Churu Trading Co. (P) Ltd., Dish TV India Ltd. (Formerly ASC Enterprises Ltd.), Asia TV Ltd., 
Asia Today Limited, Zee Turner Limited, Essel Shyam Communication Ltd., Cornershop Entertainment Co. Pvt. Ltd., 
Veena Investment Pvt. Ltd., E City Entertainment India Ltd., Pan India Network Infravest Pvt. Ltd., Wire & Wireless 
(India) Ltd., United News of India, Cyquator Technologies Ltd., Ganjam Traning Co. P. Ltd., Diligent Media Corporation 
Ltd., Intrex Trade Exchange Ltd., Interactive Tradex India Limited, RKJ Wood & Plantations Pvt. Ltd., Zee Interactive 
Learning System Ltd., Asian Sky Shop Ltd., E City Films India Pvt. Ltd., ETC Networks Ltd., Intrex Intertrade Advertisers 
Pvt. Ltd., Prime Publishing Ltd., Essel International Ltd., Zee Sports Limited, Agrani Convergence Limited, Dakshin 
Communication Pvt. Ltd.

  Directors/Key Management Personnel

  Sh. Subhash Chandra, Sh. L. N. Goel, Sh. K. U. Rao, Sh. Vinod Bakshi, Sh. Naresh Bajaj (All appointed w.e.f. 
23.11.2006)

  Sh. Gaurav Goel (upto 01.12.2006)

  Sh. Gagan Goel & Sh. V. K. Gupta (upto 23.11.2006)

 (iii) Transactions with Related Parties:

      year ended Year ended
     Particulars 31.03.07 31.03.06
      Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

  (A) Transactions :
   (i) With holding Company:
    •  Value of Equity Shares allotted - Jayneer Capital Pvt. Ltd. — 60,000,000 

   (ii) With Other Related Parties:  
    • Sales, Services & Recoveries  
      Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 42,119,770 346,884,179 
      Asia Today Limited 37,662,382 — 
      Asia TV Limited 34,285,658 — 
    • Subscription Income  
      Dish TV India Ltd. 122,818,466 — 
    • Advertisement Income  
      Dish TV India Ltd. 14,268,737 — 
      ETC Networks Ltd. 9,042,525 — 
      Cornershop Entertainment Co. Pvt. Ltd. 3,290,125 — 
      Others 5,193,981 — 
    • Interest Income  
      Ganjam Trading Company Pvt. Ltd. 119,303,067 — 
    •  Purchase of Fixed Assets/Capital Work in Progress  
      Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 82,909,683 — 
      Others 376,875 — 
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    • Purchase of Programs, Goods & Services  
      Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 204,154,274 5,649,000 
      Wire and Wireless India Limited 143,411,429 — 
      Dish TV India Ltd. 99,102,790 — 
      Others 47,250,105 — 
    • Interest Paid  
      Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 28,071,121 12,603,396 
    • Commission Paid  
      Zee Turner Limited 41,798,059 — 
    • Rent Paid  
      Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 2,603,520 840,000 
      Veena Investments P. Ltd. 4,200,000 — 
      E City Entertainment (I) Ltd. 2,664,468 — 
    • Loans, Advances & Deposits Given  
      New Era Entertainment Network Pvt. Ltd. — 389,821 
      Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 177,233,935 — 
    • Loans and Advances Received  
      Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited — 1,250,000,000 
      Churu Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd. — 18,000,000 
    • Loans and Advances Repaid  
      Churu Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd. 18,000,000 — 
    • Loans and Advances Repayment Received  
      Ganjam Trading Company Pvt. Ltd. 1,250,000,000 — 
    • Value of Equity Shares Allotted  
      Churu Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd. — 47,608,100 
      Jayneer Capital Pvt. Ltd. — 15,142,000 
      Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited — 65,749,200 
    • Corporate Guarantee Given by  
      Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 100,000,000 — 
    • Net Assets transferred to the Company pursuant to  
      Agreement to Transfer with Zee Entertainment 
     Enterprises Limited (Refer Note 1) — 392,281,704 
    • Adjustment pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement
     (Refer Note 1):  
      Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited (ZEEL):  
                   Net Assets transferred to the Company — 187,108,691 
                    Cancellation of equity share capital held by ZEEL — 65,749,200 
                    Cancellation of inter corporate loan/
              creditors due to ZEEL — 1,344,624,446 

      year ended Year ended
     Particulars 31.03.07 31.03.06
      Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
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     Churu Trading Co Pvt. Ltd.(Churu):  
            Cancellation of equity share capital held by Churu — 38,597,896 
     Jayneer Capital Pvt. Ltd (Jayneer) :  
            Cancellation of equity share capital held by Jayneer — 50,345,140 
 (B) Balances as at :  
  (i) Subsidiary Company - Zee Akaash News Pvt. Ltd.  
   • Advance against share application money — — 
   • Investment made in equity share capital — — 
   • Loans/ Advances/ Deposits Received — — 
  (ii) Other Related Parties  
   • Debtors  
    Dish TV India Ltd. 43,450,560 11,310,714 
    Asia TV Ltd. 32,872,525 — 
    Asia Today Limited 17,950,618 — 
    Intrex Trade Exchange Ltd. 23,259,192 — 
    Interactive Tradex India Limited 27,751,418 — 
    Others  19,068,214 — 
   • Loans/ Advances/ Deposits Given  
    Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 177,233,935 — 
    Zee Turner Limited 128,627,832 — 
    New Era Entertainment Network Pvt. Ltd. — 389,821 
    Others  30,243,057 — 
   • Creditors  
    New Era Entertainment Network Pvt. Ltd. — 389,821 
    Dish TV India Ltd. 92,407,168 — 
    Wire & Wireless India Ltd. 36,666,161 — 
    Asia Today Limited 30,234,928 — 
    Zee Turner Limited 25,604,712 — 
    Others  18,319,932 — 
   • Loans/ Advances/ Deposits Received  
     Churu Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd. — 18,000,000 
   • Corporate Guarantee Given by  

    Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited 100,000,000 — 
 
  Notes:
  1. Transactions carried out between appointed date and effective date i.e. March 31, 2006 and November 22, 2006 

respectively by Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited as per the Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note 1) are not 
considered in the above disclosure requirements.

  2. Parties with transactions less than 10% of the group total are grouped under the head "Others".

      year ended Year ended
     Particulars 31.03.07 31.03.06
      Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
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8. Earnings per share (EPS):

Sr.
No Particulars

year ended
31.03.07

Amount (Rs.)

Year ended
31.03.06

Amount (Rs.)

a. Profit after Tax 74,705,612 13,296,243

b. Weighted Average number of equity shares of Rs. 10/- each (Nos.) 23,976,396 10,245,583 

c. Basic EPS for equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 3.12 1.30

d. Weighted number of equity shares of Re. 1/- each (Nos.) 239,763,956 102,455,834 

e. Basic EPS for equity shares of Re. 1/- each 0.31 0.13

9. Segment Reporting:

 The Company is engaged in the business of production & broadcasting of television software. The Company operates in 
a single business segment hence the reporting requirement of primarily segment as prescribed by Accounting Standard 
(AS–17) “Segment Reporting” have not been provided in these financial statements. The export income is nominal hence 
disclosure relating to geographical segment not given.

As per our attached report of even date
L. K. Shrishrimal 
Membership No. 72664
Partner
For and on behalf  of MGB & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Place : Noida
Date : June 28, 2007

For and on behalf of the Board

L. N. Goel Naresh Bajaj
Managing Director Director

R. K. Agarwal Shailesh Dholakia
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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    Amount (Rs.)
     2007 2006
A. CASh FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
 Net Profit before taxation and exceptional items  104,447,426 15,883,900 
 Adjustments for:
 Depreciation and Amortisation  52,096,780 14,943,978 
 Loss on the sale of fixed Assets  3,957,463 1,245,504 
 Interest Expenses  46,353,112 12,603,396 
 Preliminary Expenses written off  79,400 79,400 
 Interest Income  (119,304,504) (3,082,967)
 Provision for doubtful debts  14,598,001 — 
 Unrealised Foreign Exchange Difference  601,545 102,566 
 Operating profit before working capital changes  102,829,223 41,775,777 
 Adjustments for:
 (Increase) in Programs, Film Rights and Inventories  (290,348,759) (7,508,565)
 (Increase) in Trade & other Receivables  (589,796,741) (153,674,935)
 Increase in trade & other payables  316,886,752 368,329,300 
 Cash generated from Operations  (460,429,525) 248,921,577 
 Direct Taxes paid (FBT)  (45,357,559) (9,894,362)
 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities  (505,787,084) 239,027,215 

B. CASh FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:
 Purchase of Fixed Assets / CWIP  (299,509,045) (446,215,111)
 Sale of Fixed Assets  3,894,651 819,000 
 Preliminary Expenses Incurred  — (397,000)
 Loans to Others  — (1,250,000,000)
 Repayment of Loans Given  1,250,000,000 —
 Interest received  121,695,052 692,419 
 Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities  1,076,080,658 (1,695,100,692)

C. CASh FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
 Interest Paid  (46,093,870) (10,442,099)
 Increase in Minority Interest  43,320,000 12,200,180 
 Proceeds from issued of Share Capital (including Securities Premium)  — 256,499,300 
 Loan Received  7,274,000 1,271,215,510 
 Repayment of Loans  (545,371,700) (70,000,000)
 Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities  (540,871,570) 1,459,472,891
 Net Cash Flow during the year (A+B+C)  29,422,004 3,399,414  
 Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents  11,538,295 874,662 
 Add: Cash & Cash equivalents received as per the Scheme of Arrangement — 7,264,219 
 Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents  40,960,299 11,538,295 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise:
 Cash in Hand  935,443 964,265 
 Balance with Scheduled Banks in Current Accounts  39,969,856 10,235,142 
 Balance with Scheduled Banks in Deposit Accounts
 (Pledged with Sales Tax Department)  55,000 55,000 
 Cheques in Hand/Transit  — 283,888 
 Total    40,960,299 11,538,295
 Notes:
 1. Previous year figures are regrouped, recasted and reconsidered wherever necessary.
 2. The Scheme of Arrangement (Refer Note 1) have not been considered in above cash flow statement being non cash transactions.

CONSOLIDATED CASh FLOW STATEMENT FOr ThE YEAr ENDED MArCh 31,

As per our attached report of even date
L. K. Shrishrimal 
Membership No. 72664
Partner
For and on behalf  of MGB & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Place : Noida
Date : June 28, 2007

For and on behalf of the Board

L. N. Goel Naresh Bajaj
Managing Director Director

R. K. Agarwal Shailesh Dholakia
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Directors' Report

To,
The Members of 
Zee Akaash News Private Limited

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Second Annual 
Report of the Company together with Audited Statement of 
Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2007.

Financial Results:

The Financial Performance of your Company for the year ended 
March 31, 2007 is summarized below:

Amount (Rs.)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
 31.03.2007 31.03.2006

Sales & Services        47,820,825                      –   
Other Income              14,612               27,650 
Total Income        47,835,437               27,650 
Total Expenses       108,405,727               91,664 
Profit/(Loss) before Tax       (60,570,290)             (64,014)
Provision for Taxation (net)       (18,871,744)              54,995 
Profit/(Loss) after Tax       (41,698,546)           (119,009)
Profit/(Loss) brought
forwarded            (119,009)                  –   
Profit/(Loss) carried
forward to Balance Sheet       (41,817,555)          (119,009)

Business Overview:

Zee Akaash News Pvt. Ltd. is a joint venture company between 
Zee News Ltd. and Sky B (Bangla) Pvt. Ltd. Your Company 
operates “24 Ghanta", a 24 x 7 Bangla News & Current Affairs 
TV channel. The year 2006-07 was its first year of operation 
during which it has made impressive viewership gains in the 
face of stiff competition. This has been achieved by strong 
and relevent content, slick packaging and leveraging state-
of-art technology. Your Company has established a strong 
network of news bureaus and correspondents using advanced 
fastest modes of connectivity for quicker delivery of news 
content. Mobile OB vans and other latest technologies have 
been deployed to enhance news gathering capabilities. Your 
Company has added advantage of being able to access Zee 
Network’s deep understanding of all aspects of the news 
broadcasting business. Since inception “24 Ghanta” has 
established itself as a chennel focused on providing intelligent  
and well rounded content to Bengali news viewers.

The beginning has been encouraging and your directors feel 
confident that your company shall continue to surge ahead   in 
ratings, revenues and reputation in times to come.

Dividend:

In absence of any distributable profit, your Directors express 
their inability to recommend payment of dividend to the 
members of the Company for the year under review.

Share Capital:

In accordance with the provisions of Memorandum of 
Understanding entered between Zee News Limited and Sky B 
(Bangla) Limited, the shareholders of the Company, and to meet 
various business needs of the Company, Zee News Limited and 
Sky B (Bangla) Limited have provided funds to the Company 
aggregating Rs.156.60 million as share application money.

Pursuant to the aforesaid MOU and against receipt of share 
application money, your Company has issued and allotted 
950,000 further equity shares of Rs. 10 each to Zee News 
Limited and Sky B (Bangla) Limited on rights basis at a 
premium of Rs.104 per share. Consequent to issue of further 
share capital, total issued, subscribed and paid up capital of 
the Company stands at Rs. 4 crores comprising of 4,000,000 
equity shares of Rs.10 each. 

Public Deposit:

During the period under review, the Company has not 
accepted any Deposits within the meaning of Section 58A of 
the Companies Act, 1956 and rules made there under.

Directors:

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, 
Mr. R K Agarwal is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for 
re-appointment.

Auditors:

M/s. Ashok Kumar Aggarwal & Co., Chartered Accountant, 
Delhi, the Statutory Auditors of the Company, retires at the 
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being 
eligible, offered themselves for re-appointment as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for the year 2007-08.
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Additional information under the Companies (Disclosure of 
Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 
1988:

I. Energy Conservation and Technology Absorption:

 During the year under review, the Company has not 
carried out any activities involving conservation of energy 
and technology absorption. 

II. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:

 Details of foreign exchange earnings and out go during 
the year under review is given in Note No.13 (e) of the 
Notes to Accounts.      

Particulars of Employees:

Since none of the employees are drawing salary in excess of 
limit specified under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 
1956, information as per that Section read with Companies 
(Disclosure of particulars in the Report of Directors) Rules, 
1988 is not applicable.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement u/s 217 (2AA) of the 
Companies Act, 1956:

The Board of Directors hereby confirms and declares that:

(i) That in the preparation of the annual accounts the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed along 
with proper explanation relation to material departures;

(ii) That the Directors had selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the 
Company for that year;

(iii) That the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care of 
the maintenance of the adequate accounting records in 
accordance with provisions of this Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

(iv) That the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on 
a going concern basis.

Acknowledgement:

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their 
appreciation for the dedication and commitment of employees 
shown at all levels. Your Directors also expresses their gratitude 
for the valuable support and co-operation extended during 
the year by various Governmental Authorities, Stakeholders, 
including Bankers, Viewers, Vendors and Service Providers.

For and on behalf of the Board

    L. N. Goel Avik Dutta
    Director Director

Place: Delhi 
Date: June 25, 2007
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Auditors’ Report

The Members of M/s Zee Akaash News Private Limited

1. We have audited the attached balance sheet of M/s Zee 
Akaash News Private Limited as at March 31, 2007, the 
Profit & Loss Account for the year ended on that date and 
Cash Flow Statement annexed thereto. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing 
standards generally accepted in India. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material mis-statement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2003, issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub-section 4A of Section 227 of the Companies Act, 
1956, we annex hereto a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraph 4 and 5 of the said order.

4. Further to our comments we report that:

 (i) We have obtained all the information and 
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit,

 (ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as 
appears from our examination of those books;

 (iii) The balance sheet, profit and loss account and 
cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

 (iv) In our opinion, the balance sheet, profit and loss 
account and cash flow statement dealt with by 
this report comply with the accounting standards 
referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the 
Companies Act, 1956;

 (v) On the basis of written representations received 
from the directors, as on March 31, 2007 and taken 
on record by the Board of Directors we report that 
none of the directors is disqualified as on March  31, 
2007 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the 
companies Act, 1956;

 (vi) In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
said accounts give the information required by 
Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principal generally accept in India:

  (a) in the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2007;

  (b) in the case of the Profit and Loss account, of 
the loss incurred for the year ended on that 
date; and

  (c) in the case of Cash Flow statement of the cash 
flow for the year ended on that date.

For Ashok Kumar Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

A. K. Aggarwal
F.C.A.
M. No. 82695

Place : Delhi
Date : June 25, 2007
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Annexure to Auditor's Report referred to in Paragraph 3 of our report of even date:

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets on the basis of 
available information.

  (b) As explained to us, the fixed assets have been 
physically verified by the management during 
the year under consideration. As per information 
& explanations given to us, there is a regular 
programme of verification which, in our opinion, 
is reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and the nature of its assets. No material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 (c) The Company has not disposed of substantial part 
of fixed assets during the year and hence the going 
concerns status of the Company is not affected.

2. (a) As explained to us, the inventories have been 
physically verified by management during the year 
under consideration at reasonable intervals.

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the procedures for physical 
verification of inventory followed by management 
were reasonable and adequate in relation to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business.

 (c) In our opinion the Company has maintained proper 
records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on 
verification between the physical stock and book 
stock was not material and have been properly 
dealt with in the books of accounts.

3. The Company has not granted or taken any loans, secured 
or unsecured to/from any company, firm or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of 
the Companies Act, 1956, therefore Clause 3 of the order 
is not applicable to it.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal 
control system commensurate with the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business with regard to 
purchases and sale of assets. During the course of our 
audit, no major weakness has been noticed in the internal 
controls.

5. In respect of particulars of contracts or arrangements 
referred to in Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 : 

 (a) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the particulars of contracts 
or arrangements, that needed to be entered into 
the register maintained under Section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 have been so entered. 

 (b) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the particulars of contracts 
or arrangements entered in the registers maintained 
u/s 301 and exceeding the value of five lakh rupees 
in respect of any party during the year have been 
made at prices which are reasonable having regard 
to prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

6. During the year covered by our audit the company has 
not accepted any deposits from public. 

7. In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

8. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance 
of cost records under Section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies 
Act, 1956 for any of the activities of the Company. 

9. (a) According to the records, information and 
explanations provided to us, the Company is 
generally regular in depositing with appropriate 
authorities undisputed amount of statutory dues 
including Provident Fund, Investor Education and 
Protection Fund, Employees State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, 
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and any other 
statutory dues applicable to it.

 (b) According to the information and explanations 
given to us, there was no disputed amount towards 
income tax, wealth tax, sales tax, service tax, 
customs duty, excise duty and Cess that have not 
been paid to the concerned authorities.

10. Since the Company has been registered for a period less than 
five years, Clause (x) of the order is not applicable to it.

11. During the period covered by our audit the Company 
has not taken any loan from financial institutions, bank 
or debenture holder, therefore there was no default in 
repayment of dues. 

12. Based on our examination and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not granted loans and advances on the basis of 
security by way of pledge of shares, debentures or other 
securities.
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13. Since the Company is not chit/nidhi/mutual benefit fund/
society, Clause (xiii) of the order is not applicable to it.

14. As the Company is not dealing or trading in shares, 
securities, debentures and other investments, so Clause 
(xiv) is not applicable to the Company.

15. On the basis of information & explanations given to us, 
the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken 
by others from bank or financial institutions, so Clause 
(xv) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

16. The Company has not taken any term loan, therefore, 
clause (xvi) of order is not applicable to it. 

17. According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company and after placing reliance on 
the reasonable assumptions made by the Company for 
classification of long-term and short term usage of funds, 
we are of the opinion that prima facie, as at the close of 
the year, funds raised on short-term basis have not been 
used for long-term investment.

18. According to the information and explanation given to us, 
the price at which the Company has made allotment of 
shares to parties and companies covered in the register 
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 
1956 is not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the 
Company.

19. During the period covered by our audit, the company 
has not issued any debenture and therefore question of 
creation of any security or charge in respect of debentures 
does not arise.

20. According to the records, information and explanations 
provided to us, the Company has not raised any money 
by public issue-during the year.

21. Based upon the audit procedures performed and 
information and explanations given to us by the 
management, we report that no fraud on or by the 
Company has been noticed or reported during the course 
of our audit.

For Ashok Kumar Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

A. K. Aggarwal
F.C.A.
M. No. 82695

Place : Delhi
Date : June 25, 2007
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Balance sheet as at March 31,
      Amount (Rs.)

    Schedule 2007 2006
A) Sources of Funds
 Shareholder’s Funds
 Share Capital 1 40,000,000.00 30,500,000.00 
 Reserves & Surplus 2 98,800,000.00 —

 TOTAL   138,800,000.00 30,500,000.00 

B) Application of Funds
 a) Fixed Assets 3
 b) Gross Block  116,531,938.69 34,439,881.83 
 c) Less: Depreciation  4,243,038.88 —

     112,288,899.81 34,439,881.83 

C) Defferred Tax Assets (Net)  19,552,279.00 — 

D) Current Assets, Loans & Advances
 Current Assets 4 43,484,626.46 3,237,040.41 
 Loans & Advances  1,935,616.78 11,854,538.51 

     45,420,243.24 15,091,578.92 
E) Current Liabilities & Provisions 5
 Current Liabilities  86,117,655.53 27,393,566.94 
 Provisions   792,895.00 66,219.00 
     86,910,550.53 27,459,785.94 

 Net Current Assets (D-E)  (41,490,307.29) (12,368,207.02)

F) Miscellaneous Expenditure 6
 (To the extent not written off or adjusted)
 a) Preliminary Expenses  238,200.00 317,600.00 
 b) Pre-operative Expenses  6,393,373.19 7,991,716.19 

G) Profit & Loss Account  41,817,555.29 119,009.00 

 TOTAL   138,800,000.00 30,500,000.00 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 12

As per our seperate report of even date annexed For  and on behalf of the Board
For Ashok Kumar Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants 

A. K. Aggarwal L. N. Goel Avik Dutta
F.C.A.   Director Director
Membership No.: 82695

Place: Delhi 
Date: June 25, 2007
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PrOFIt anD lOss accOUnt FOr the Year enDeD March 31,
      Amount (Rs.)

    Schedule 2007 2006

Income

Revenue from Channel Operations  47,820,824.79 —

Other Income   14,612.00 27,650.00 

TOTAL    47,835,436.79 27,650.00 

Expenditure

Operational Cost 7 42,679,183.62 1,040.00 

Personnel Expenses 8 22,958,458.55 — 

Office, Administrative and General Expenses 9 18,605,721.25 11,224.00 

Selling & Distribution Expenses 10 18,239,968.54 —

Financial Expenses 11 1,613.24 — 

Depreciation   4,243,038.88 —

Preliminary Expenses & Pre-Operative Expenses Written Off  1,677,743.00 79,400.00 

TOTAL    108,405,727.08 91,664.00 

Net Loss for the year  60,570,290.29 64,014.00 

Provision for :

 - Current Tax  — —

 - Defferred Tax  (19,552,279.00) —

 - Fringe Benefit Tax  680,535.00 54,995.00 

     41,698,546.29 119,009.00 

Losses brought forward from earlier year  119,009.00 —

Net Loss carried forward to the Balance Sheet  41,817,555.29 119,009.00 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 12

As per our seperate report of even date annexed For  and on behalf of the Board
For Ashok Kumar Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants 

A. K. Aggarwal L. N. Goel Avik Dutta
F.C.A.   Director Director
Membership No.: 82695

Place: Delhi 
Date: June 25, 2007
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scheDUles tO the Balance sheet as at March 31,
Amount (Rs.)

     2007 2006
SCHEDULE 1 : SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised
4,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each  40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up
4,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up  40,000,000.00 30,500,000.00 
(Previous year 3,050,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up)
[Of the above Shares 570,000 fully paid up Equity Shares are allotted
at a premium of Rs. 104/- each without payment being received in
cash i.e. in consideration of aquiring Plant, Machinery & Equipments]  

TOTAL    40,000,000.00 30,500,000.00 

SCHEDULE 2: RESERVE & SURPLUS
Share Premium Account  98,800,000.00 — 

TOTAL    98,800,000.00 —

SCHEDULE 3: FIxED ASSETS

 Amount (Rs.)

 GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

   As at Additions Sales As at Up to On Sale For the Up to As at As at
 Sr.  Particulars 01.04.06 During Adjustment 31.03.07 31.03.06 Adjustment Year 31.03.07 31.03.07 31.03.06
 No   the year          
        

 1. Computer 5,461,163.00 3,319,083.45 — 8,780,246.45  NA — 1,346,160.75 1,346,160.75 7,434,085.70 5,461,163.00 

 2. Plant & Machinery 15,087,789.06 75,238,899.13 — 90,326,688.19 NA — 1,832,023.97 1,832,023.97 88,494,664.22 15,087,789.06 

 3. Furniture & 13,890,929.77 3,534,074.28 — 17,425,004.05 NA — 1,064,854.16 1,064,854.16 16,360,149.89 13,890,929.77 
  Fixtures

  Current Year 34,439,881.83 82,092,056.86 — 116,531,938.69 NA — 4,243,038.88 4,243,038.88 112,288,899.81 34,439,881.83 

  Previous Year NA 34,439,881.83 — 34,439,881.83 NA — — — 34,439,881.83 NA

      Amount (Rs.)

     2007 2006
SCHEDULE 4 : CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES

A) Current Assets
 1. Inventories
  (Valued at cost or market price whichever is less
  & as certified by the management)
  Closing stock of tapes/cassettes  498,656.00 1,935,010.00 

 2. Sundry Debtors
  (Unsecured considered good)
  Outstanding for more than six months  2,858,427.96 —
  Others  38,246,380.80 28,430.30 
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scheDUles tO the Balance sheet as at March 31,
      Amount (Rs.)

SCHEDULE 4 : CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES (Contd.) 2007 2006

 3. Cash in hand
  (As certified by management )  63,512.32 144,780.00 

 4. Balance with scheduled banks
  In current account  1,817,649.38 1,128,820.11 

 Sub Total ‘A’   43,484,626.46 3,237,040.41 

B) Loans & Advances
 1. Advance to suppliers  188,980.00 2,913,907.60 
 2. Advance to staffs for office expenses  456,523.17 532,874.91 
 3. Advances for machineries/equipments  — 8,392,756.00 
 4. Prepaid expenses/unexpired expenses  392,654.00 —
 5. Advance fringe benefit tax  747,573.00 15,000.00 
 6. Tax deducted at source  149,886.61 —

 Sub Total ‘B’   1,935,616.78 11,854,538.51 
 TOTAL (‘A’ + ‘B’)   45,420,243.24 15,091,578.92 
 
SCHEDULE 5 : CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
A) Current Liabilities
 Share application money  48,782,334.00 —
 Sundry creditors  31,779,560.82 15,400,860.58 
 Expenses payable/amounts payable  5,162,315.22 1,261,196.36 
 Security received  5,200.00 2,000.00 
 Amount payable  358,009.29 10,729,510.00 
 Advances from customers  30,236.20 — 

 Sub Total ‘A’   86,117,655.53 27,393,566.94 
B) Provisions
 For auditors remuneration & expenses  112,360.00 11,224.00 
 For current tax  — —
 For fringe benefit tax  680,535.00 54,995.00 

 Sub Total ‘B’   792,895.00 66,219.00 

 TOTAL (‘A’ + ‘B’)   86,910,550.53 27,459,785.94 

SCHEDULE 6 : MISCELLANEOUS ExPENDITURE
      Amount (Rs.)

     2007  2006
(To the extent not written of or adjusted)
1. Preliminary expenses 317,600.00  397,000.00
 Less: 1/5 written off 79,400.00 238,200.00 79,400.00 317,600.00 
2) Pre incorporation expenses 7,991,716.19  7,991,716.19
 Less: 1/5 written off 1,598,343.00 6,393,373.19 — 7,991,716.19 

 TOTAL   6,631,573.19  8,309,316.19
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scheDUles tO the PrOFIt anD lOss accOUnt FOr the Year enDeD March 31,
SCHEDULE 7 : OPERATIONAL COST    Amount (Rs.) 
      2007  2006
1. Cost of consumption/Sales of tapes/cassetes
 Opening Stock 1,935,010.00  —
 Add: Purchases 1,466,500.00  1,936,050.00
    3,401,510.00  1,936,050.00
 Less: Closing Stock 498,656.00 2,902,854.00 1,935,010.00 1,040.00 
2. Consumable Stores  159,725.00  —
3. Transponder Cost  9,243,181.00  — 
4. Licence Fee & Royalty  634,100.00  — 
5. Subscription Charges  424,284.00  — 
6. Up-linking, V-sat & Lease Line Charges  6,479,434.85  — 
7. Hire Charges of Machinery & Equipments  1,777,930.00  — 
8. Vehicle Hire Charges  5,587,982.57  — 
9. Professional Charges  1,250,784.00  — 
10. Travelling Expenses  1,900,065.75  — 
 [Director’s Travelling Rs. Nil
 (Previous year Rs. Nil)]
 [Foreign Travelling Rs.335,440/50 
 (Previous year Rs. Nil)]
11. Other Production Cost  12,318,842.45  — 

TOTAL    42,679,183.62  1,040.00 

SCHEDULE 8 : PERSONNEL ExPENSES     
1.  Salaries, allowances and bonus  21,664,660.00  — 
2.  Contribution to provident fund and other funds  477,593.00  — 
3.  Staff welfare expenses  428,767.55  — 
4.  ESIC   384,938.00  —
5.  Employers professional tax  2,500.00  — 

TOTAL    22,958,458.55  — 

SCHEDULE 9 :  OFFICE, ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL ExPENSES

1.  Rent   7,595,845.00  — 
2.  Repair & Maintenance
   Plant & Machinery 369,992.38
   Others 79,988.00 449,980.38  — 
3.  Electricity Expenses  5,864,472.10  — 
4.  Insurance Charges  260,872.00  — 
5.  Telephone & Mobile Expenses  1,714,694.71  — 
6.  Conveyance & Travelling Expenses  603,932.75  — 
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scheDUles tO the PrOFIt anD lOss accOUnt FOr the Year enDeD March 31,
SCHEDULE 9 :  OFFICE, ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL ExPENSES (Contd.)   Amount (Rs.)

     2007  2006

7.  Books & Periodicals  59,341.50  — 
8.  Postage, Telegram & Courier Expenses  211,468.67  — 
9.  Printing & Stationery  320,118.80  — 
10.  Internet Charges  191,200.00  — 
11.  Security Expenses  121,247.74  — 
12.  Legal & Professional Expenses  117,900.00  — 
13.  General Expenses  76,864.51  — 
14.  Business Promotion Expenses  504,582.63  —
15.  Office Maintenance  400,840.46  — 
16.  Auditor’s Remuneration  112,360.00  11,224.00 

TOTAL    18,605,721.25  11,224.00 

SCHEDULE 10 : SELLING & DISTRIBUTION 

1.  Sales Promotion Expenses  146,299.00  —
2.  Advertisement Expenses  147,139.00  —
3.  LCN Charges  16,601,866.00  — 
4.  Hoarding Expenses  706,875.00  — 

5.  Convention Holding Expenses  271,639.54  — 

6.  Commission Charges  366,150.00  —

TOTAL    18,239,968.54  —

SCHEDULE 11 : FINANCIAL ExPENSES    
     
1.  Bank Charges  1,613.24  — 

TOTAL    1,613.24  — 
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SCHEDULE 12 : SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

A. Significant Accounting Policies
1. Accounting Concepts, Conventions & Systems
 The financial statements are prepared on the basic concept of going concern under historical cost convention on Accrual 

Basis by following the Mercantile System of Accounting. These statements are in accordance with the requirements of 
Companies Act, 1956 and comply in all material aspects with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of 
Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956. 

2. Fixed Assets & Depreciation
 Fixed assets are shown at cost less Accumulated Depreciation and impairment losses.
 Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided prorata for the period of use at the rates prescribed in schedule XIV to the 

Companies Act, 1956 by adopting straight line method. 
3. Impairment of Assets
 The Company identifies impairable fixed assets based on cash generating unit concept at the year end in accordance with 

AS-28 issued by ICAI for the purpose of arriving at impairment loss thereon, if any, being the difference between the book 
value and recoverable value of relevant assets. Impairment loss when crystallizes is charged against revenue of the year.

4. Investments
 Long-term Investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in value of long-term investment is made, if the diminution 

is not temporary in nature.
 Current Investments are valued at lower of cost or realisable value. Realisable value means the net value which can be 

realised in ordinary course of business.
5. Recognition of Revenue & Expenditure 
 The Company is following mercantile system of accounting for recognizing both revenue & expenditure. 
 No personal expense is charged to revenue.
 Cost of news/ current affairs/ shows & events are fully charged to revenue.
 Revenue from channel operation is recognized on completion of related activity.
 Advertisement and subscription revenue is recognized on net of discount basis.
6. Borrowing Cost
 No borrowing cost has been incurred by the Company.
7. Retirement Benefits
 The Company contribute to employees provident fund and contribution to provident fund and other funds are charged to 

against revenue of the year.
 Provision of Gratuity rules have not become applicable to the Company. Contribution to Gratuity fund will be made in 

accordance with the rules of the respective funds and/or statue as and when applicable.
 Retirement benefit costs are expensed to revenue as incurred. 
8. Inventories
 Inventories of cassettes/tapes are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost of consumption of cassettes/tapes 

is measured by adopting FIFO (First in First out) method. 
9. Foreign Currency Transactions 
 Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. 
 No assets or liabilities are acquired/incurred in foreign exchange.
 No imports or exports of goods are made by the Company.
10. Taxes on Income
 Income tax are accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)-22 issued by ICAI. Taxes comprises both 

current and Deferred Tax. 
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 Current Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid/recovered from the revenue authorities using the applicable tax 
rate and laws.

 The tax effect of the timing difference that results between taxable income and accounting income and are capable of 
reversal in one or more subsequent periods are recorded as a deferred tax assets or deferred tax liability. Deferred Tax 
Assets and liabilities are recognized for future tax consequence attributable to timing difference. They are measured using 
the substantive enacted tax rates and tax regulations. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each balance sheet 
date is reduced to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which deferred tax asset can be realized.

 Fringe benefit tax (FBT) payable under the provision of section 115WC of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is in accordance 
with the guidance note on “Accounting for Fringe Benefit Tax” issued by ICAI regarded as an additional Income Tax and 
considered in determination of profit for the year.

11. Earning Per Share
 The Company reports basic and diluted Earning Per Share (EPS) in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)-20 on 

“Earning per Share”. Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity 
shares except where the results are anti-dilutive. 

12. Leases
 The company has entered into operating lease agreements. The operating lease agreements is one under which asset has 

been transferred by the lessor to the lessee for use purposes and risks & rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor. 
Lease rentals in respect of operating lease are recognized as revenue expenditure and accordingly charged to revenue on 
accrual basis. 

B. Notes to Accounts
 1. Contingent Liabilities
  Not provided for  NIL NIL
 2. Capital Contracts
  Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on
  capital account and not provide for  NIL NIL
 3. Managerial Remuneration  NIL NIL 
 4. Remuneration to Auditors
  a) As Audit Fees  84,270.00  11,224.00
  b) As Tax Audit Fees  28,090.00 NIL
  c) For certification & other services  NIL NIL 
      1,12,360.00 11,224.00
 5. Due to Small Scale Industrial Undertaking 
  Sundry creditors include amounts due to a small scale industrial undertaking NIL NIL
  (The above is based on the details available with the Company regarding
  status of suppliers.)

 6. Segment Reporting
  Since the Company is engaged in single business i.e. running of channels only, the disclosure requirement relating to 

primarily and secondary segment as per Accounting Standard – 17 is not applicable to the Company. Similarly the area 
of operation of the Company is within one geographical segment only, the disclosure relating to geographical segment 
is also not applicable. 
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 7. Related Parties Disclosure
  a) List of Parties where control exists 
   i. Holding Company
    M/s Zee News Ltd. (Extent of holding 60%)
   ii. Other Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year and balances outstanding  

   as on the last day of the year:-
    M/s Sky B (Bangla) Pvt. Ltd., Zee Turner Ltd.,  and Dish TV (India) Ltd. (Formerly ASC Enterprises Ltd.)
    Directors/Key Management Personal
    i) Sh. Laxmi Narain Goel
    ii) Sh. Avik Datta
    iii) Sh. R. K. Aggarwal
   iii. Transactions with Related Parties

        Amount (Rs.)

  Particulars   31.03.2007 31.03.2006

 A. Transactions
 i. With Holding Company
  M/s Zee News Ltd.
  a) Face Value of Equity Shares allotted  5,700,000.00 18,299,820.00
  b) Share Premium Account  59,280,000.00 NIL
  c) Share Application Money Received   48,782,334.00 NIL
  d) Advance given  NIL 17,000,000.00
  e) Advance received back/payment
   made on behalf of the Company  8,392,756.00 NIL
  f) Fixed Assets acquired against issue of
   570,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
   fully paid up at a premium of Rs. 104/- each 
   and Rs. 3,324,451/- transfered to share 
   Application Money  68,304,451.00 NIL
  g) OB-Van Expenses  103,168.00  NIL
 ii. with other related parties
  a) Revenue from channel operations
   M/s Zee Turner Ltd.  20,263,148.00 NIL
  b) Commission Paid
   M/s Zee Turner Ltd.  366,150.00 NIL
  c) Transponder Charges
   M/s Dish TV (India) Ltd.
   (Formerly ASC Enterprises Ltd.)  9,009,521.00  NIL
  d) LCN Charges 
   M/s Dish TV (India) Ltd.   16,601,866.00 NIL
   (Formerly ASC Enterprises Ltd.)
  e) Ku-Band Charges
   M/s Dish TV (India) Ltd.  3,722,400.00 NIL
   (Formerly ASC Enterprises Ltd.)
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        Amount (Rs.)

  Particulars   31.03.2007 31.03.2006

  f) Share Capital Received
   M/s Sky B (Bangla) Pvt. Ltd.  3,800,000.00 12,199,880.00
  g) Share Premium Received
   M/s Sky B (Bangla) Pvt. Ltd.   39,520,000.00 NIL
  h) Advance Received/Payment of
   Expenses made on behalf of Company. 
   M/s Sky B (Bangla) Pvt. Ltd.   142,094.00 10,729,510.00 
   i) Advance Repaid by way of transfer
    to Share Capital & Premium/Re-imbursement of expenses
    M/s Sky B (Bangla) Pvt. Ltd.  10,513,594.71 NIL 
 B. Balances as at 
 i) Holding company
  M/s Zee News Ltd.
  a) Credit Balance on account of share 
   application money  48,782,334.00  NIL
  b) Debit Balance on account of amount 
   paid for making payment as advance 
   to machinery/equipment suppliers  NIL  8,392,756.00
  c) Face Value of Equity Shares held  23,999,820.00  18,299,820.00
       (60%) (60%)
  d) Share Premium Account  59,280,000.00 NIL
 ii) Other Related Parties
  a) Sundry Debtors
   M/s Zee Turner Ltd.  21,823,150.00 NIL
  b) Sundry Creditors
   M/s Dish TV (India) Ltd.  25,510,164.00 NIL
   (Formerly ASC Enterprises Ltd.)
  c) Advance Received/Amounts payable
   towards expenses paid on behalf of Co.
   M/s Sky B (Bangla) Pvt. Ltd.  358,009.29  10,729,510.00
  d) Share Capital 
   M/s Sky B (Bangla) Pvt. Ltd.   15,999,880.00  12,199,880.00
  e) Share Premium Received
   M/s Sky B (Bangla) Pvt. Ltd.   39,520,000.00  NIL
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8. Lease Rentals
 The Company has taken office premises alongwith maintenance services like air conditions, lifts and generators on operating 

leases of nine years, commencing from 16.01.2006. The lease agreements do not specifically provides for renewal or 
cancellation of lease. The lease rentals can be summarized as under:

        Amount (Rs.)

 Particulars    Year ended Year ended
       31.03.2007 31.03.2006

 a) Lease Rental charges for the year  7,200,000.00 1,500,000.00
 b) Future Lease Rental obligations payable 
  i) Not later than one year  7,200,000.00 7,200,000.00
  ii) Later than one year but not later than five years  32,523,750.00 31,185,000.00
  iii) Later than five years  26,582,250.00 35,121,000.00
9. Earning Per Share has been computed as under:
 a. Profit/(loss) after tax  (41,698,546.00) (119,009.00)
 b. Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
  i) Basic    * 3,050,000 3,050,000
  ii) Diluted   * 3,050,000 3,050,000
   *[ 30,50,000 x 1 + 9,50,000 x 0]
 c. Earning per share (face value Rs. 10 per share)
  i) Basic   (13.67) (0.04)
  ii) Diluted   (13.67) (0.04)
10. Deferred Tax Assets (Liability)
 Comprises timing differences on account of:
 Deferred Tax Assets
  Unabsorbed Depreciation & Carry Forward 
  Of Business Losses  23,305,485.00 NIL
 Deferred Tax Liabilities
  Depreciation   3,753,206.00 NIL
       19,552,279.00 NIL

11. Deferred Expenditure

 Preliminary expenses and pre-operative expenses are amortized in five equal installments over a period of five years.

12. Issue of Equity Shares in consideration for other than cash

 The Company has acquired certain machinery & equipment from its holding company M/s Zee News Ltd. These assets 
were acquired by M/s Zee News Ltd. at a cost of Rs. 68,304,451/- and transferred to the company in consideration for 
issuance of 570,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up and transfer of Rs. 3,324,451/- to Share Application Money. 
Accordingly 570,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up are issued to M/s Zee News Ltd. (Holding Company) at a 
premium of Rs. 104/- each. The value at which the fixed assets are acquired as well as the price at which the above shares 
are issued, are not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 
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13. Additional Information Pursuant to Part II of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956

 a) Licensed & Installed capacity and capacity utilization

  Since the Company is in the business of running “Channel” only, this information is not applicable to it.

 b) Quantitative Details of Raw Cassettes/Tapes

      2007 2006
   Particulars Qty. (Nos.) Amount (Rs.) Qty. (Nos.) Amount (Rs.)

  a) Opening Stock 6,201 1,935,010.00 N.A. N.A.
  b) Purchases  87,451 1,466,500.00 6,301 1,936,050.00
  c) Sales  NIL NIL 100 1,040.00
  d) Consumption 11,461 2,902,854.00 NIL NIL
  e) Closing Stock 3,485 498,656.00 6,201 1,935,010.00
 c) Consumption of Raw Cassettes/Tapes
  Imported   NIL NIL NIL NIL
  Indigenous  11,461 2,902,854.00 NIL NIL
      (100%)
 d) C.I.F. Value of Imports NIL NIL
 e) Expenditure in Foreign Exchange
  Travelling expenses 335,440.50 NIL 
  Transponder charges 198,660.00 NIL
 f) Earnings in Foreign Currency
  - FOB Value of Exports NIL NIL
  - Others   NIL NIL

14. The amounts of certain Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors, Advances and Lenders are subject to confirmation/ reconciliation 
and adjustments, if any.

15. Previous Year’s figures have been re-grouped/ rearranged/ recast wherever necessary to confirm with current year’s 
presentation.

16. Schedules are related to and form an integral part of the accounts.

As per our seperate report of even date annexed For  and on behalf of the Board
For Ashok Kumar Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants 

A. K. Aggarwal L. N. Goel Avik Dutta
F.C.A.   Director Director
Membership No.: 82695

Place: Delhi 
Date: June 25, 2007
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      Amount (Rs.)

    2007 2006
A. CASH FLOw FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
 Net Profit before taxation and exceptional items   (60,570,290) (64,014.00)
 Adjustments for:
 Depreciation & Amortisation   4,243,039 —
 Preliminery Expenses   1,677,743 79,400.00 
 Operating profit before working capital changes   (54,649,508) 15,386.00 
 Adjustments for:
 (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories   1,436,354 (1,935,010.00)
 (Increase)/Decrease in Trade & other Receivables   (30,424,884) (11,867,968.81)
 (Increase)/Decrease in trade & other payables   58,825,525 27,404,709.94
 Cash generated from Operations   (24,812,814) 13,617,198
 Direct Taxes paid (FBT)   (30,424,884) (11,867,968.81)

 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities       (25,600,382) 13,602,198 

B. CASH FLOw FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:
 Purchase of Fixed Assets   (82,092,057) (34,439,881.83)
 Preliminary expenses incurred   — (397,000.00)
 Pre incorporation expenses incurred   — (7,991,716.19)

 Net Cash flow from Investing Activities   (82,092,057) (42,828,598)

C. CASH FLOw FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
 Increase in Share Capital including Premium   108,300,000.00 30,500,000.00 

 Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities   108,300,000.00 30,500,000.00 

 Net Cash Flow during the year (A+B+C)   607,562 1,273,600 
 Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents   1,273,600 —
 Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents   1,881,162 1,273,600 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise:
 Cash in Hand   63,512 144,780.00 
 Balance with Scheduled Banks in Current Accounts   1,817,649 1,128,820.11 
 Balance with Scheduled Banks in Deposit Accounts 
 (Pledged with Sales Tax Department)
 Cheques in Hand/Transit   — — 

  TOTAL   1,881,162 1,273,600

cash FlOw stateMents FOr the Year enDeD March 31,

As per our seperate report of even date annexed For  and on behalf of the Board
For Ashok Kumar Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants 

A. K. Aggarwal L. N. Goel Avik Dutta
F.C.A.   Director Director
Membership No.: 82695

Place: Delhi 
Date: June 25, 2007
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Balance sheet aBstract anD cOMPanY’s general BUsIness PrOFIle
I.  REGISTRATION DETAILS
  Registration No. State Code
  Date Month Year
 Balance Sheet date

II.  CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR (AMOUNT RS. IN THOUSAND)
 Public Issue Rights Issue
 
 Bonus Issue Preferential Allotment

III.  POSITION OF MOBILISATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS (AMOUNT RS. IN THOUSAND)
 Total Liabilities Total Assets
 
 SOURCES OF FUNDS
 Paid-up Capital Reserves and Surplus

 Secured Loans Unsecured Loans

 Other Liabilities

 APPLICATION OF FUNDS
 Net Fixed Assets Investments

 Net Current Assets Miscellaneous Expenditure

 Accmulated Losses Other Assets

IV.  PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY (AMOUNT RS. IN THOUSAND)
 Turnover* Total Expenditure *

 (*includes other income) (*Includes prior period adjustments)
  +     -       Profit/(Loss) Before Tax   +     -    Profit/(Loss) After Tax
        - 
 Earnings Per Share  of Rs.10/- Dividend Rate (%)

V.  GENERIC NAMES OF PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS OF THE COMPANY (AS PER MONETARY TERMS)
 Item Code No. (ITC Code)

 Product Description
 

1 11 5 7 1      4     8

3 1 0 3  2 0 0 7

      N I L

      N I L

     9 5 0 0

      N I L

   1 3 8 8 0 0    1 3 8 8 0 0

    4 0 0 0 0     9 8 8 0 0

      N I L       N I L

      N I L

   1 1 2 2 8 9       N I L

   (-) 4 1 4 9 0      6 6 3 2

    4 7 8 3 5

   6 0 5 7 0         -                4   1 6 9 9

 1 3       .      6 7  N     I      L

  N    A

P R O D U C T       I     O     N            A     N    D

    4 1 8 1 8

Place: Delhi
Date: June 25, 2007

   1 0 8 4 0 6

B     R     O     A     D     C     A     S     T      I     N     G            O     F 

S     O     F     T     W     A     R     E  T      E     L      E     V      I     S      I      O    N

-

    1 9 5 5 2

For  and on behalf of the Board

  L. N. Goel Avik Dutta
  Director Director
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AttendAnce slip

zee  news  limited
Registered Office: Continental Building, 135,  Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai – 400 018.

pROXY fORm

I/We ............................................................................................  of ............................................................................................

............................................................................................................................................................being member/members of

ZEE NEWs LIMITED hereby appoint ............................................................................................................................................

of...................................................................................................................................................................................... or failing

him/her .........................................................................................  of ............................................................................................

.........................................................................................................................................as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on
my/our  behal f  a t  the 8th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, July 31, 2007 at  
11.30 a.m. at Nehru Auditorium, Nehru Centre, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 and at any adjournment(s) 
thereof.

signed this ......... day of  July, 2007.

 signature of shareholder ...............................................
 
folio no. ................................................
dp id no. ...............................................
client id no. ..........................................
no. of shares ........................................

NOte:	 The	Proxy	completed	in	all	respects	must	be	deposited	at	the	Registered	Office	of	the	Company	not	less	than	48	hours	
before the time of holding of the meeting.

I hereby record my presence at the 8th Annual General Meeting of the Company at Nehru Auditorium, Nehru Centre, Dr. Annie Besant 
Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 018 on Tuesday, July 31, 2007 at 11.30 a.m.

................................................................................ ....................................................
Name of the shareholder/Proxy (IN BLoCk LETTERs) signature of shareholder/Proxy
 

 
folio no. ................................................

dp id no. ...............................................

client id no. ..........................................

no. of shares ........................................

Re. 1/-
Revenue
stamp




